e =
PR A IRRIZEIRBR 2 F
China Dredging Environment Protection Holdings Limited

(Incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability)
(RFRSESFMKZNARAR])
Stock Code AR A 55%: 871

e

Annual Report ¥R




10

1

14

25

Contents E &%

Corporate Information
RNAEEHR

Definitions

B

Financial Summary

BB E

Group Chart

EEEB

Chairman’s Statement

ETRE®mE

Management Discussion and Analysis
EEENWE DM

Directors’ and Senior Management's Profile

EEReREEREN

Corporate Governance Report
TEERRE

Environmental, Social and Governance Report
RE HERERERS

57

79

89

90

92

93

95

Directors’ Report

EEERE

Independent Auditor’s Report
B 3% B

Consolidated Statement of Profit or Loss and
Other Comprehensive Income

REBRERkAEMEEKER

Consolidated Statement of Financial Position

B B IR R &R

Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity
RERREEBR

Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows
mERERER

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

A MR




02 China Dredging Environment Protection Holdings Limited

Corporate Information

NEER

BOARD OF DIRECTORS

Executive Directors:

Mr. Liv Kaijin (Chairman)

Mr. Wu Bin (Vice Chairman) (resigned on 31 March 2020

Mr. Wu Xuze (Chief Executive Officer)
Mes. Zhou Shuhua

Independent Non-Executive Directors:

Mr. Huan Xuedong
Mr. Chan Ming Sun Jonathan
Mr. liang Zequan

AUDIT COMMITTEE
Mr. Chan Ming Sun Jonathan (Chairman)

Mr. Huan Xuedong
M:r. Liang Zequan

REMUNERATION COMMITTEE

Mr. liang Zequan (Chairman)
Mr. Huan Xuedong
Mr. Chan Ming Sun Jonathan

NOMINATION COMMITTEE
Mr. liu Kaijin (Chairman)

Mr. Chan Ming Sun Jonathan
M. liang Zequan

AUTHORISED REPRESENTATIVES

M. Liv Kaijin
Ms. Wong Kwan Lai
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COMPANY SECRETARY

Ms. Wong Kwan Lai

LEGAL ADVISORS

Chungs Lawyers [as to Hong Kong Law|
Zhong Lun law Firm (as to PRC law)

AUDITOR

Moore Stephens CPA Limited
Certified Public Accountants
Registered Public Interest Entity Auditors

PRINCIPAL BANKERS

Bank of Jiangsu Co. ltd, Yancheng Branch
Agricultural Bank of China Limited, Yancheng Branch
China Construction Bank (Asia) Corporation Limited

REGISTERED ADDRESS

Cricket Square, Hutchins Drive,
P.O. Box 2681, Grand Cayman KY1-1111,
Cayman Islands

HEADQUARTERS AND PRINCIPAL PLACE OF
BUSINESS

The People’s Republic of China:

7 /F, Shengzhou Tower, 39 Xindu West Road,
Yandu District, Yancheng City,

Jiangsu Province, the PRC

Hong Kong:

Rooms 1501-2, 15/F,

Siu On Plaza,

482 Jaffe Road,

Causeway Bay, Hong Kong
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Corporate Information (Continued)
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Conyers Trust Company (Cayman) Limited Conyers Trust Company (Cayman) Limited
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Tricor Invesfor Services Limited EEBFELARDA
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the articles of association of the Company

ARREBEEIRAA

the audit committee of the Board
EESERLEY

the board of Directors

E=g

the three per cent convertible bonds in the aggregate principal amounts of HK$243
million due 2016 issued by the Company under the subscription agreement dated 28
Ocfober 2013 entered info between the Company and the Bondholder
RARRBRBEEFAKBEARZ—=FTA -+ N\HIIUNRBHRREETE
©HRFE /243,000,000 TR Z T - RF RN =B RRES

CITIC Capital China Access Fund Limited

the code provisions as confained in “Corporate Governance Code and Corporate
Governance Report” set out in Appendix 14 to the Listing Rules (as amended from time
fo fime), which are adopted [with modification) by the Board as its corporate
governance code

FRAIKM St UAEENIERE TR REERE ARSI ETHI A A&
(BARER) EF2CMMETRAERELEE R TR

China Dredging Environment Protection Holdings Limited
PREGRRRERERA A

a series of contracts, brief details of which are set out in note 42 to the consolidated
financial statements in this annual report, pursuant to which all economic benefits and
risks arising from the business of Jiangsu Xingyu are fransferred to Xiangyu PRC
—FRIAH BHERAFRESMBHRRMEL2  BUIITHEFTH XK S
EEN KBNS REARIERERNTH

director(s) of the Company
AKANBES

the Company and ifs subsidiaries
ARG REMERF

Hong Kong dollars, the lawful currency of Hong Kong
BT BEREERY
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“Jiangsu Jiaolong”

[T % B 5E |

“Jiangsu Xingyu”/

“PRC Operational Entity”
I&wEF]/

(FEEEHER]

“Listing Rules”

[ £ Al

“Model Code”
[ZEX=p 8]

“Mr. Liv”
M85

“Ms. Zhou”
[EZ& =]

“Nomination Committee”
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IIPRCII
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“Remuneration Committee”

(FHEES

IIRMBII
TAR¥]

“Reporting Period”/“Review Period”
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FPEIZRRIZEREBRAE

Jiangsu Jiaolong Salvage Harbour Engineering Co. ltd.*, a non-wholly owned
subsidiary of the Company
THREITHMBIRERRAR AR —HFE2EWNBE QA

Jiangsu Xingyu Holdings Group Limited* (formerly known as Jiangsu Xingyu Port
Construction Company Limited*), a wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company
IHEFEREEERAR (M IHKEFERZERAA)  ARAR—f2%E
Bt 1 A

Rules Governing the listing of Securities on the Stock Exchange (as amended from time
to time)

Bt 2 P8 75 £ 7 AR R (B BB ET)

Model Code for Securities Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers set out in Appendix
10 to the Listing Rules (as amended from time to time)

FHRBME TN ETBETAEFETESFRHINEE
&)

=F Al (48 7B {5

Mr. Liu Kaijin, chairman and an executive Director [who is the spouse of Ms. Zhou)

ERATERRMELE(RRALL ZEB)

Ms. Zhou Shuhua, an executive Director [who is the spouse of Mr. Liu)

BOTEFEAREZ L (REIKEZRB)

the nomination committee of the Board

E=eR2%89

the People’s Republic of China
hEARKM

the remuneration committee of the Board

ExeyMEES

Renminbi, the lawful currency of the PRC

ARE FBEATEHR

for the year ended 31 December 2020
BHE_ZT-_ZEF+_A=+—-HIFE

the Securities and Futures Ordinance (Cap 571
amended from time o time)

BEREDIES7 EFF KB R (BB

of the laws of Hong Kong) [as



“Shareholder(s)”
N

“Share(s)”

[ Bt ]

“Share Option Scheme”

[ B8 MR 58

“Stock Exchange”

[ B8 3 P

“Xiangyu Environment
Protection”

(AFRR]

“Xiangyu PRC”
[AFE]

* For identification purpose only
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shareholder(s) of the Company
KR AR

ordinary share(s) of HK$0.10 each in the share capital of the Company
ARRARIRAFEREEOC.10E T2 & &K

the share option scheme of the Company approved by Shareholders on 24 May 2011
BRER-ZZE-——FRHA-THEBEREZARR R EREE

The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited
ERBMARZMER AR

Jiangsu Xiangyu Environment Protection Equipment Company Limited*, a wholly-owned
subsidiary of the Company
TIHATERRBARLRA AR —HE2ENEAA

Jiangsu Xiangyu Port Constructing Project Administration Co. ltd.*, a wholly-owned
subsidiary of the Company
IHATERIRERBRAR AR —HE2ENE QA

* EHBEE
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Financial Summary

=
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The following is a summary of the published results and assets and NTRAEENRBELAMBRFENE RMEBRIAR

liabilities of the Group for the past five financial years. BERBERE -
RESULTS ES

Year ended 31 December
BE+-A=+—HLEE
2020 2019 2018 2017 2016
- bt T F —E-NFE —EtF —FTRF
RMB’000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
NS AR T AR®TIT ARBTT AR®TT
(audited) (audited) (audited) (audited) (audited)
(RRER) (& E=z) (& E=z) (& E=z) (& E=z)

Revenue W 2% 286,341 442,368 618,833 650,924 667,154
(Loss)/profit before tax B AT (E518),/

3% F (525,335) (411,355 (232,345) 111,234 122,220
Income fax [expense) credit Frisf(AX) TR (12,029) (110,673) (22,150 (39,030 (46,970
Net {loss)/profit (B18), HEF %8 (537,364) (522,028 (254,495) 72,204 75,250

Net (loss)/profit atiributable to: A~ A 4 FE 15 (&5

18),/ i FHEE

Owners of the company ViN/NEETE SN (526,583) (517,5806) (258,647) 71,040 68,794
Non-controlling inferests JEPE AR RS (10,781) (4,442) 4,152 1,164 6,456
(537,364) (522,028) (254,495) 72,204 75,250

ASSETS AND LIABILITIES EERERE

31 December
Rt+t=-—A=+—H

2020 2019 2018 2017 2016
== —T—hNF ZZE-NF ZE—+F ZT-—RF
RMB’000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
NS ARBTTT AR®TIT ARBTT AR®T
(audited) (audited) (audited) (audited) (audited)
(REX) (') (') (') (')
Non-current assets ERBEE 1,796,319 1,970,896 2,172,683 2,275,052 2,441,565
Current assets mEEE 612,046 876,272 1,176,404 1,312,737 1,389,083
Current liabilities mEAE (1,169,495) (1,159,452) (1,145,461) (1,134,800) (1,445,784
Non-current liabilities ERBEE (201,012) (124,542) (115,000) (115,739) (115,362)

Net assets BEZFE 1,037,858 1,563,174 2,088,626 2,337,250 2,269,502




COMPANY

The statement of financial position of the Company as at the end of the

Reporting Period is as follows:
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Financial Summary (Continued)
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STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION OF THE

ASSETS EE
Unlisted investments in subsidiaries KRB RAZIELTIEE 258,375 259,214
Amounts due from subsidiaries B U B B~ | B 38 4,486 436,964
Bank balances and cash RITHEBRERS 119 128
262,980 696,306
LIABILITIES 8E&
Other payables H th & A FRIE 7,964 3,709
Amounts due to subsidiaries FE W BT B N B 5 TE 17,860 =
Amounts due to Directors BT EERIA 5,903 5,450
Bonds payable B EH 287,482 286,804
319,209 295,963
TOTAL ASSETS LESS TOTAL LIABILITIES HEERHEEE (56,229) 400,343
CAPITAL AND RESERVES EAXREE
Share capifal R& 7R 167,914 150,365
Deficient/reserves (note) B4t R (B at) (224,143) 249,078
TOTAL EQUITY AR (56,229) 400,343
Note: e
Reserves of the Company RNQEE R
Share Share option Other Accumulated
premium reserve reserve losses Total
R HE BRERE H itk RitE A wEt
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARBTFIT ARBFTT AREFTRT ARETT ARETT
At 1 January 2019 R-_ZT—hh&E—HF—H 928,198 2,752 165,238 (308,574) 787,614
Exercise of share options 1710 BB AR 523 [279) - - 244
Share option lapsed B AR 1 2R 3 - (2,473) - 2,473 -
Loss for the year FANEE - - - (537,880) (537,880)
At 31 December 2019 R=ZZE-—hF+=—A=+—AH 928,721 - 165,238 (843,981) 249 978
Equity-setiled share-based payments LABE 75 45 B 0 IR 19 15 3R - 292 - — 202
Loss for the year FAEE - - - (474,413) (474,413
At 31 December 2020 R-ZE-_TF+=-_A=+—AH 928,721 292 165,238 (1,318,394) (224,143)
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Group Chart
SERE

The following sets out the corporate structure of the Group as at 31 TEIRAERER-_ZE_ZEF+_A=+—HBHHE
December 2020: ZRHE

China Dredging Environment
Protection Holdings Limited
(incorporated in the Cayman Islands)
RERARRERERAE
(RPAE B MR L)

VIE Contractual
Arrangements
(Note 2)

Notes: B & -

1. Mr. Liu and Ms. Zhou are the registered holders of the registered capital in 1. BlAERARLTRAIHEFIMERNETR/FAA
Jiangsu Xingyu, and Ms. Zhou holds all her equity interest in Jiangsu Xingyu FRARTEAB SENEIATE AN IHEFTHM
as trustee for Mr. Liu. BRHE -

2. On 19 April 2011, Jiangsu Xingyu, Xiangyu PRC, Mr. Liu and Ms. Zhou 2. RZZT——FWNA+AH IHEF PFHEH - 2%
entered info the Contractual Arrangements, pursuant fo which all economic ERBARETAZEHRY Bt ITHBETFTEBESE
benefits and risks arising from the business of Jiangsu Xingyu are transferred MAEREMNZERRRIERETHFHE-

to Xiangyu PRC.
3. On 3 April 2020, the company name of Yancheng Juranzhijia Home 3. R-ZTZE-_ZTENMA=R BEREAZRIXEEMBE
Building Material Commercial Management Limited* was changed to EEERARNEBEERAIGETFREEREESE

Jiangsu Xingyu Infernational Houseware Plaza Company Limited*. [RAR]

4. Jiangsu longyang Harbour Engineering Co. lid.* was incorporated in the 4. AIHEAMBIRERARR_ZSEFAATNHB
PRC on 18 May 2020. R EEMAKL -

5. Xiangyu Dredging Company Limited was disposed on 17 December 2020. 5. R-ZE-_ZTF+_-A++tBAHEPNFHRABERAA -

* For identification purpose only * EHE5
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Chairman's Statement (Continued)
EEEEAC )

To Shareholders:

2020 was the most challenging year in the business history of the Group.
Since early last year, the Group has been hit by the outbreak of the novel
coronavirus disease ["COVID-19") pandemic inside and outside of
China, resulting in delays in the work schedule of 2020 for both
domestic and overseas projects under construction or works ready to
start, and also a significant increase in the construction costs and a
decrease in the consfruction efficiency of various projects, which has

caused unprecedented risks and pressures to the Group's operation.

For the financial year 2020, the Group recorded a fotal revenue of
approximately RMB286.3 million, representing a decrease of 35.3% as
compared with the financial year 2019 of approximately RMB442.4
million. While the revenue decreased significantly, our substantial fixed
costs, such as depreciation of assefs and repair and maintenance of
equipment, didn't decrease accordingly, therefore, the Group recorded a
gross loss and had to provide an impairment for property, plant and
equipment of RMB248.1 million. Coupled with the recognition of the
allowance for expected credit losses of RMB150.0 million, the Group
recorded another net loss of approximately RMB537 .4 million for the

year.

Despite the severe impact of the sudden outbreak of the COVID-19
pandemic inside and outside of China successively on the Group's
operation in 2020, the Group responded to the crisis with the following:
on one hand, the Group adopted various measures to ensure stability,
including the sfability of construction team and management team, the
stability of work on hand and projects followed up, the stability of existing
equipment upgrading and new equipment investment, efc. fo preserve the
Group’s living space by every means; on the other hand, the Group
seized all possible opportunities o reduce debts and optimise capital
structure of the Group. Recently, the Group has successfully settled CITIC
Capital's debt, the Group's largest and most urgent debt pressure. We
will continue to maintain a robust business approach, select and capture
various opportunities in a prudent manner and further expand our existing
businesses.

FPEIZRRIZEREBRAE
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Llooking forward, while we are seeing rollouts of COVID-19 vaccination
programs, it remains uncertain as fo the stafe of pandemic control inside
and outside of China, and in particular, the time of the pandemic in
foreign countries is hard fo predict. Given the large fleets of the Group's
operating vessels are mainly in foreign counfries, the Group must be well
prepared for the difficulties it will face for a long period, continue to
stabilise project, feam and management system as the top priority of this
year's work, and make full use of the opportunities arising from the rapid
development of China's offshore wind power industry in recent years and
seek fo parficipate in more wind power construction projects fo lay a

solid foundation for the future development of the Group.

As a professional dredging service provider with years of experience, no
matter how daunting the challenge may be, the Group will adhere to the
dredging business and other marine business as our two principal
businesses, stay loyal fo our clienfs to provide them with quality service,

and generate retums for our Shareholders.

Liv Kaijin
Chairman and Executive Director

16 April 2021
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Chairman's Statement (Continued)
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Management Discussion and Analysis (Continued)

OVERVIEW

The Group is primarily engaged in dredging business, which can be
divided into three main operating and reportable segments, namely, |i)
capital and reclamation dredging business (the “CRD Business”); |ii)
environmental protection dredging and water management business (the
"EPD and Water Management Business”); and [iii) other works operated
in marine sites such as hoisting wind power equipment, insfalling major
parts of docks and bridges, as well as laying underwater pipelines and
salvaging (the “Other Marine Business”). In addition, the Group has
managed property management business in respect of the management
of Xingyu Infernational Houseware Plaza* (EEFEIRKR/EE ) (formerly
known as Easyhome Yancheng Shopping Mall* &% 2 REEJE) (the

“Property Management Business”).

FINANCIAL REVIEW

Revenue

During the Reporting Period, the Group recorded a substantial decrease
by about 35.3% in total revenue from approximately RMB442.4 million
for the year ended 31 December 2019 fo approximately RMB286.3
million.

As regards the CRD Business segmentf, revenue of approximately
RMB71.4 million was recorded for the Reporting Period, which
decreased by about 50.8% when compared fo that for the year ended
31 December 2019. The decrease in revenue was primarily due to the
outbreak of COVID-19 in mainland China during the first half of the year.
When the pandemic came under control and construction environment
became better within mainland China during the second half year, the
pandemic became out of control in the overseas. As the production
capacity of the largescale dredgers of the Group is mainly from the
overseas countries, vet the equipment replacement, the supply of repair
materials and the rotation and support of the key personnel of the
operation and project teams are all from mainland China, the pandemic
has caused serious impact on the operation of the Group, regardless of
whether the outbreak occurred in the first half or the second half of the
year and regardless of whether it occurred within or outside of mainland
China. Hence, the progress of the consfruction projects seriously lagged
behind their schedules or was even halted, resulting in the decrease in

the revenue.

BEEEFN W R D@

N N N N N N N ST N SN SN SN N N
W\/\/m
W/\/\/\/\/\/\/m

BME

AEBEXZHRAREEED  HENEBAI S /=
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BERBBBREERD  ((IBRBARKBEEXK
(REREEARKBEERERD : (i)/8 LBRENEM
TR -MEANZEERBERE BREIBRERAMXR
K OOKTESERRITBIR(EMEEERKD - Uk
Sy ARBREREFEERERSZ(AIBERZK
EWE)MRINMEERET(MEREERK] -

Bt 75 o)

i 2%

RBERR AEEEB 2B BT AETH A&
ECE-NAFT A=+ BILEFENHDARK
442,400,000 7T 7 2> #135.3% = £ A R ¥ 286,300,000
T o

RBEME  ERRABREART D BEBREHA
R#¥71,400,0007T ®BE_ZT—-NAF+_-_H=+—
HIEFENRERDL508% HREBPIITERHR
HUBRRESREBERLFFERANEREE  EBAK
BRTHFEZE HIRREFR  REFEBEIIKE
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Mg TEBENmEMIE AXREEA . BitEwR
LtHFERTHF ERRBERELEREENERE
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FPEIZRRIZEREBRAE

Management Discussion and Analysis (Continued)

BEEEF W R D@

FINANCIAL REVIEW (CONTINUED)

Revenue (Continued)

Revenue of approximately RMB49.1 million was recorded for the EPD
and Water Management Business segment, representing a slight increase
of about 2.4% from its cormesponding segment revenue for the year
ended 31 December 2019. The increase was caused by the desirable
works progress of cerfain environmental protection dredging projects as
COVID-19 was under confrol in the second half of the year in mainland

China.

Revenue for the Other Marine Business was approximately RMB158.9
million, representing a decrease of 34.2% as compared with the
corresponding period of 2019. The decrease in revenue was mainly due

fo the influence of the pandemic.

Revenue for the Property Management Business segment for the Reporting
Period was approximately RMB6.9 million, which decreased by about
11.0% from RMB7.7 million for the year ended 31 December 2019.

Operating Cost and Gross Profit

The Group's operating cost decreased from approximately RMB391.0
million for the year ended 31 December 2019 to approximately
RMB330.0 million during the Reporting Period, representing a decrease
of about 15.6%. The decrease was primarily due to the drop of the

business volume along with the decrease in overall revenue.

The Group recorded a gross loss of approximately RMB43.6 million for
the Reporting Period as compared with a gross profit of approximately
RMB5 1.4 million for the year ended 31 December 2019. Gross loss
margin of 15.2% was recorded for the Reporting Period as compared
with a gross profit margin of 11.6% for the year ended 31 December
2019. The significant drop in the revenue brought by the successive
outbreak of COVID-19 in mainland China and overseas, while
subsfantial costs such as depreciation of assets and mainfenance of
equipment did not decrease. Meanwhile, the outbreak of the pandemic
escalated the transportation costs of supplies and personnel, resulting in

reduced efficiency.

Net Other Gain

The Group recorded a net other gains of RMB25.6 million during the
Reporting Period as compared with a net other losses of RMB5.6 million
for year ended 31 December 2019, which was primarily caused by the
recognifion of the exchange gain of RMB22.2 million for the Reporting
Period

W
\/\/\/\/\/\/\/\/\/\/\/\/\/\/\
N N N N N s N N N N N N s =
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Management Discussion and Analysis (Continued)

FINANCIAL REVIEW (cONTINUED)

Expected Credit Loss Allowance

As a further prudent measure in managing the trade receivables and the
confract assefs, the Company appointed an independent external
professional valuer to make an independent valuation and based on its
suggestion to recognise the allowance for expected credit losses on trade
receivables, prepayment and the contract assets of about RMB150.0
million in total for the Reporting Period (2019: about RMB333.7 million).

Impairment loss

During the Reporting Period, a non-cash impairment loss of RMB254.0
million was recognised on the property, plant and equipment and the
rightofuse assets, mainly atfributable to the continuing challenging market
condition as an impairment indicator fo the Group's businesses. No such

impairment loss was recorded for the year ended 31 December 2019.

Marketing and Promotion Expenses

Marketing and promotion expenses for the Reporting Period was
approximately RMB6.0 million, representing a decrease of about 21.3%
as compared with approximately RMB7.7 million for the year ended 31
December 2019, which was mainly atributable fo the decrease in
marketing and promotion activities resuling from the outbreak of
COVID-19.

Administrative Expenses

Administrative  expenses for the Reporting Period amounted to
approximately RMB75.6 million, representing an increase of about
15.0% from RMB6S5.7 million for the year ended 31 December 2019.
This was mainly due to the change of allocation of depreciation charge
of certain dredgers as administrative expenses instead of operafing costs

resulfing from such dredgers lying idle during the year.

Finance Costs

Finance costs for the Reporting Period amounted fo approximately
RMB43.4 million, which decreased by about 3.7% when compared to

that for the corresponding period last year.

Income Tax Expense

Income fax expense decreased from approximately RMB110.7 million
for the year ended 31 December 2019 to approximately RMB12.0

million for the Reporting Period.
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HEFARRIERERA A

Management Discussion and Analysis (Continued)
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FINANCIAL REVIEW (CONTINUED)

Loss for the Year

Influenced by the above factors as a whole, the net loss for the Reporting
Period was approximately RMB537.4 million, representing an increase
of approximately 3.0% as compared to a net loss of approximately
RMB522.0 million for the year ended 31 December 2019

Loss Per Share

loss per share for the Reporting Period was approximately RMBO.550
per share (2019: approximately RMBO.583).

Financial Management Policies

The Group in ifs ordinary course of business is exposed fo market risks
such as currency risk and interest rate risk. The Group's risk management
strategy aims to mitigate the adverse effects of these risks on its financial

performance in full measure.

As most of the Group’s trading fransactions, monefary assets and
liabilities are denominated mainly in Renminbi, which is the Group's
functional and reporting currency, and save for the Bonds and certain
bank borrowings and deposits denominated in United States dollars and
Hong Kong dollars, the foreign exchange gain recognised for the
Reporting Period was approximately RMB22.2 million (31 December
2019: exchange loss of approximately RMB5.8 million). The Group is

giving full attention fo respond to the related foreign exchange rate risks.

As current inferest rates stay at relatively low levels, the Group has not
enfered info any inferest rate hedging contracts or any other interest rate
related derivative financial instruments. Nonetheless, the Group will

continue fo closely monitor its related interest rate exposure.

Financial Position

As at 31 December 2020, the total equity of the Group amounted to
approximately RMB1,037.9 million (31 December 2019: approximately
RMB1,563.2 million). The decrease in total equity was mainly
affributable to the operafing loss, the recognition of the expected credit

loss allowance and the impairment of the assets for the Reporting Period.

The Group's net current liabilities as at 31 December 2020 amounted fo
approximately RMB557.4 million (31 December 2019: approximately
RMB283.2 million]. The current ratio, which is calculated by dividing
current assets by current liabilities, was 0.52 as at 31 December 2020 (31
December 2019: 0.76).
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Management Discussion and Analysis (Continued)

FINANCIAL REVIEW (cONTINUED)

Liquidity and Financial Resources

The Group adopts prudent cash and financial management policies. In
order to achieve better cost control and reduce capital cost, the Group's
treasury activities are centralised and cash is generally deposited with

banks and denominated mostly in Renminbi and Hong Kong dollars.

Included in current assets were cash and various bank deposits which
was about RMB29.3 million in total as at 31 December 2020,
representing an increase by about 132.4% as compared with that of
approximately RMB12.6 million as at 31 December 2019

The Croup's trade receivables as at 31 December 2020 amounted tfo
approximately RMB497.2 million (2019: approximately RMB777.6
million), representing a decrease by 36.1% when compared with that of
the corresponding period of the preceding year.

As at 31 December 2020, total liabilities of the Group amounted to
approximately RMB1,370.5 million (31 December 2019: approximately
RMB1,284.0 million). The Group's gearing ratio (calculated by inferest
bearing instruments (including bank borrowings, other borrowings and
bonds payable) divided by total equity) increased to 70.6% (2019
41.3%).

Charge over Assets of the Group

As at 31 December 2020, the Group's bank borrowings were secured
by charges over cerfain dredgers and land owned by the Group, a
property owned by a company in which Mr. Liu has beneficial inferest
and personal guarantees by Mr. liv and Ms. Zhou. There were also
infragroup  charges between two of the Company's wholly-owned
subsidiaries as a result of the confractual arrangements, pursuant fo which
all economic benefits and risks arising from the business of Jiangsu Xingyu
have been transferred to Xiangyu PRC.

The Group pledged over a dredger, an industrial premise located in
Jiangsu Province, the PRC and a residential property located in Shandong
Province, the PRC in favour of the Bondholder and/or its offiliates.

Material Acquisitions and Disposals

The Group had no material investments in or material acquisitions or
disposals of subsidiaries during the current year.

Capital Commitments and Contingent Liabilities

As at 31 December 2020, the Group had capital commitments of
approximately RMBP1.0 million (31 December 2019: approximately
RMB66.2 million), which mainly included the construction costs of a hotel
and a vessel.
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FINANCIAL REVIEW (CONTINUED)

Capital Commitments and Contingent Liabilities
(Continued)

As af 31 December 2020, the Group did not have any material
contingent liabilities {31 December 2019: nil).

BUSINESS REVIEW

The outbreak of COVID-19 worldwide and the various public health
measures put in place in many countries to prevent the spread of
COVID-19 have disrupted the overall business of the Group at different
levels of time and regions in 2020. After the Chinese new year in
February 2020, the Group's domestic businesses were affected by the
lock-down of various cities implemented in mainland China, resulting in
the forced suspension of all local operations until the gradual resumption
of work beginning from late March to early April. Owing to the
reorientation of the pandemic, when the operation of the China domestic
projects resumed in the second half of the year, the overseas projects in
the Southeast Asia were affected by the worsening epidemic in the local
regions, and the operation of such projects had almost ceased since the
mid-2020. Due to the shorfiage of material supply, the outofline
replacement of personnel and the frequent requests for work suspension
by the local governments from time fo time, the consfruction schedules
and the output of the Group's overseas projects were seriously affected in

the second half of the year.

The CRD Business is the Group's core business. The Group proactively
explored overseas markefs in recent years and has acfively undertaken
several dredging projects in Bangladesh, Myanmar and Thailand in the
Reporting Period. The decrease in revenue generated by such business
segment was due fo: (1) for the domesfic construction projects, the
outbreak of COVID-19 in mainland China in the beginning of 2020,
which directly led to the complete halting of the operation of construction
projects; and (2] for the overseas consfruction projects, although the
construction sites are situated overseas, the replacement of equipment,
supply of materials for maintenance and the rotation and support of the
key business and operation personnel for the overseas projects were sent
from mainland China. These overseas projects were affected both (i) by
the pandemic within mainland China, causing multiple interruptions and
longterm suspension of construction due fo personnel and supplies
movement restrictions, and [ii) by the pandemic overseas after the
outbreak in mainland China came under control, which resulted in the
resfriction on the personnel from mainland China to come to the overseas
construction sites and the restriction on supplies, as well as the various
confrol and restrictions imposed by the governments of the countries and
districts in which the projects are situated, which led to the longferm
suspension of the business and a sharp drop in production capacity.
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BUSINESS REVIEW (coNTINUED)

The Group develops and expands the EPD and Water Management
Business segment proactively. The Group recorded a slight increase in
revenue during the Reporting Period, which was affributable to the
desirable works progress of cerfain environmental protection dredging
projects as COVID-19 was under control in the second half of the year in

mainland China.

Other Marine Business includes installing marine wind power equipment,
hoisting major parts of docks and bridges, laying underwater pipelines
and other works services. Due to the rapid development of the marine
wind power constructions in mainland China, the Group will build a
2,300+onned self-propelled fixed-crane vessel through financing solution
with a total investment cost of about RMB226.7 million, which is
expected fo be delivered by the end of June 2021, in order to grasp

more such business opportunities.

The name of Easyhome Yancheng Shopping Mall was changed fo
Xingyu International Houseware Plaza in April 2020. The shopping mall
is located at the administrative centre of Yandu District, Yancheng City,
Jiangsu Province, the PRC and the core area of Yancheng National High-
tech Industrial Development Zone with a gross floor area of 75,600
square metres, is mainly used for leasing under the Property Management
Business. The shopping mall was positioned as a largescale shopping
center with domestic consfruction materials as ifs theme, offering one-stop
services from fumniture, housewares to decoration materials to customers.
Currently, Xingyu International Houseware Plaza has more than 40
tenants, including renowned home fumishing brands M&Z Furniture (£_E
BAZk), Landbond Minim (B§FBAK/E), Arrow Dingzhi (§FH&EHll), Huashifu
[ZERD{E) ond Telonang (ZEFE%E). Although the revenue of dredging
businesses was seriously affected by the COVID-19 pandemic, it did nof
have much impact on the service industry including the property renfal of

the plaza.

In addition 1o the operation and lease of shopping malls, the Group also
commenced to construct a hotel located at the west of Caihong Road,
Yancheng City, Jiangsu Province, the PRC, with a gross floor area of
20,000 square metres. Currently, the related construction works of the

hotel has not been completed because of the funding issue of the Group.
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Management Discussion and Analysis (Continued)
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PROSPECTS

Notwithstanding the adverse impacts on the Group due fo the COVID-19
outbreak, the Group will continue to consistently and actively monitor
market conditions, take appropriate actions to alleviate the negative
impact of the pandemic on the Group's business and performance,
strengthen project cost control, and confinue to stabilise consfruction
projects, operation team and management systfem. Meanwhile, the
Group continuously adopts a robust and prudent operating strategy o
ensure an effective control of various possible operational risks as well as

fo speed up the collection of receivables.

For capital operation, based on the progress of its substantial consfruction
projects including the operating progress of the overseas projects, the
Group will actively identify and materialise healthy and feasible financial
plans, such as strengthening the collection of the receivables and
enhancing the capital structure of the Group, so as to satisfy, support and
meet the Group's business development.

EMPLOYEES AND REMUNERATION POLICY

The sustained development of our business leverages on the ongoing
confributions by our employees. The Board considers employees the
Group's most valuable wealth and is committed fo improving their growth
environment, providing them competitive remuneration packages and
safeguarding their health and sofety. As at 31 December 2020, the
Group had 454 (2019: 519) employees. The tofal staff cost for the
Reporting Period was about RMB5 1.2 million (2019: RMB45.8 million).
The Group's remuneration policy is basically defermined by the Directors
based on the performance of individual employees and market
condifions. In addition to salaries and discretionary bonuses, employee
benefits include pension contributions and options which may be granted

under share opfion scheme.
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Management Discussion and Analysis (Continued)

EVENT AFTER END OF REPORTING PERIOD

Share Consolidation and Change in Board Lot
Size

On 14 January 2021, the Board proposed fo implement the share
consolidation on the basis that every two (2] issued and unissued shares
of HK$0.10 each be consolidated into one (1) consolidated share of
HK$0.20, which was conditional upon, among other things, the
approval of the shareholders of the Company. The Board also proposed
to change the board lot size for trading on the Stock Exchange from 1,000
shares of HK$0.10 each to 20,000 consolidated shares of HK$0.20
each conditional upon the share consolidation becoming effective. On 5
March 2021, the shareholders of the Company at an extraordinary
general meeting approved the share consolidation. Accordingly, the
share consolidation and the change of the board lot size took effect on @
March 2021. As at 9 March 2021, the authorised share capital of the
Company became HK$1,000,000,000 divided into 5,000,000,000
shares of HK$0.20 each, of which 995,641,500 consolidated shares

was in issue.

Issue of New Consolidated Shares

Pursuant fo a subscription agreement dated 14 January 2021 entered
info between the Company and Mr. Liu Kaijin, the substantial shareholder
of the Company, the Company issued and allotied 508,240,000 new
consolidated shares, representing approximately 33.80% of the issued
share capital of the Company as af the date of this annual report, at a
price of HK$0.20 per consolidated share on 30 March 2021. The
gross proceeds and net proceeds of the subscription were approximately
HK$101.6 million and approximately HK$99.6 million respectively. The
net proceeds of approximately HK$98.4 million from the subscription
was used fo fully redeem the Bonds and the remaining balance of
approximately HK$ 1.2 million was used as general working capital of

the Company.

For details of the share consolidation, the change in board lot size and
the issue of the new consolidated shares, please refer to the
announcements of the Company dated 14 January 2021, 3 February
2021, 5 March 2021 and 30 March 2021.
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EVENT AFTER END OF REPORTING PERIOD
(CONTINUED)

Redemption of the Bonds

On 3 December 2020, the Company and the Bondholder enfered into
the seventh amendment agreement fo further amend the original
convertible bonds instrument and the original bond conditions. Under the
seventh amendment agreement, it has been agreed that, among other
matters, subject fo the fulfillment of the conditions precedent, (a) the
principal amount of the Bonds shall be amended to be
HK$319,482,769.63; (b) the redemption amount of the Bonds shall be
amended to be HK$352,446,870.29 and (c) the maturity date of the
Bonds shall be amended to be 31 March 2021
agreed that the Company shall be deemed fo have paid the redemption

. It has also been

amount of the Bonds in full if the Company pays or procures the payment
fo the Bondholder or its affiliate o sum of RMB equivalent of
HK$98,359,241 on or before the maturity date of the Bonds. On 30
March 2021, the Company repaid HK$98,359,241 to the Bondholder
to redeem the Bond. The Company has been freated as the full and final
sefflement of the Bonds. For defails, please refer to the announcements of

the Company dated 3 December 2020 and 30 March 2021.
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BOARD OF DIRECTORS

Executive Directors

Mr. Liu Kadijin, aged 60, the founder of the Group, was appointed as
a Director on 31 May 2010, was re-designed from a Direcfor to an
execufive Director on 24 May 2011, was redesigned from a joint
chairman to the chairman of the Board on 23 September 2016 and was
appointed as the chairman of the Nomination Committee on 8 March
2019. He was the chief executive officer of the Company for the period
from 24 May 2011 to 5 January 2017. Mr. Liu is the spouse of Ms.
Zhou, an executive Director.

Mr. liu completed his secondary education in 1977. In 2003, Mr. Liu
obtained a certificate as a senior construction engineer from the Human
Resources Bureau of Yancheng City* (E&$ T A ). As his experience
and knowledge in the PRC dredging business grew, Mr. Liu established
Jiangsu Xingyu in 2007. Mr. liv has been working in the dredging
industry of the PRC for over 20 years.

Mr. Lliv is the chairman of Jiangsu Xingyu and Huaian Shi Xiangyu
Technology Microfinance Ud.* [EZmAFRNEEFER AT
and the chairman and general manager of Xiangyu PRC, Jiangsu Xiangyu
Water Management Company limited* ((T#FFKIEER AR,
Xiangyu Environment Profection, Jiangsu Fengyu Property Development
Co., Ud* [(TERLFBEAFR AR, Jiangsu Xingyu Commerce Co. Lid. *
PTEREFEHBERAR), Jiangsu Lifu Infrastructure Construction Co.,
ld.* (T# N =EEMRRIEEZBER QA Jiangsu Xiangyu Environmental
Protection Indusfry Development ld. * (TE#FATFIRIREEXZREER A F)
["Xiangyu Environmental Profection Industry”) and Jiangsu Xingyu
Environment Protection Company Limited* (T #REFHZIRRBR A F);
and has been responsible for overseeing their daily operations and
planning their business strategies. Other than the above mentioned
companies, Mr. Liu is the director of Power Wealth Group (BVI) Limited,
Ever Universe Holdings Limited, Power VWealth Engineering limited and
Million Able International Limited. He is also a director of Wangji Limited,

being a substantial Shareholder.

Please refer to the "Directors’ Report” for defails of his discloseable

interests in the Company under the provisions of the SFO.
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BOARD OF DIRECTORS (CONTINUED)

Executive Directors (Continued)

Mr. Wu Xuze, aged 54, has been appointed as an executive Director
and the chief executive officer of the Company on 5 January 2017.

Mr. Wu graduated from the Party School of Jiangsu Committee of the
Communist Party of China* (3£ T#&Z &%) and obtained tertiary
education qualification in economic management. Mr. VWu has invested
in and managed various companies in the PRC and has acted as
chairman, general manager and director of those companies. He has

over 10 years of experience in invesiment management.

Ms. Zhou Shuhua, aged 58, was appointed as a Director on 18
August 2010, and was re-designed as an executive Direcfor on 24 May
2011. Ms. Zhou is mainly responsible for general administrative work of
our Group. She is the spouse of Mr. Liu, the chairman of the Board and

an executive Director.

Ms. Zhou graduated from The Correspondence Institute of the Party
School of the Central Committee of the Communist Party of China* [/ $£
R ER KIFZERL), the PRC in December 1999 and obtained a
graduation certificate for undergraduate courses in  administrative
management. She also obtained o graduation certificate  for

undergraduate courses in broadcasting in May 2001 from Nanijing
Normal University* (7 5 Al &5 A 22, the PRC.

Ms. Zhou acts as a Director for Jiangsu Xingyu, Xiangyu Environment
Protection, Xiangyu Environmental Protection Industry and Jiangsu
Jiaolong.

Please refer to the "Directors’ Report” for defails of her discloseable

interests in the Company under the provisions of the SFO.
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BOARD OF DIRECTORS (CONTINUED)

Independent Non-executive Directors

Mr. Huan Xuedong, aged 70, was appointed as an independent
non-executive Direcfor on 25 April 2012. He is also the member of the

Audit Committee and the Remuneration Committee.

Mr. Huan graduated from the Correspondence Institute of the Party
School of the Central Committee of the Communist Party of China (AP &
AR ERKIEERT), the PRC with a graduation certificate for
undergraduate courses in party administration. He also completed his

postgraduate sfudies in Applied Sociology in Nanjing University (B3 FA
).

Mr. Huan served as the Head of Bureau of Township Enterprises of Yan
Cheng City* (EESTAPEBPZE), the Head of Bureau of Water
Management of Yan Cheng City* (E&3 H7KHB) and the chairman of
the Agricultural and Water Enterprises Association of Yan Cheng City* (&8
W RKEERE).

Mr. Chan Ming Sun Jonathan, aged 48, was appointed as an
independent non-executive Director in 30 November 2012. He is a
member of the Remuneration Committee and the Nomination Committee
and the chairman of Audit committee.

Mr. Chan graduated from the University of New South Wales, Australia
with a Bachelor of Commerce degree in Accounting and Computer
Information Systems. Mr. Chan is both a member of the Hong Kong
Institute of Certified Public Accountants and Certified Public Accountants,
Australia. He has extensive working experience in accounting, investment
and corporate finance. Mr. Chan worked in an international accounting
firm for about five years and currently, he is an investment manager of

Sprint Asset Management Limited.
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BOARD OF DIRECTORS (CONTINUED)

Independent Non-executive Directors (Continued)

Mr. Chan is currently an independent non-executive director of Aceso Life
Science Group Limited [previously known as Hao Tian Development
Group limited) [stock code: 474), Up Energy Development Group Limited
[stock code: 307) (note), Fujian Nuogi Co., ltd (stock code: 1353) and
Changhong Jiahua Holdings Limited (stock code: 3991) whose securities
are listed on the main board of the Stock Exchange. Mr. Chan acted as
an independent non-executive director of Shenyang Public Utility Holdings
Company Limited (stock code: 747) for the period from 12 February
2015 1o 8 September 2020, whose securities are listed on the main
board of the Stock Exchange, and of Dining Concepts Holdings Limited
[currently known as Llife Concepts Holdings Limited, stock code: 8056)
for the period from 14 July 2016 to 12 December 2018, whose
securities are listed on the GEM of the Stock Exchange.

Note:  The appointment of Mr. Chan Ming Sun Jonathan as an independent non-
executive director of Up Energy Development Group Llimited (stock code:
307) is under dispute. For defails, please refer to such company's relevant

announcements.

Mr. Liang Zequan, aged 52, has been appointed as an
independent non-executive Director, a member of the Audit Committee,
the chairman of Remuneration Committee and a member of the
Nomination Committee on 23 Sepfember 2016.

Mr. liang has been the chairman and secretary of the Communist Party’s
commiftee of Jiangsu Renhe Zhongheng Consulting Group* (T #K{ZAK+
%A% E). He is also an independent non-executive director of Jiangsu
Gaohe Intelligent Equipment Co., lid. (stock code: 831787), a company
lised on the Shenzhen Stock Exchange. He held various positions
including the chairman, secretary of the Communist Party’s general sub-
division committee and general manager of Chengnan Branch of Jiangsu
Renhe Zhongheng Engineering Consulting Real Estate Valuation Co.,
lid* (TERCARFEIREAFMEMREERRQHF), the chaiman of
Jiangsu Renhe Zhongheng CPA limited* [TER{— R &S :tENEIEFTE
BAa)), the chairman of Yancheng Renhe Capital Construction
Investment Valuation Co., ltd* (B REARZEZIGEGHBEEAER
/A7) and the vice chairman of Yancheng Zhengdao CPA Limited* (&8
EEERISEHARAR). M. liang graduated from Yancheng
Institute of Technology and obtained the Industrial and Civil Building
Engineering professional qualification. He is a PRC principal senior
economist with the qualifications of PRC certified engineer, asset
appraiser and real estate appraiser.
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BOARD OF DIRECTORS (CONTINUED)

Independent Non-executive Directors (Confinued)

Mr. liang currently serves as a member of the 12th session of the
committee of the Chinese People’s Political Consuliative Conference of
Yancheng City, Jiangsu Province* (fp B A RIEA 19 2 € 3T #rA BRI
mE+-_EZE8E%XE) the vice chairman of Jiangsu Province Real
Estate Appraisers and Agents Association* (T #k& F= 2= & EL4E 42 13
€|, an expert of Jiangsu Cost Advisory Expert Committee* [JT#%& (B
HBHEREZE D), an executive director of Registered Accountants
Association of Yancheng City, Jiangsu Province* ([T &k BE &
FTEM#E), a special auditor of Audit Bureau of Yancheng City, Jiangsu
Province* L&+ & B a1 /3), the vice chairman of Junior Chamber
of Commerce of Tingfu District, Yancheng City, Jiangsu Province* [T &k
BE TR FERE), the vice chairman of Association of Forensic
Sciences of Yancheng City, Jiangsu Province* [[T# & B e/ AZEE
&) and the vice chairman of Federation of Industry and Commerce of
Yancheng City, Jiangsu Province* (T &k &3 h T g £ & =)

SENIOR MANAGEMENT

Mr. Xu Wenyue, aged 49, joined the Group in October 2011 and
is the chief financial officer of the Company. He is the head of
accounting department of the Group and is responsible for overseeing
the daily accounting and financial matters of the Group, both in the PRC
and Hong Kong.

Mr. Xu graduated from the profession of accounting of Nanjing Economic
Institute™ (FA R&EEPT) in 1999, Mr. Xu is a senior accountant in the
PRC (Bl Z 4k &51EM) and both a member of the Chinese Institute of
Certified Public Accountants (FfPEIZE € EtEM7€) and the China
Cerfified Tax Agents Association (AR BIzEM##5EM7 ). Prior fo joining
the Group, Mr. Xu worked in a listed group in Hong Kong as a financial

controller.

Ms. Ding Jiying (T# %% t), oged 46, joined the Group in
December 2011 as the internal control officer. She is responsible for

overseeing the internal control matters of the Group.

Ms. Ding passed the examinations of the PRC Accountant Examination
(Intermediate level)* (2BHRHE:HAIE ) and Nanjing University of
Finance and Economics* (EREI&EAE) in 2000 and 2007,
respectively, and awarded with the Bachelor of Management. She is
qualified as a PRC Certified Accountant® (& Bz & 5tEf) and China
Real Estate Appraisers* (2Bl 53 5 it 2= & B RD).
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SENIOR MANAGEMENT (CONTINUED)

Ms. Ding has about 17 years' experience in accounting, financial and
infernal control aspects. Prior fo joining the Group, she has worked in
certain sizeable enterprises as financial manager and also worked in the
auditing and business consulting division of a PRC accounting firm,
mainly responsible for internal control review engagements.

Mr. Yang Xianbo (#85K%4%), aged 56, joined the Group as
general manager of Jiangsu Xingyu in November 2012 and is
responsible for overseeing the Group's dredging operations.

Mr. Yang has more than 20 years of experience in the dredging industry.
Mr. Yang has been responsible for the development, implementation and
management of a number of nafional key dredging projects and he is
highly renowned in the dredging industry. Prior to joining Jiangsu Xingyu,
Mr. Yang was appointed as the deputy director of Changjiang Wuhan
Waterway Engineering Company*  (RIIHZMBLERBEBE), o
sizeable state-owned dredging enterprise under the Ministry of Transport (32
BIEH ). He was awarded with the Certificate of Senior Engineer in
(B TSR TIEA) by the Ministry of
Communication (3238%8) (now known as the Ministry of Transport (323
iE#5E0)) in 2006 and the Certificate of Registration of Constructor of First
Class* (—#323&Em) by the Ministry of Construction (3% 2F) in 2008.

waterways engineering*

Mr. Wang Julin (EF#M %), aged 69, joined the Group as the
chief engineer in August 2010, and is responsible for the management
of the engineering depariment of Jiangsu Xingyu. Mr. Wang studied the
profession of ports and waterways at Hohai University (Ji] 78 A£2) of the
PRC (formerly known as East China Technical University of Water
Resources (ZEER/KFIEPE)) from 1974 to 1978. He was awarded the
Certificate of Senior Engineer in waterways engineering by the Ministry
of Communications (33@#F) (now known as the Ministry of Transport (32
BEEH L) in 1998 and was awarded the Certificate of Registration of
Constructor of First Class by the Ministry of Construction (Zz%EF) in
2008.

Mr. Wang has over 30 years of experience in the implementation,
management and administration of waterways engineering. Before
joining the Group, he worked for the engineering department of
Changjiang Wuhan Waterway Engineering Company* (K)TH ZfiE
T#2) for about 15 years and has held the positions of officer and
project manager. He has been responsible for sizeable dredging projects
in the PRC. Thereaffer, Mr. Wang worked in a subsidiary under
Changjiang Wuhan Waterway Engineering Company* (K)LH ZfiE
T#2B) as a manager for about three years. In 1996, Mr. Wang re-
joined Changjiang Wuhan Waterway Engineering Company for about
eight years and has held the positions of deputy chief and chief of the
engineering and business depariment and deputy chief engineer (consfructor
of first class). He has been responsible for the inspection, negotiation and
overseeing of various projects and entering into of relevant contracts.
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The Board is pleased to present the corporate governance report for the
Review Period. This report describes how the Group has applied its
corporate governance practices fo its daily acfivifies.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE CODE

The Group's corporate governance framework bases on two main
beliefs:

e We are well-committed fo maintaining good corporate governance

practices and procedures; and

e We recognise the need fo adopt practices that improve ourselves
continuously for a quality management.

The Group has applied these principles and adopted all code provisions,
where applicable, of the CG Code contained in Appendix 14 to the
Listing Rules as our own code of corporafe governance. The Directors
consider that the Company has complied with all applicable code
provisions under the CG Code.

MODEL CODE FOR DIRECTORS’ SECURITIES
TRANSACTIONS

The Company has adopted the Model Code as the Company's code of
conduct for dealings in securities of the Company by the Directors. In
response fo specific enquiry made by the Company, each of the Directors
confirmed that he/she had complied with the required standard of
dealings and the code of conduct regarding securities fransactions by the

Directors throughout the Review Period.

CONSTITUTIONAL DOCUMENTS

No amendment to the memorandum and articles of association of the

Company was made during the Review Period.
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BOARD OF DIRECTORS

Board Composition

As at the date of this annual report, the Board comprises three executive
Direcfors and three independent non-executive Direcfors.

Composition of the Board and its changes during the Review Period and

up fo date of this annual report are as follows:

Executive Directors:

M. Liv Kaijin

Mr. Wu Bin (resigned on 31 March 2020
Mr. Wu Xuze

Ms. Zhou Shuhua

Independent non-executive Directors:
Mr. Huan Xuedong

Mr. Chan Ming Sun Jonathan

M. Liang Zequan

The biographical defails of the incumbent Direcfors and the relationships
among them are set out in the section headed “Directors’ and Senior
Management's Profile” of this annual report.

The Board believes that it has a balanced composition of executive
Direcfors and independent non-executive Direcfors and there is an
independent element on the Board, which can effectively exercise
independent judgement. As at 31 December 2020, the Company has
three independent non-executive Directors who provide the Group with
adequate check and balance. Each of them is considered to be
independent and has complied with the provisions set out in rule 3.13 of
the Listing Rules. All of them are identified as such in all corporate
communications that disclose the names of the Directors. Their functions
are not only limited to a restricted scope and they have contributed to the
Group with diversified industry expertise, and advised on the Group's
management and proceedings.

One of the three independent non-executive Directors, namely Mr. Chan
Ming Sun Jonathan, has professional qualifications in accounting or

related financial management expertise.
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BOARD OF DIRECTORS (CONTINUED)

Responsibilities of the Board and Delegation

The Board is responsible for the approval and monitoring of the Group's
overall sfrategies and policies, approval of business plans, evaluation of
its performance, overseeing the management and in charge of corporate
governance function. It is also responsible for promoting the success of
the Group and its businesses by directing and supervising the Group's

affairs.

The Board delegates day-fo-day operations of the Group to executive
Direcfors and senior management while reserving cerfain key matters for
its approval. Board committees for specific functions are also set up fo
ensure efficient Board operations. The respective functions and
responsibilities reserved to the Board and those delegated to Board

commiftees have been clearly sef out in their respective terms of reference.

Decisions of the Board are communicated fo the management through

execufive Directors who have aftended the Board meetings.

Corporate Governance Functions

The Board is responsible for performing the corporate governance duties
of the Company including:

[a)  to develop and review the Company’s policies and practices on

corporote governance;

[b)  to review and monifor the fraining and continuous professional
development of the Directors and senior management;

[c)  to review and monitor the Company's policies and pracfices in

compliance with legal and regulatory requirements;

[d) to develop, review and monitor the code of conduct and
compliance manual (if any) applicable to employees and the

Directors; and

le) to review the Company's compliance with the CG Code and

disclosure in the corporate governance report.

During the Review Period, the Board reviewed the compliance with the
CG Code and the disclosure in this corporate governance report and the

training and continuous professional development of the Directors.
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BOARD OF DIRECTORS (CONTINUED)

Chairman and Chief Executive Officer

The roles of the chairman and the chief executive officer are segregated
and are held by Mr. Liv Kaijin and Mr. Wu Xuze respectively. Mr. Liu
Kaijin, being the chairman, is responsible for the management of the
Board and Mr. Wu Xuze, being the chief executive officer of the
Company, is responsible for the day-to-day management of the Group's

businesses.

Appointments, Re-election and Removal of
Directors

Each of the executive Directors is engaged on a Director's service
contract with the Company. The letters of appointment of independent
non-executive Directors also set out the specific terms and conditions
relative to their respective appointment. All remuneration paid to executive
Directors are covered by respective service confracts, and all
remuneration paid to independent non-executive Directors are covered by
respective lefters of appointment. Details of the terms of appointment of
the Directors are disclosed in the section “Direcfor’s Service Confracts” of

the Directors’ Report in this annual report.

Pursuant to the Articles, any Director appointed by the Board shall hold
office until the next following general meeting of the Company and shall
then be eligible for re-election. Also, pursuant fo the Arficles, at each
annual general meeting, one-third of the Directors for the time being (or,
if their number is not three or a multiple of three, then the number nearest
fo but not less than one-third) shall refire from office by rotation, provided
that every Director (including the independent non-executive Directors)
shall be subject to refirement by rofation at least once every three years.
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BOARD OF DIRECTORS (CONTINUED)

Board Meetings

The Group adopted the practice of holding Board meetings for executive
Directors regularly and holding Board meetings that included both
execufive Direcfors and non-executive Directors af least four times every
year. The Board will also meet on other occasions when a board-evel

decision on a particular matter is required.

Generally, at least 14-days’ notice for the Company's regular Board
meeting, and reasonable time for all other meefings, would be given
prior fo such meetings. Agenda for a meeting are sent fo all Direcfors
prior fo the meefing. The Directors will receive details of agenda items for

decision at least three days before regular Board meetings.

The Direcfors consider and approve the Company's matters by way of
written resolutions circulated to them as and when necessary. If a Director
has a material interest in a matter fo be considered by the Board, a
physical meefing will be held to discuss the matter instead of seeking

Direcfors’ written consent by way of circulation of written resolution.

In order to ensure that Board procedures, and all applicable rules and
regulations are followed, all Directors are able to access the Company's
company secretary for advice from fime fo time. Moreover, upon
reasonable request, the Direcfors will be able to seek independent
professional advice in appropriate circumstances at the Company’s
expense. All Directors were given an opportunity to include matters in the

agenda of meetings for discussion.
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BOARD OF DIRECTORS (CONTINUED) EET s

Board Meetings (Continued) EESSE @

To ensure a competent Board operation, all Directors gave sufficient time AHRESENENEE NOEHE FFEES
and atfention fo the affairs of the Group during the Review Period. During EAREBENEERARS BRI RE - RO E
the Review Period, eight Board meetings (excluding delegated HE - BERET N \XEEeex(TeERELZEeS
committees’ meetings| were held and attendance of each Director is set ) REENHEFBELAHIOT

out as follows:

Number of
meetings held
Number of  during term

Name of Director attendance of office
ERHARET
EEnE HEIRE HWEBRXE
Executive Directors HITEF
Mr. Liu Kaijin 215 & 8 8
Mr. Wu Bin (resigned on 31 March 2020 MR EE(R_ZBE_TF=HA=+—HEHE) 1 1
Mr. Wu Xuze RBEESE S 8
Ms. Zhou Shuhua JEREE 2+ 7 8
Independent non-executive Directors BB ITEE
Mr. Huan Xuedong BEREL 8 8
Mr. Chan Ming Sun Jonathan PR &7 42 5 A4 8 8
Mr. liang Zequan REBRESE 8 8
Minutes of Board meetings and meetings of Board committees are kept EExeonhEEZEees ’;‘;%i B Okl NGIEA
by the company secretary or other duly authorised person. All minutes are EREIFREENEMATRE ST A

open for inspection by any Director on reasonable nofice. Such minutes R TR ERNEEEY - % ’;; I046% P S EE
are recorded in sufficient defail of the matters considered and decisions MR EZENEAREEN AT EE2 R
reached. Draft and final versions of minutes of Board meetings are sent fo B RE R ERe R E S AE S A mEEY
all Direcfors for their comments and records. ERARRE -
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BOARD OF DIRECTORS (CONTINUED)

Directors’ Training

As part of an ongoing process of directors’ training, the Company
updates Directors on the latest development regarding the Listing Rules
and other applicable regulatory requirements from time to time, o ensure
compliance and enhance their awareness of good corporate governance

practices.
According to the Directors’ training records provided fo the Company,

the training undertaken by all Directors during the Review Period is

summarised as below:

Name of Director

EESwWm
EEEI

EREERERIZ B0 ARATHRAZSREMH
ERALTRANEMCEREEREIRTERESR

NEREFETZE RN
MR

BEHRIFEEERT

RERAABERRZESTEIRER FEESROE
HREZNEISRmT

Reading materials and/or
attending training courses
relevant to the Company’s
business, to their duties and
responsibilities and/or to
corporate governance or
regulation

MBEMBR B
HERIREARTER
ARREYK HRENBBER

EEnA BER REEERIBRTE
Executive Directors: HITEE :

Mr. Liu Kaijin 2R 4 v
Mr. Wu Bin (resigned on 31 March 2020 AREE(MR—_E-_TF=A=+—H&MT) -
Mr. Wu Xuze RB2%EE v
Ms. Zhou Shuhua EREE 2+ 4
Independent non-executive Direciors: BUIHFHITES :

Mr. Huan Xuedong BEREL 7
Mr. Chan Ming Sun Jonathan PR &7 48 55 A4 7
Mr. liang Zequan RERSEE v

Orientation is provided fo newly appointed Direcfors [if any) upon their
appointments. Each of them will receive a director's manual from the
Company which contains a package of orientation materials on the
operations and businesses of the Group, together with information
relating to the duties and responsibilities of directors under the Listing

Rules and statutory regulations.
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BOARD COMMITTEES

Remuneration Committee

The Company has set up a remuneration committee with specific terms of
reference with appropriate modification when necessary, which state
clearly its authority and duties. To make consistency of the Remuneration
Committee’s terms of reference with such terms of reference of other
Board committees, the Board adopted the current terms of reference of

the Remuneration Committee in January 2019.

The principal responsibilities of the Remuneration Committee include
making recommendations to the Board on the Group's policy and
structure for all remuneration of Directors and senior management and
reviewing the specific remuneration packages of all executive Directors
and senior management by reference fo corporate goals and objectives

resolved by the Board from time fo time.

During the Review Period, the Remuneration Committee conducted review
of the remuneration policy and structure of the Directors and senior
management which took into account the prevailing market condition and
the responsibilities and performance of individual members. No change
fo the terms was proposed fo the Board by the Remuneration Committee.
Further, the Remuneration Committee made recommendations to the
Board on the remuneration packages for the executive Directors and the

independent non-executive Direcfors during the Review Period.
Pursuant to code provision B.1.5 of the CG Code, the remuneration of
the members of the senior management by band for the Review Period is

set out below:

In the band of
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Number of individuals

& & BEAH
Nil to HK$ 1,000,000 £ % 1,000,000 7T 4
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BOARD COMMITTEES (coNTINUED)

Remuneration Committee (Continued)

During the Review Period, one commitiee meeting was held and the
affendance of each member as fo the said meetings is set out as follows:

Name of Director

=

BEEZEE W

FMEEE m

REEHE ERT-RZ8gg# SXNEHEL
MEZNBE RN MT

Number of
meetings held

Number of  during term
attendance of office
R RET

IR E HEBEXE

Independent Non-executive Directors:
Mr. Huan Xuedong BERGHE
Mr. Chan Ming Sun Jonathan BR &7 42 5 A4
Mr. liang Zequan® RERFHE!

BB TESE

* Mr. liang Zequan acted as the chairman of the Remuneration Committee.

Nomination Committee

The Company has set up a nomination committee with specific terms of
reference with appropriate modification when necessary, which state
clearly its authority and duties. To keep the Nomination Committee’s
terms of reference in line with the Listing Rules amendments relating to
director nomination policy, the Board adopted the current terms of
reference of the Nomination Committee in January 2019.

The principal duties of the Nomination Committee include reviewing the
size, struciure and composition of the Board, identifying individuals
qualified to become Board members, making recommendations to the
Board on the appointment or re-appointment and succession planning of
Directors, and assessing the independence of the independent non-

executive Directors.
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BOARD COMMITTEES (coNTINUED)

Nomination Committee (Continued)

The Company recognises and embraces the benefits of diversity of the
Board members. The following measurable objectives for the purpose of
implementation of the board diversity policy are adopted:

a)  at least 40% of the members of the Board shall be non-executive
directors or independent non-executive directors;

(o)  at least 65% of the members of the Board shall have attained
bachelor’s degree or above;

[c)  at least 30% of the members of the Board shall have obtained
accounting or other professional qualifications;

(d)  af least 75% of the members of the Board shall have more than
seven years of experience in the industry he is specialised in; and

le)  atleast 50% of the members of the Board shall have China-related
work experience.

Under the director nomination policy of the Company, when making
recommendations fo the Board relating to the appointment or
re-appointment of proposed Directors, the Nomination Committee shall
take into the following factors:

[a)  character and integrity of the proposed Direcfors;

[b)  qualifications including skills, knowledge, experience, and
professional expertise possessed by the proposed Directors that are
relevant to the operations of the Group;

[c)  the proposed Directors” willingness fo devote adequate time to
discharge dufies as a member of the Board and the Board
committees;

[d)  diversity in all aspects, including but not limited to gender, age,
cultural and educational background, professional qualification,
skills, knowledge and experience;

le)  requirements of the proposed Directors’ independence set out in
rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules for nominating an independent non-
executive Director; and

[l any other relevant factors as may be determined by the
Nomination Committee or the Board from time to time.
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BOARD COMMITTEES (coNTINUED)

Nomination Committee (Continued)

The Nomination Commitiee has reviewed the size and composition of the
Board and the independence of independent non-executive Directors and
also made recommendations to the Board in relation fo the re-
appointment of the refiing Direcfors for the Review Period. The
measurable objectives set out above for the purpose of implementation of

the board diversity policy are achieved.

During the Review Period, one commitiee meeting was held and the
affendance of each member as to the said meefings is sef ouf as follows:

Name of Director
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REBEHE BERT—RZEeEH SHEHEL
mEHEABERE AT
Number of

meetings held

Number of  during term
attendance of office
ERARET

R E HEBEXE

=

Executive Director: HITEE :

Mr. Liv Kaijin® ZIFE LT
Independent Non-execuive Directors: BUIHFHTESF :
Mr. Chan Ming Sun Jonathan R 88 48 5 &

Mr. liang Zequan REBREE

* Mr. liu Kaijin acted as the chairman of the Nomination Commitiee.

Audit Committee

The Company has esfablished an audit committee with specific written
terms of reference with appropriate modification when necessary. To
keep the Audit Committee’s terms of reference in line with the Listing Rules
amendments, the Board adopted the current terms of reference of the
Audit Committee in January 2019.
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Audit Committee (Continued)

The major role and function of the Audit Committee are to ensure the
mainfenance of proper relationship with the Company's auditor, the
esfablishment of proper review and confrol arrangements relating to
infernal control and risk management systems, financial reporting and the

compliance to applicable reporting requirements.

The Audit Committee reviewed the consolidated financial statements for
the six months ended 30 June 2020 and consolidated financial
statements for the Review Period of the Group, including the Group's
adopted accounting principles and practices, the continuing connected
transactions of the Company, inferal confrol systems and financial
reporfing matters [in conjunction with the external auditor for the annual
results). The Audit Committee also monitored the effectiveness of the
external audit and oversaw the appointment, remuneration and terms of
engagement of the Company’'s external auditor, as well as its
independence. The Audit Committee endorsed the accounting freatments
adopted by the Company and, to the best of its ability assured itself that
the disclosures of the financial information in this annual report comply
with the applicable accounting standards and Appendix 16 fo the Listing

Rules.

As at 31 December 2020, the Audit Commitiee comprised three
independent non-executive Directors and regular Audit Committee
meetings were held pursuant fo its ferms of reference. During the Review
Period, three commitiee meetings were held in the attendance of the
external auditor, and the attendance of each member as to the said

meetings is set out as follows:
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Number of
meetings held

Number of  during term

Name of Director attendance of office

R R ERT

EEpgA R E HEBERE
Independent Non-executive Directors: BB ITESE -

Mr. Huan Xuedong BERKE 3 3

Mr. Chan Ming Sun Jonathan® PR &8 48 S Y 3 3

Mr. liang Zequan RERTE 3 3

* Mr. Chan Ming Sun, Jonathan acted as the chairman of the Audit Committee.
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DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN COMPETING
BUSINESSES

None of the Direcfors or the management of the Company or their
respective close associates (as defined under the Listing Rules) had any
inferesfs in a business which competes or may compete with the business
of the Group, or had any other conflict of interest with the Group during

the year.

The Company has received from each of the Direcfors an annual

confirmation of his/her undertaking as fo non-competition.

NON-COMPETITION UNDERTAKINGS

The controlling  Shareholders (namely Mr. Lliv and VWangji  Llimited
["Wangii")), through a deed of non-competition dated 24 May 2011 (as
amended by a supplemental deed of non-competition dated 2 April
2015 ("Supplemental Deed")), have given underfakings ("Undertakings”)
to the Company not fo directly or indirectly engage in the business which
competes or may compete with the Group, on terms and conditions as
disclosed in the prospecius of the Company dated 8 June 2011
|"Prospectus”). For defails of the Undertakings, please refer to pages 162
to 165 of the Prospectus. For details of the Supplemental Deed, please
refer to the Company’s announcement dated 2 April 2015.

The status of compliance with the Undertakings by the controlling

Shareholders during the Review Period is as follows:

[1)  the Board received from each of Mr. Lliuv and Wangji a
confirmation (i) of compliance with the Undertakings for the Review
Period, and (i) that during the Review Period, neither they nor their
close associates (as defined in the Listing Rules) had any interest in
any project or business opportunity (otherwise than through their
interests held through the Group) which relate to the business

activities by the Group;

[2)  none of the Direcfor are aware of any circumstances which
indicate that the controlling Shareholders or their close associates

are in breach of the Undertakings during the Review Period; and

[3)  save for the terms as amended by the Supplemental Deed, the
ferms of the Undertakings have remained unchanged since the
Company's listing on the Stock Exchange in June 201 1.
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FINANCIAL REPORTING AND AUDIT

The Direcfors acknowledged their responsibility for preparing the financial
stafements that give a frue and fair view in accordance with applicable
statutory requirements and accounting standards and the requirements of
the Listing Rules.

The Group adopted the going concern basis in preparing its financial
statements. Except from the issue discussed under note 2 fo the
consolidated financial statements on page 95 in relation fo the loss and
the net current liabilities of the Group, the Directors were not aware of
any other material uncertainties relating to events or conditions which
may casf significant doubt upon the Group's ability to continue as a

going concern.

A sftafement by the external auditor of the Company about its reporting
responsibilities is set out in the section headed “Independent Auditor’s
Report” in this annual report.

During the Review Period, remuneration in respect of non-audit services,
namely, the review of the interim report and the sfatement of indebtedness
provided by the Company's exfernal auditor amounted to about
RMB412,000. The remuneration in respect of audit service was

amounted to about RMB 1,648,000.

INTERNAL CONTROL AND RISK
MANAGEMENT

The Board acknowledges its responsibility for overseeing the Group's risk
management and infernal confrol systems and reviewing their
effectiveness at least annually. The Audit Committee assists the Board in
fulfilling its oversight role in the Group's risk management and infernal

controls.

The risk management and internal control systems are to ensure that the
Group's assets are safeguarded, relevant rules and regulations are
complied with, reliable financial and accounting records are maintained
in accordance with relevant accounting standards and regulatory
reporfing requirements, and key risks that may impact on the Group's
performance are appropriately identified and managed. However, the
systems are designed to manage rather than eliminate the risk of failures
fo achieve business objectives and can only provide reasonable and not

absolute assurance against material misstatement or loss.
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INTERNAL CONTROL AND RISK
MANAGEMENT (CONTINUED)

The Group has an internal audit function reporting directly to the Audit
Committee. The role of internal audit is to evaluate and improve the
effectiveness of internal control, risk management and business
governance processes. The regular work of the internal audit covers the

major acfivities of the Group's operations.

An information disclosure policy is in place fo ensure pofential inside
information being captured and confidentiality of such information being
maintained until consistent and timely disclosure is made.

During the Review Period, the Audit Commitiee not only reviewed the
infernal audit's report but also the certain key risk management and
infernal control issues identified by the external auditor. The Board has
reviewed the effectiveness of the internal control and risk management
systems of the Group, covering all material financial, operational and
compliance controls and concluded that the key areas of the Groups'
infernal confrol and risk management systems are reasonably and

adequately implemented to their safisfaction, with room of improvement.

COMPANY SECRETARY

Ms. Wong Kwan Lai has been the company secretary of the Company
since 20 June 2016 and is a fultime employee of the Company. The
company secrefary is responsible for ensuring good information flow
within the Board and that Board's policy and procedures are followed as
well as for providing advice on govemnance matters. For the year ended
31 December 2020, Ms. Wong confirmed that she had faken no less
than 15 hours of relevant professional training fo update her skills and

knowledge.

COMMUNICATION WITH SHAREHOLDERS AND
INVESTORS

General Meetings with Shareholders

The Company communicates with its Shareholders through its annual
report, interim report and sfatutory and voluntary announcements. The
Direcfors, company secrefary or appropriate members of senior
management, where appropriate, also respond fo inquiries from

Shareholders and investors on a timely basis.
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COMMUNICATION WITH SHAREHOLDERS
AND INVESTORS (coNTINUED)

General Meetings with Shareholders (Continued)

The Company's annual general meeting provides a useful platform for
direct communication between the Board and the Shareholders. Separate
resolutions are proposed on each substantially separate issue at the
general meetings. The annual general meeting for the year ended 31
December 2019 (2019 AGM”) was held on 17 June 2020.

Resolutions put to vote at the general meetings of the Company are taken
by poll. Procedures regarding the conduct of the poll are explained to the
Shareholders at the commencement of each general meefing. The poll
results are posted on the websites of the Stock Exchange and the

Company respectively on the same day as the poll.

Pursuant fo code provision A.6.7 of the CG code, independent non-
executive Direcfors should attend general meetings. All Directors (including
independent non-executive Direcfors| who held office af time of the 2019
AGM attended such general meeting. Representative of the Company’s
external auditor also attended the 2019 AGM.

Shareholders’ Rights to Convene Extraordinary
General Meeting and Put Forward Proposals at
General Meetings

In accordance with article 64 of the Articles, exiraordinary general
meetfings shall be convened on the requisition of one or more
Shareholderls) holding, at the date of deposit of the requisition, not less
than onetenth of the paid up capital of the Company having the right of
voting at general meetings. Such requisition shall be made in writing fo
the Direcfors or the Company's company secretary for the purpose of
requiring an extraordinary general meeting fo be called by the Directors
for the fransaction of any business specified in such requisition. Such
meeting shall be held within two months after the deposit of such
requisition. If within 21 days of such deposit the Directors fail to proceed
fo convene such meeting, the requisitionist(s| himself (themselves) may do
so in the same manner, and all reasonable expenses incurred by the
requisitionist(s) as a result of the failure of the Directors shall be reimbursed

fo the requisitionist(s) by the Company.
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COMMUNICATION WITH SHAREHOLDERS
AND INVESTORS (coNTINUED)

Shareholders’ Rights to Convene Extraordinary
General Meeting and Put Forward Proposals at
General Meetings (Continued)

There is no provision in the Arficles sefting out procedures for
Shareholders to put forward a resolution at general meetings.
Shareholders who wish to move a resolution may request the Company
fo convene a general meeting following the procedures set out in the
preceding paragraph.

In accordance with arficle 110 of the Articles, if a Shareholder intends to
propose a person other than a Director for election as a Director at any
general meeting, the Shareholder concerned shall lodge with Hong Kong
head office or Hong Kong share registrar of the Company for the
affention of the Board and the company secrefary of the Company (i) a
written notice of his/her intention to propose that person for election as a
Direcfor; and (ii] a wrien notice by that person of his/her willingness to
be elected as a Director together with the necessary information within
the period commencing no earlier than the day after the dispatch of the
nofice of the general meeting and ending no later than seven clear days

prior to the date of such general meeting.

Investor Relations

The Company endeavours to disclose all material information about the
Group to all interested parties as widely and timely as possible. It has
disclosed all necessary information to the Shareholders in compliance
with the Listing Rules. VWhen announcements are made through the Stock
Exchange, the same information will be made available on the
Company's website. During the year ended 31 December 2020, the
Company has issued announcements which can be viewed on the

Company's website.

Shareholders and invesfors may at any time send their enquiries and
concemns fo the Board in writing fo the company secrefary at the
Company's office in Hong Kong or through the email address:
info@cdep.com.hk. Shareholders may also raise their enquiries in general

meefings.
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Environmental, Social and Governance Report
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The Group is committed to fulfilling its corporate social responsibility
through working with the key stakeholders including the employees,
cusfomers, suppliers and Shareholders.

We have given full consideration fo issues that are of concern fo major
stakeholders and have adhered to the principles of materiality,
completeness, comparability and stakeholder involvement, all of which
form the contents of this report. This report spans over one financial year
from 1 January 2020 fo 31 December 2020 and covers information of
the Group — our Hong Kong and Yancheng, PRC headquarters as well
as dredging and property management businesses in the PRC.

This report highlights the Group's sustainability efforts in environmental
and social aspects as stipulated in the Environmental, Social and
Governance Reporting Guide under Appendix 27 to the Listing Rules.
We shall explain this in ferms of four areas namely, environment
profection, employment and labour practices, operating practices and

community investment.

For details of our corporate governance, please refer to the corporate

governance report included in this annual report.

ENVIRONMENTAL PROTECTION

Emissions

The Group recognises the imporfance of good environmental
management and is committed fo protecting the environment. We factor
our environmental concerns info our business processes and strive to
continuing to improve our environmental performance in compliance with

the applicable regulations and industry-specific guidelines.

Owing fo its business nature, the Group's air emissions are mainly
generated from the dredging business by the consumption of fuels. The
Group’s greenhouse gas ("GHG"| emissions consist of the direct
emissions from the consumption of fuels by our dredging fleef and
vehicles, and the indirect emission from the consumption of electricity and
water at Xingyu International Houseware Plaza (formerly known as
Easyhome Yancheng Shopping Mdll] and the Group's offices and the
refuse produced from the shopping mall, construction project sites and

offices.
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ENVIRONMENTAL PROTECTION (CONTINUED)

Emissions (Continued)

The Group has calculated the air and GHG emissions during the
Reporting Period as follows:
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Types of emissions BB B 2019
—E—NEF
(Kg F52)
Air emission EE R BEBR
Nitrogen Oxides (NOx| B2 4,738,537 5,273,706
Sulphur Oxides (SOx mEiyw 23,534 26,174
Particulate Matter (PM) LR )| 57 66
Direct GHG emission EEBEREIEN
Carbon Dioxide (CO,) (scope 1) —&1uhix (BE 1) 9,613,628 14,885,782
Methane (CH,) R e 113 161
Nitrous Oxide (N,O) =R (R 141 154
Indirect GHG emission HERERBIHEN
Carbon Dioxide [CO,) (scope 2) — &1l (BE2) 306,662 381,406

During the Reporting Period, the Group's major GHG emission was
carbon dioxide and ifs intensity was 34,787 Kg CO,e per million of

revenue.

The Group always encourages ifs employees to save resources in ifs
daily operation fo reduce GHG emissions. We conduct regular
mainfenance and inspection of vessels and vehicles not only to maintain
their performance but also to improve fuel efficiency. We remind our
employees fo make good use of electronic systems for message
distribution and archiving and use double-sided printing and
photocopying fo reduce paper consumption. Further, we encourage them
fo reduce carbon emissions from their daily lives, such as using public
transport and walking or riding a bicycle for short journeys.
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ENVIRONMENTAL PROTECTION (CONTINUED)

Emissions (Continued)

The Group sfrictly complies with the relevant national maritime regulations
fo identify and manage the released substances during dredging fo
ensure their safe freatment, transportation, storage, recycling and
disposal. We strive for high accuracy in both positioning and excavation
during the dredging process fo ensure proper removal of excavated
materials [including mud and solid matter] and pollutants and to minimise
overexcavation and soil agitation. We also take antidiffusion and
leakage measures fo ensure high concentrations of inhalation in order to
avoid pollution by the contaminants in their suspended state in the
surrounding water. Besides, in the dredging process the excavated
materials and confaminated sediments are stored on the dredgers in
accordance with the relevant national regulations. We transport them fo
the shore through barges or pipeline to avoid their leakage which may
cause secondary pollution fo water. Finally, we arange qualified
recyclers for their disposal.

In the horizons of wasfe management and recycling, the Group requires
our employees to keep contaminated substances in separation and treat
wastes in classification. Excavated materials and contaminated sediments
in the dredging process are stored on the dredgers and transported to the
shore according to the relevant national laws and regulations. Other
wasfes are sfored in specialised storage areas and handled in
accordance with the Standard for Pollution Control on Hazardous Waste
Storage. The Group has commissioned qualified companies fo recycle
and declare under the registration system pursuant to the relevant laws

and regulations.

During the Reporting Period, the Group recorded the following waste:
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Types of wastes JBE ¥ 58 B 2019

—E-NF

(ton [8)

General Waste — AR 174 201

Diesel dregs L Seh & 24 25
Notes: Kiaz -

1. The general waste included kitchen waste as the Group offered free meals

fo crews of dredging vessels in the PRC.

2. The waste produced from the Group's Hong Kong office was not counted

as it was immaterial in view of the whole Group's waste production.
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ENVIRONMENTAL PROTECTION (coNTINUED)

Emissions (Continued)

In addition, due to the nafure of businesses, the Group does not have
physical products for sale and thus the disclosure on the use of packaging

material is inapplicable to the Group.

During the Reporting Period, the Group is not aware of any non-
compliance of laws and regulations that have a significant impact on the
Group relating to air and GHG emissions, discharges into water and
land, and generation of hazardous and non-hazardous waste.

Use of resources

The resources used by our Group are principally affributed fo fuels
consumed by dredging fleet af construction project sites, and also

electricity and water consumed at its offices and the shopping mall.

With the aim fo better manage the use of resources, the Group performs
assessment annually. The Group has adopted green office practices to
reduce natural resource and energy consumption, e.g., installing LED
lamp fo save energy, and employees are encouraged to develop the
habit of energy conservation, e.g., switching off lights, computers and
other electronic appliances before leaving the offices. The Group strives
fo utilise felephone conferences to minimise face-toface meetings in order
fo reduce petrol consumption in travelling and avoid unnecessary business
trips. During the Reporting Period, the Group had an electricity
consumption of approximately 388,400 kilowatthours (2019: 483,500

kilowatt-hours).

From the perspective of water management, the Group has provided
signs fo remind ifs staff fo reduce water consumption. We also regularly
check meter readings and conduct the detection of hidden leaks in water
pipes. If hidden water leakage or tap dripping is found, we will arrange
for repair prompily fto avoid wasting water resources. During the
Reporting Period, the Group's water consumption was about 1,600 fons,
representing a decrease of 3.4% as compared with that of last year.

Environment and Natural Resources

Dredging constfruction projects affect the environment and natural
resources. The Group is committed fo managing the impact of its
operations related to the environment and natural resources and

preventing significant adverse impacts on the environment.
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ENVIRONMENTAL PROTECTION (CONTINUED)

Environment and Natural Resources (Continued)

We care the natural environment. Thus, the Group deploys measures to
profect the environment in its dredging business, by which we hope fo
confribute to the profection of the environment. Our environmental
profection dredging fechnology outperforms the traditional technology as
it does not cause secondary pollution and conforms with the keynote of
China's environmental profection policies. Our sludge dewatering
equipment is capable of continuous operation and meeting the
requirements and standards of dewatering volume without adding
solidification materials such as lime or concrete during operation. It does
not change the acidity and alkaline property of the mud plate affer
dewatering and can be used in sludge soil resource recovery and reuse
or otherwise can be tuned info harmless environmental protection bury.
The remaining water after processing is clear and up to the standard,
which can be directly redischarged into the lake.

Environmental impact is also fully faken into consideration when the

Group makes investment decisions.

EMPLOYMENT AND LABOUR PRACTICES

Employment

The policy of mainfaining a good working condition is a people-oriented
principle. In relation to personnel management affairs on staff hiring,
promotion, performance evaluation and compensation, the Group
esfablishes an employeremployee relationship based on legitimacy and
equality, which enables us to avoid any discrimination resulting from
different genders, ages, languages, nationalities and religions of

employees.

The Group recruits employees via various recruitment channels. The
recruitment of our employees embodies the principles of social
responsibilities such as the equality of employment, the respect for human
rights, the diversity of employees, the prohibition of use of child labour
and the prohibition of forced labour. The Group provides its new
employees with clear codes of pracfice, rules and regulations, as well as

information relating to salary and welfare system.
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EMPLOYMENT AND LABOUR PRACTICES
(CONTINUED)

Employment (Continued)

As of 31 December 2020, the Group had a total of 454 employees, of

which over 90% were employed for our operations in the PRC.

Because of the indusiry nafure of the Group’s dredging businesses, most
of the employees are male. In respect of the age, we have an even age
distribution among our staff. The staff composition as of 31 December
2020 is as shown below:
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In respect of salaries and benéfits, the Group provides a comprehensive
remuneration package of compensation and benefits for its employees.
The remuneration package is mainly defermined according to the
individual employee’s development and performance as well as the
Group's performance. The Group provides work lunch to those staff in the
PRC and also sefs aside reserved funds for activities, which help our
employees fo relieve siress and serve fo exemplify the Group's corporate
culture of the spirit of solidarity and cohesion among its employees. In
accordance with the applicable Chinese labour laws, the Group
contributes to various national social security insurances and one housing

fund for our mainland employees.

Recognising the importance of communication with its employees, the
Group encourages ifs employees to share their ideas with the Group and
raise questions or make suggestions to the Group. With the availability of
a wide array of communication channels, the Group offers its employees
access fo the lafest information of the Group through the Group's website.
Employees can also maintain timely and smooth communication with the
management of the companies within the Group through the

representatives of the employees.

FEMIE AKESETRETENFMER -
FMI2RETHR EASR SBEXRBEEIMA
- AEERBEANEBEIREIFTE THHEEALE
UXFEIAEREY REIHFETEENZE TR
AORBATAKENBEGERGNEEERETRR
N AEERBETELSHZNEMRESEANE TH
MERELERERREEATESR -

AEESHHRETINER BUEMOIZTECHNR
EoRMASEREBERER - AEETR/RE TR
SHENBRESE BIFUBBAEEBUGEIRN
B BITMEERETIRREAEEZ AR EERE
R 5 K B A0 IR 5 69 78 58



54 China Dredging Environment Protection Holdings Limited

FPEIZRRIZEREBRAE

Environmental, Social and Governance Report (Continued)
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EMPLOYMENT AND LABOUR PRACTICES
(CONTINUED)

Health and safety

The Group trains its employees to prevent occupational hazards from
fime fo time and distributes labour protection supplies and first aid
supplies to employees as needed. We also post up hazard warning
signs and labour protection supplies reminders in the relevant work
places. We provide to the relevant staff annual occupational health
examinations. Meanwhile, we also implement the labor profection
supplies regulatory mechanism. With regular inspections by dedicated
persons, we remind and request employees to wear labour profection

supplies to maintain their health and safety.

At the production safety level, each of the dredgers and the key safety
equipment must carry a valid ship inspection cerfificate issued by the ship
inspection agency. All the ships and offices are also equipped with first
aid and medicine boxes, and we also arrange stoff representatives to
participate in first aid fraining. At the individual's level, the Group
provides targeted safety frainings to newly recruited employees and then
strengthens their safety awareness through the implementation of the
menforing system in daily work. The Group has reinforced on-he-job
safety trainings by requiring all departiment heads responsible for work
injury to carry out safety frainings for their depariment staff and through a
series of measures fo enhance the safety awareness of employees in

order to avoid the recurrence of similar incidents.

Moreover, the Group has assigned dedicated people fo conduct regular
inspections of the fire equipment on the ships and in offices. We perform
full fire drills twice per year fo increase their awareness of fire safety and
fire prevention for all employees. As a result, no work accident was
recorded by the Group in the Reporting Period.

Development and training

The Group highly emphasises on the internal and external learning and
fraining fo enhance the educational standards and working abilities of

employees.

New employees are provided with on-board training fo help them
familiarise themselves with the culture, business and operation of the
Group. In addition, employees are also entfifled to various subsidies and
sponsorships for job-related training courses fo encourage lifelong

learning.
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Environmental, Social and Governance Report (Continued)

EMPLOYMENT AND LABOUR PRACTICES
(CONTINUED)

Labour standards

All work should be voluntarily performed and shall not involve forced
labour, debt repayment or confractually binded labour. The Group
prohibits child labour in any workplace. The Group also prohibits
discrimination based on race, colour, age, gender, sexual orientation,
ethnicity, disability, pregnancy, religion, political offiliation, union

membership or marital status in recruitment, treatment, promotion, etc.

The Group also strictly complies with the relevant PRC labour regulations
relating fo working hours, rest and holidays fo ensure the physical and
mental of all employees. Employees are not fo be forced fo work beyond
working hours and are entitled to overtime pay in accordance with the
local regulations. All employees perform works volunfarily and are not

subject to discrimination.

OPERATING PRACTICES

Supply chain management

Our suppliers are our business partners and we aim to mainfain a long-
ferm partnership with them to continuously improve the quality of our

products and services.

Based on supply chain social and environmental responsibilities
management, the principal raw material currently required by the Group’s
operation is diesel, and other resources involve owned and leased
dredgers, crews and subcontractors’ participation. There are over
hundred of dredger leasing companies, subcontractors and fuel suppliers

on our list.

In addition to facfors such as pricing, quality, facilities and experience,
and past performance evaluation, the Group also takes into account the
suppliers’ performance in fulfilling their social responsibilities and
commitment fo environmental protection in our selection of suppliers. VWe
require our suppliers to comply with the laws and regulations in countries
and regions where their operations are located and to operate in good
faith by adhering to their business ethics. The Group prohibits
discrimination arising from regional, racial, cultural and political factors in

the course of its supplier evaluation.
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Environmental, Social and Governance Report (Continued)
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OPERATING PRACTICES (cONTINUED)

Product responsibility

The Group attaches great importance fo the quality of dredging projects
and establishes comprehensive quality control procedures. The project
management feam is responsible for testing the quality of the dredging
projects. The project manager conducts daily on-site inspections and
supervise works fo ensure that the quality standards and regulations of the
dredging and related projects are carried out in accordance with the
customers’ requirements. After the completion of the works but before
handing over of the projects, customers will check whether the quality of
the projects meets their requirements.

During the Reporting Period, the Group did not have to rework for

completed project due fo the project quality issue.

Anti-corruption

The Group is committed to maintaining high ethical standards in all of our
operations and business activities. With this in mind, the Group is
dedicated fo a zerofolerance policy with regard to any involvement in

corruption or bribery activities of any type.

We include anticorruption code in our infernal operational manual to
ensure that employees understand the Group's expectations. The code
sefs out the legal responsibilities and ethical standards for the expected
behaviour of all employees. It explicitly prohibits employees from
soliciting, accepting, or offering bribes or any other form of advantage.
The code also provides guidance for daily interactions with customers,
suppliers, government officials and other business partners and outlines
the Group's expectations on employees with regard to conflicts of
inferests and encourages employees fo report any malpractice and
misconduct. The Group has set up hofline and email fo receive reports

from all employees.

COMMUNITY INVESTMENT

The Group emphasises the support of the community and actively
participates in charitable activities for the relief of poverty in the
communities in which we operafe our businesses. We encourage our
employees fo participate in volunteering activities organised by local
charities.
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The Direcfors are pleased fo present their report and the audited financial
statements of the Company and of the Group for the year ended 31
December 2020.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The principal activity of the Company is investment holding. Details of the
principal activities of ifs principal subsidiaries are sef out in nofe 42 to the
consolidated financial statements. There were no significant changes in
the nature of the Group's principal activities during the year.

BUSINESS REVIEW

A fair review of the business of the Group during the year and particulars
of important events affecting the Group that have occurred since the end
of the financial year 2020. as well as a discussion on the Group's future
business development are set out in the sections headed “Chairman’s
Statement” and “Management Discussion and Analysis” of this annual
report. In addition, defails of the Group's relationship with its employees,
customers and suppliers are disclosed in the section headed “Environmental,
Social and Governance Report” of this annual report. The above
discussions form part of this directors’ report.

Discussions on the compliance with applicable laws and regulations
which have a significant impact on the Group, the Group's major risks
and risk management and the Group's environmental policies and
performance can be found in the paragraphs below.

Compliance with the Applicable Laws and
Regulations which have a Significant Impact on
the Group

The Group and its acfivities are subject fo requirements under an array of
laws, including the Tendering and Biding Law of the People’s Republic of
China, the Implementation Rules of Tendering and Biding law of the
People’s Republic of China, the Contract Law of the People’s Republic of
China and the Production Safety Law of the People’s Republic of Ching,
as well as other applicable regulations, guidelines, policies and terms
issued or promulgated pursuant fo or in respect of these formal laws. In
addition, the Listing Rules are also applicable to the Group. The Group is
committed fo ensuring compliance with such requirements by taking
various measures using specific resources at all levels, including internal
monitoring and approval procedures, fraining and supervision over
different segments. The Group always attaches paramount importance to
compliance with the requirements under applicable laws and regulations,
despite the fact that such measures involve a lot of infernal resources and
incur additional operating costs.
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BUSINESS REVIEW (CONTINUED)

Compliance with the Applicable Laws and
Regulations which have a Significant Impact on
the Gl‘OUp (Continued)

Tendering and Biding Law of the People’s Republic of
China

According to the Tendering and Biding Law of the People’s Republic of
China and the Implementation Rules of Tendering and Biding Low of the
People’s Republic of China, when bidding for a new project, the Group
must, in accordance with the laws and regulations, have the capacity,
qualifications and conditions to undertake the project and respond in
defails to subsfantive requirements and conditions under the bidding
document, and must not, among others, collude with others to make a
tender offer, undermine fair competition by squeezing out other bidders,
bribe fenderee or any member of the bid evaluation committee, make a
bid at a price lower than cosfs, and participate in the bidding in the
event that the tenderee is interested in the Group and thus may
compromise bidding fairmess. In the case of any violation of relevant
regulations by the Group as a bidder, ifs bid shall be invalid and it may

be punished by the tenderee or relevant authorities.

Contract Law of the People’s Republic of China

The Confract law of the People’s Republic of China (“Confract Law”)
clearly stipulates, among others, qualifications of the contract parties,
contract forms, principal terms, cancellation conditions, contract validity,
constituent elements of invalid and cancelable contracts, fulfillment of
obligations, conditions for confract alteration and transfer, termination of
rights and obligations under a contract and liability for breach of
contract.

For construction contracts, the Contract Law sefs out specific requirements,
including: contracts for major national construction projects shall be
enfered into in accordance with statesstipulated procedures and  state-
approved documents such as investment plans and feasibility study
reports; with the consent of the confractee, the contractor can sublet part
of its contracted works to a third party, provided that construction of the
main sfructure of the construction project must be completed by the
contracfor who is forbidden to sublet its works o an unqualified entity.
After the completion of the construction project, the contractee shall timely
conduct acceptance inspection of the project pursuant to consfruction
acceptance rules and quality inspection standards issued by the state. If
the project passes the acceptance inspection, the confractee shall accept
it and make the agreed payment. In the case of the Group's failure to

fulfill its contractual obligations (either nondulfillment or non-agreed
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BUSINESS REVIEW (CONTINUED)

Comfliance with the Applicable Laws and
Regulations which have a Significant Impact on
the Group (Continued)

Contract Law of the People’s Republic of China

(Continued)
fulfillment] as the performing party and/or constructor, it must assume the

liability for breach of contract, including continuing to fulfill the contract,
taking remedial measures or compensating for any resulting losses. In the
case of the consfruction project quality falling below the agreed level due
fo the constructor's fault, the contractee has the right to require the
constructor fo repair, revamp or rebuild it within a reasonable period,
without any extra charge, and fo bear the liability for breach of contract
for the resulting delayed delivery (if any).

Production Safety Law of the People’s Republic of
China

According to the Production Safety law of the People's Republic of
China, for the production and operating unit held responsible, a major
accident may incur a fine of up to RMB20 million in addition to typical
liabilities including the required legal compensation. To ensure
compliance with the Production Safety Law of the People’s Republic of
China, the Group avoids production safety incidents by providing
fraining courses from fime fo time on production safety and emergency
rescue drills fo staff engaged in project design, construction, equipment
repair and mainfenance, safety supervision, efc. to ensure production

safety.

Compliance with Laws and Regulations
During the year ended 31 December 2020 and up fo the date of this
report, the Group has complied with relevant laws and regulations that

have a significant impact on the Group.

Annual Report 2020 —E_EEER 59

Directors’ Report (Continued)

EEgHE@

B i, S D S S e S e D i e
g, N, N N, N, N g, N g, N, N g, N g, Wi, N g, N, g N

XK E @

BEFTHAEBREE
KER m)

TEWERERE

(PEAREMBESEE) @)

B BEOABREREIAESBEHRAEEEIRSK
ERT B KBEEREFERT WER EXE
MU EIAREABEENETMA) -

(FEARANBZZEER)

RE(PEARKNBLRE24EER) BELERE =S
WOHARAEENEELE BB EREFREAER
EHRESAEEIN TR IRLREAESEE RPN
BAARB-_TFELHNE R RETF(PEARAN
Be2EEX) BREEREEH AEERKSE
TERF BT REBRENEE R2EBEEFEH
METTARRERLZE2EERERIMNESRERRE
BARBEEZZ -

BETLEERER
REBEE-_Z-_ZHF+_A=+—BHILEEREEAR
HHH AEEEETEHASEEEATENHRBE
BRER -



60 China Dredging Environment Protection Holdings Limited
Directors’ Report (Continued)

EEEHRE@®

BUSINESS REVIEW (CONTINUED)

Maijor Risks and Risk Management

The Board is well aware of its responsibility to maintain the effectiveness
of the Group's internal control and risk management systems. Such
systems are designed to manage risks of failed business objectives and
provide reasonable guarantee against material misrepresentation or

losses.

Business Risks

The Group's business risk factors include changes in the overall market
condifions, downward pressure on China's economy and the number
and progress of domestic projects in the entire industry, which may affect
the construction environment, setlement prices and capital tumnover rates
of its construction projects. The Board is responsible for overall business
management and review of major business decisions involving disclosure

of significant risks from time fo time.

Financial Risks

The Group has adopted a series of financial risk management policies to
manage its liquidity risk, credit term allocation risk, financing structure
risk, inferest rate risk and exchange rafe risk. The Board also periodically
reviews the Group's management accounts, capital structure and key

operational data.

Compliance Risks

The Board takes effective measures to ensure compliance of the
Company with the laws, regulations and rules. The Company has
engaged professional consultants and advisors to keep the Company
updated on the latest changes in the regulatory environment, including
legal, financial, environmental and operational development. The
Company also imposes strict policies to prohibit any unauthorised use or

publication of confidential information or insider information.

Operational Risks
The Company has adopted effective measures fo manage ifs operational
risks such as low equipment utilisation efficiency, high consumption of

consumables and frequent production failures.

The Board has reviewed the effectiveness of the Group's internal control
and risk management systems covering its business, financial, operational

and compliance risks, and is of the view that such systems are effective.
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BUSINESS REVIEW (CONTINUED)

Environmental Policies and Performance

We commit ourselves fo environmental protection in all aspects of
operations. Over the years, the Group has been doing its utmost fo
project the environment. The management of the Group has implemented
various measures and regulafions to make sure that we honor our
responsibilities for the environment. We regularly hold special internal
meetings with professional teams fo review environmental issues at the
construction sites and office areas and exchange ideas on environmental
improvement. The management of the Group will continue its efforts in
securing ongoing high environmental stfandards in major areas and key

links.

RESULTS AND DIVIDENDS

The Group's loss for the year ended 31 December 2020 and the
financial position of the Company and of the Group at that date are set

out in the accompanying financial statements.

The Directors do not recommend the payment of a final dividend for the
year ended 31 December 2020.

DIVIDEND POLICY

The Company's dividend policy sets out the guidelines for the Board to
defermine whether dividends are to be declared and paid and the level
of dividends to be paid fo the Shareholders. The Board has the discrefion
to declare and distribute dividends to the Shareholders, subject to the
Articles and all applicable laws and regulations and having regard to the

following factors:
[a)  the actual and expected financial performance of the Group;
[b)  refained earnings and distributable reserves of the Group;

[c)  the current and future operations, liquidity position and capital

requirements of the Group;

[d)  any restrictions on payment of dividends that may be imposed by
the financiers and other third parties of the Group;

le)  economic condition and other internal or external factors that may
that have an impact on the business or financial performance and

position of the Group; and
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DIVIDEND POLICY (CONTINUED)

[l any other factors that the Board deems appropriate.

The Board will review this policy as appropriate from time fo time.

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Details of movements in the property, plant and equipment of the Group
during the year are set ouf in note 17 to the consolidated financial
stafements.

SHARE CAPITAL

Defails of movements in the Company's share capital during the year are
sef out in note 33 to the consolidated financial statements.

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There are no provisions for pre-emptive rights under the Arficles or the
laws of the Cayman Islands, being the jurisdiction in which the Company
was incorporated, which would oblige the Company to offer new Shares

on a pro rafa basis to existing Shareholders.

EQUITY-LINKED AGREEMENTS

Defails of the equity-linked agreements entered into during the year or

subsisting at the end of the year are set out below:

Pursuant to a subscription agreement dated 7 April 2020 (as
supplemented by a supplemental agreement dated 23 November 2020)
enfered info between the Company and a subscriber, the Company
,917,000 new Shares at a price of HK$0.10
per Share on 24 April 2020. The gross proceeds of the subscription
would be HK$19 191
16,770,000). Net proceeds amounting to approximately
HK$18,876,000 (equivalent to approximately RMB16,495,000)
received from the subscriber were used for the general working capital of

issued and allotted 191

,700 [equivalent to approximately RMB

the Group. For details, please refer to the announcements of the
Company dated 7 April 2020, 24 April 2020 and 23 November
2020.

As for the Share Option Scheme, please refer to the section headed “Share
Option Scheme”.
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EQUITY-LINKED AGREEMENTS (coNTINUED)

Other than the above subscription agreement [as supplemented by a
supplemental agreement) and the Share Option Scheme, no equity-linked
agreements were entered into by the Company during the year or
subsisting at the end of the year ended 31 December 2020.

PERMITTED INDEMNITY PROVISION

The Company has faken out and maintained directors’ and officers’
liability insurance throughout the year, which provides appropriafe cover

for the Directors and officers of Group.

TAX RELIEF

For the year ended 31 December 2020, Shareholders were not entitled
to any tax relief by virtue of their holding of the Shares.

PURCHASE, REDEMPTION OR SALE OF LISTED
SECURITIES OF THE COMPANY

For the year ended 31 December 2020, neither the Company nor any
of its subsidiaries purchased, redeemed or sold any listed securities of the

Company.

RESERVES

Defails of movements in the reserves of the Company and of the Group
during the year are set out in the statement of financial position of the
Company on page @ of this annual report and in the consolidated
statement of changes in equity, respectively.

DISTRIBUTABLE RESERVES

As at 31 December 2020, the Company has no reserve available for
distribution as calculated in accordance with the Companies Law (2018
Revision) of the Cayman Islands. Under the laws of the Cayman Islands,
the share premium account is distributable to the Shareholders provided
that immediately following the date on which the dividend is proposed to
be distributed, the Company will be in a position to pay off its debts as
and when they fall due in the ordinary course of business. The share
premium account may also be distributed in the form of fully paid bonus
shares.
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MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

In the year under review, revenue fo the Group's five largest customers
accounted for about 47.2% (2019: 37.1%) of the Group's tofal revenue
for the year and the revenue from the largest customer included therein
accounted for about 11.9% (2019: 15.7%) of the Group's tofal revenue.

The Group's five largest custfomers comprise PRC state-owned companies
and private enterprises and overseas enferprises which have business
relationships with the Group for a period ranging from two to nine years.
Services provided fo them by the Group include CRD Business, and EPD
and Water Management Business. Their contracts with the Group were
projectbased, which provided for either monthly progress payments with
reference tfo the value of work completed each month or annual payments
with a fixed percentage for each year throughout the contract period.
Such credit ferms were in line with those granted to other customers of the
Group. No longferm agreements had been enfered info between the

Group's five largest customers and the Group.

During the year ended 31 December 2020, the Board resolved fo make
a expected credit loss allowance of approximately RMB146.9 million for
trade receivables (2019: RMB308.2 million). The allowance for
expected credit loss was based on the assessment in recoverability and
the judgement by the management after considering the estimated future
cash flows discounted at the present value of the original effective interest
rate. For details please refer to nofe 11 to the financial statement in this

annual report.

Since the Group's major cusfomers accounted for a significant portion of
the Group's fotal revenue for the year, if in the future the Group loses one
of its major customers or if any of the Group’s major customers
significantly reduces its volume of business with the Group while the
Group is unable to gef new projects from other existing and/or potential
cusfomers, revenues and profitability of the Group would be heavily
reduced. Nonetheless, the Group believes that it has developed close
relationships with its major customers that they cannot easily replace the
Group with other suppliers. The Group has also entered info contracts
with and will continue to seek business from other customers.
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MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS (coNTINUED)

In the year under review, supplies from the Group's five largest suppliers
accounfed for about 34.7% (2019: 34.4%) of the Group’s tofal
operafing cost for the year and supplies from the largest supplier included
therein accounted for about 13.0% (2019: 23.0%) of the Group's fotal

operating cost.

None of the Directors or any of their close associates or any Shareholders
[which, to the best knowledge of the Directors, own more than 5% of the
Company's issued share capital) had any beneficial interest in the
Group's five largest customers and/or five largest suppliers for the year
ended 31 December 2020.

DIRECTORS’ RIGHTS TO ACQUIRE SHARES OR
DEBENTURES

Save for those disclosed in the paragraphs headed “Share Option
Scheme” and “Directors’ and Chief Execufive's Interests and  Short
Positions in Shares and Underlying Shares” in this Direcfors’ report in this
annual report, at no time during the year were rights to acquire benefits
by means of the acquisition of shares in or debentures of the Company
granfed to any of the Directors or their respective spouses or minor
children, or were any such rights exercised by them; or was the
Company or any of its subsidiaries a party fo any arrangement fo enable

the Directors o acquire such rights in any other body corporate.

DIRECTORS

The Directors who held office during the year and up tfo the date of this

report were:

Executive Directors:

M. Liu Kaijin

Mr. Wu Bin (resigned on 31 March 2020
Mr. Wu Xuze

Ms. Zhou Shuhua
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DIRECTORS (CONTINUED)

Independent Non-executive Directors:

Mr. Huan Xuedong
Mr. Chan Ming Sun Jonathan
Mr. liang Zequan

In accordance with article 105(A) of the Articles, Mr. Chan Ming Sun
Jonathan and Mr. Liang Zequan will refire by rofation and, being eligible,
will offer themselves for reelection at the forthcoming annual general
meeting.

INDEPENDENCE CONFIRMATIONS FROM
INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

The Company has received, from each of the independent non-executive
Direcfors a confirmation of his independence pursuant to rule 3.13 of the
Listing Rules. The Company considers all of its independent non-executive

Directfors fo be independent.

DIRECTORS’ SERVICE CONTRACTS

Each of the execufive Directors has entered into a Director’s service
confract and each of the independent non-executive Directors signed a
letter of appointment with the Company commencing from their respective
date of appointment. All of them are subject fo refirement by rofation and
reelection in accordance with the Arficles.

Mr. liv Kaijin and Ms. Zhou Shuhua, both being executive Direcfors,
have entered into service contracts with the Company for a term of three

years commencing from 1 June 2020.

Mr. Wu Xuze, being executive Direcfor, has enfered info a service
confract with the Company for a term of one year commencing from 5
January 2021.
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DIRECTORS’ SERVICE CONTRACTS (CONTINUED)

Each of Mr. Huan Xuedong, Mr. Chan Ming Sun Jonathan and Mr.
liang Zequan, being independent nonexecutive Directors, has entered
info an appointment letter with the Company for a term of one year
commencing from 25 April 2021, 30 November 2020 and 23

September 2020 respectively.

No Direcfor proposed for re-election at the forthcoming annual general
meeting has a service contract with the Company which is not
determinable by the Company within one year without payment of
compensation, other than statutory compensation.

DIRECTORS’ REMUNERATION

The Directors' fees are subject to Shareholders’ approval at general
meetings. Other emoluments are defermined by the Board with reference
to Directors’ duties, responsibilities and performance and the results of the

Group.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN CONTRACTS

During the year ended 31 December 2020, save for those disclosed in
the financial statements, no Director or any entity connected with the
Directors had a material inferest, either directly or indirectly, in any
transaction, arrangement or contract of significance to the business of the
Group to which the Company or any of its subsidiaries was a party
during the year.

MANAGEMENT CONTRACTS

Save for the Confractual Arrangements between subsidiaries of the
Group, no confracts conceming the management and administration of
the whole or any subsfantial part of the business of the Group were

entered into or existed during the year.
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CONTINUING CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS

According to relevant PRC laws, foreign investors are prohibited from
owning more than a 50% equity inferest in any enterprise which owns
vessels for conducting dredging business. Otherwise the Maritime Safety
Administration of the PRC will not register the ownership of a vessel fo an
enterprise. Our Group has decided that Xiangyu PRC owns 50% of
interest in the relevant vessels, being the maximum percentage that a
foreign investor may own under PRC laws fo register the ownership of the
relevant vessels for certain commercial reasons. In addition, our Group
infends fo participate in some dredging projects which forbid any
involvement of foreign-invested companies under PRC laws. Even in
certain dredging projects which foreign-invested companies are
technically allowed to engage under PRC laws, the foreign-invested
companies find it difficult, in common practice, to secure dredging
business opportunities. Based on the above reasons, the PRC Operational
Entity has not become equity-owned by our Company, but will be
confrolled by our Company through the Contractual Arrangements.

The Group carried out the following continuing connected transactions (other
than continuing connected transactions that are exempted under rule 14A
of the Listing Rules) during the year ended 31 December 2020:

On 19 April 2011
Arrangements pursuant to which all economic benefits and risks arising

, the following entities entered into the Confractual
from the business of Jiangsu Xingyu are fransferred to Xiangyu PRC:

[l Xiangyu PRC, a wholly foreign-owned enterprise and a wholly-
owned subsidiary of the Company,

[i)  Jiangsu Xingyu, a limited liability company established in the PRC
and deemed to be a wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company
under the Confractual Arangements, and mainly engages in the
capital and reclamation dredging and the environmental profection
dredging segments and is the largest subsidiary of the Group in
ferms of operating assefs owned and construction scale, and

[iii)  equity inferests holders of Jiangsu Xingyu, namely Mr. Liu and Ms.
Zhou (both of them are executive Direcfors and confrolling
shareholders of the Company).
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CONTINUING CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS
(CONTINUED)

Jiangsu Jicolong, a limited liability company esfablished in the PRC,
mainly engages in the provision of marine hoisting, installation and other
engineering services. It is the provider of the Group's other marine
business. Jiangsu Xingyu owns a 51% equity inferest in it and is its

confrolling shareholder.

Further details of the Contractual Arrangements are described in note 42

to the financial statements of this annual report.

The Stock Exchange has granfed a waiver pursuant to rule 14A.105 of
the Listing Rules to the Company for all fransactions under the Contractual
Arrangements from sfrict compliance with the applicable announcement
and independent Shareholders’ approval requirements under Chapter
14A of the Listing Rules.

The amount of revenue and assets subject to the Confractual
Arrangements accounted for 97.0% and 66.1% of the Group's fotal
revenue and assets respectively for the year ended 31 December 2020
[2019: 98.0% and 63.2%).

The followings are the major risks relating to the Contractual
Arrangements:

e The Group conducts its business operation in the PRC through the
PRC Operational Entity by way of the Contractual Arrangements,
but certain of the terms of the Contractual Arrangements may not
be enforceable under PRC laws. Therefore, in the event of breach
of any agreements constituting the Confractual Arrangements by
Mr. liu, Ms. Zhou and/or the PRC Operational Entity, and if the
Group is unable fo enforce the Contractual Arrangements, the
Group may not be able to exert effective control over the PRC
Operational Entity, and the Group's ability to conduct its business
may be negatively affected.

o If the PRC government finds that the Contfractual Arrangements or
the ownership sfructures or business operations of the Company or
the PRC Operational Enfity do not comply with any of the PRC
laws and regulations, the Group's business, financial condition or
resulfs of operations could be materially and adversely affected, as
revenue in relation fo the Contractual Arrangements accounted for
97.0% of the Group's fotal revenue for the year ended 31
December 2020.
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(CONTINUED)

e The Confractual Arrangements related fo critical aspects of the .
Group's operations with the PRC Operational Entity and its
shareholders which may not be as effective as direct ownership in
providing operational confrol. In the event that the Group is unable
fo enforce these Contractual Arrangements, the Group may be
unable fo exert effective control over the PRC Operational Entity,
and the Group's ability to conduct its business may be materially
and adversely affected.

e Shareholders of the PRC Operational Entity, Mr. Liv and Ms. Zhov, .
may pofentially have a conflict of inferest with the Group, and they
may breach their confracts with the Group. Such disputes and
proceedings may significantly disrupt the Group's business
operations, adversely affect its ability to control the PRC
Operational Entity and/or otherwise result in negative publicity.
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The Group has adopted the following measures fo ensure the sound and AEBERRATERE UBERASETEEESOR
effective operation of the Group following the implementation of the BB A R &8 -

Contractual Arrangements:

e  as part of the infernal control measures, major issues arising from .
implementation of the Confractual Arrangements had been and will
be reviewed by the Board on a regular basis;

] matters relating fo compliance and regulatory enquiries from .
governmental authorities had been and will be discussed at such
regular meetings or exfraordinary meetings of the Board;

e the relevant business units and operation divisions of the Group .
reported regularly to the senior management of the Company on
the compliance and performance conditions under the Contractual
Arrangements and other related matters;

] legal advisors and/or other professionals had been and will .
continue to be retained to assist the Group fo deal with specific
issues arising from the Contractual Arrangements; and

e the independent non-executive Directors had and will continue to .
conduct annual reviews on the Contractual Arrangements to ensure
that it is fair and reasonable and in the best interests of the Group
and ifs Shareholders as a whole.
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CONTINUING CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS
(CONTINUED)

The independent non-executive Direcfors have confirmed that the above-

mentioned continuing connected fransactions were entered into:

[} in the ordinary and usual course of the Group's business;

[i)  in accordance with the terms of the respective agreements
goveming such transactions on terms that were fair and reasonable
and in the interests of the Shareholders of the Company as a
whole: and

(ili)  either on normal commercial terms or on terms no less favorable to
the Group than those available fo or from independent third

parties.

Besides, the independent non-executive Directors have conducted an

annual review on the Contractual Arrangements and have confirmed that:

[i)  the transactions carried out during the year ended 31 December
2020 have been entered info in accordance with the relevant
provisions of the Contractual Arrangements and have been
operated so that all revenue generated by Jiangsu Xingyu has been
refained by Xiangyu PRC;

[i)  no dividends or other distributions have been made by Jiangsu
Xingyu fo its equity interest holders; and

[ii)  any new confracts or renewed confracts have been entered info on
the same ferms as the existing Contractual Arrangements and are
fair and reasonable so far as the Group is concerned and in the

interests of the Shareholders as a whole.

In accordance with rule 14A.56 of the Listing Rules, the Board engaged
the auditor of the Company fo perform procedures on the above
confinuing connecfed transacfions in accordance with Hong Kong
Standard on Assurance Engagements 3000 (Revised) “Assurance
Engagements Other Than Audits or Reviews of Historical Financial
Information” and with reference fo Practice Note 740 “Auditor’s Letter on
Continuing Connected Transactions under the Hong Kong Listing Rules”
issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants.
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CONTINUING CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS
(CONTINUED)

The auditor of the Company has confirmed that nothing has come fo the
auditor's attention that causes them to believe that :

a.  the disclosed confinuing connected transactions have not been
approved by the Board;

b.  the said transactions were not entered into in accordance with the
relevant agreements governing such transactions; and

c.  dividends or other distributions have been made by Jiangsu Xingyu
fo the holders of its equity interests.

RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

Details of the related party transactions are sef out in note 38 to the
consolidated financial statements. None of these related party
fransactions consfitutes a discloseable connected fransaction as defined
under the Llisting Rules, except for those described in the paragraph
headed "Continuing Connected Transactions” above, in respect of which
the disclosure requirements in accordance with Chapter 14A of the

Listing Rules have been complied with.

SHARE OPTION SCHEME

The Company has adopted the Share Option Scheme for the purpose of
providing incentives and rewards fo eligible participants who contribute
to the success of the Group’s operations. Under the Share Option
Scheme, the Direcfors may at their discretion grant options fo (i) any
Director and employees of the Company, any of its subsidiaries or any
enfity in which the Group holds an equity interest; or (ii] any suppliers,
customers, consultants who provided services to the Group, shareholders
of the subsidiaries of the Group and joint venture pariners to subscribe for
the Shares.
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SHARE OPTION SCHEME (coNTINUED)

The maximum number of shares in respect of which options may be
granfed under the Share Option Scheme shall not exceed 30% of the
issued share capifal of the Company at any point in time. The fotal
number of shares in respect of which options may be granfed under the
Share Option Scheme must not in aggregate exceed 10% of the shares
in issue at the fime dealings in the shares first commence on the Stock
Exchange. This limit was last refreshed by the Shareholders in the annual
general meeting of the Company held on 29 May 2019 so that the
maximum number of Shares which may be issued upon the exercise of all
opfions o be granted under the Share Option Scheme shall not exceed
177,366,400 Shares, being 10% of the Shares in issue as at the date
of passing the relevant resolution on 29 May 2019.

The maximum number of shares in respect of which options may be
granted to any individual in any 12-month period shall not exceed 1% of
the shares in issue on the last date of such 12-month period unless
approval of the shareholders of the Company has been obtained in

accordance with the Listing Rules.

Options may be exercised during such period (including the minimum
period, if any, for which an option must be held before it can be
exercised) as may be defermined by the Directors and commences affer
a certain vesting period and ends in any event nof later than 10 years
from the date of grant of the relevant share options, subject to the
provisions for early fermination thereof. The offer of a grant of options
must be taken up within 21 days of the date of offer, upon payment of
HK$1 as consideration by the grantee. The exercise price is equal fo the
highest of (i) the closing price of the shares as stated in the daily
quotations sheet issued by the Stock Exchange on the date of the offer of
grant; (i) the average closing price of the shares as sfafed in the daily
quotations sheefs issued by the Stock Exchange for the five business days
immediately preceding the date of the offer of grant; and (iii) nominal
value of the shares. The Directors consider the Share Option Scheme,
with its broadened basis of participation, will enable the Group to
reward the employees, the Directors and other selected participants for
their contributions to the Group. The Share Option Scheme will remain in
force for a period of 10 years from the date of adoption and will expire

on 23 May 2021.
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SHARE OPTION SCHEME (CONTINUED) BB ESTE @)
The movements of the share options granted under the Share Option REBEE-_ZTE-_ZF+_A=+—BItFERN " BEE
Scheme during the year ended 31 December 2020 are as follows: RETZFELE CERESFH DT
Number of share options
BREHE
Closing price
Lapsed/ Outstanding immediately
Outstanding Granted  Exercised  cancelled as at before the
Name or category at 1 January during during during 31 December Date of Exercise date of the
of participant 2020 the year  the year the year 2020 grant” price” grant Exercise period®
R-B-FfF R-B-%F FERH
—A-H RER RER REAE +ZA=+-B BRE B A A #
SRELELER i AT B R 6 ARE# HARTE RitiAHY feEE” BHE TEHY
(HK$ per Share) (HK$ per Share)
(BkEL) (BRETL
Employees in — 17,000,000 = = — 20/01/2020 0.1 0.071 20/01/2020-
uggregaie 19/01/2021
Egs
Total - 17,000,000 - - 17,000,000
@t
Notes: st -
(1) Each of the option is granted for consideration of HK$ 1. (1) BHEREREKRKERIBIT-
[2)  The exercise price of the share options is subject fo adjusiment in case of (2) 4T RR SR AT I B 1T S A A B AR AN A E b AE L
rights or bonus issues, or other similar changes in the Company’s share ) BIRERE Y (TEEA TIUAFE-
capital.
(3)  Immediately vested. (3) BRI -

An employee as grantee exercised 17,000,000 share options and was
allotted 17,000,000 Shares at the exercise price of HK$0.10 per Share
on 11 January 2021. As such, there was no oufstanding share options
granted under the Share Option Scheme at the date of this annual report.

After taking into account the effect of the share consolidation, the tofal
number of shares in respect of which share optfions available for grant
under the Share Option Scheme was 80,183,200,
approximately 5.3% of the issued shares as at the date of this annual

representing

report.

RZB-_—F—A+—H ZEEBERARABITE

H 17,000,00017 & iz - AR 1T R B RAE0.10/8 T
FERC 317,000,000 B - MAF 3 B HY - BB AL AR AT

TR T AU & W RITER AR

BRARBOAHNEE RERZEASTTREINE
F& ¥ P 5 B 89 AR 17 48 8145 80,183,200 % - 1 N AR F ¥R
HHE#ITRMA5.3% -



DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE'S
INTERESTS AND SHORT POSITIONS IN
SHARES AND UNDERLYING SHARES

As at 31 December 2020, the Directors and the Company’s chief

executive, and their respective associates had the following interests in
the shares in the Company and its associated corporations (within the

meaning of Part XV of the SFO) which were required to be nofified to the

Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant fo Divisions 7 and 8 of Part

XV of the SFO [including inferests and short positions which they are
taken or deemed fo have been taken under such provisions of the SFO)

or pursuant to the Model Code, or were required fo be entered in the

register kept by the Company pursuant to section 352 of the SFO:

Interests in the Shares
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Long position

L3y

Approximate
Name of percentage of
Director Capacity Notes Number of Shares shareholding
HRENEY
EEnA 56 K & R4 HE Bk
Mr. Liu Kaijin Inferest in controlled corporation ] 351,600,000 17.81%

2IGAE K& NEE N EE ok o
Beneficial owner 35,559,000 1.80%

EnfE A

Ms. Zhou Shuhua Inferest in spouse 2 387,159,000 19.61%

ERELZ L e 5 7 a5

*

issue (i.e. 1,974,283,000 Shares) as at 31 December 2020.

These percentages are computed based on the fotal number of Shares in

* ZEBDEIRBRARAR_ZE_TF+-_A=+—
HEBITRHEE(EN1,974,283 000 I 1) 5t & ©
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DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE'S
INTERESTS AND SHORT POSITIONS IN
SHARES AND UNDERLYING SHARES (CONTINUED)

i

Ps)

Notes: Hfat -
1. Mr. liv is the sole beneficial owner of Wangiji Llimited (“Wangiji’), a 1.
company incorporated in the Brifish Virgin Islands with limited liability,
which is the direct owner of 351,600,000 Shares. Further, Mr. Liu is the
beneficial owner of 35,559,000 Shares.
2. Ms. Zhou is the spouse of Mr. Liu who is also a Director. By virtue of the 2.

SFO, Ms. Zhou is deemed fo be interested in all interests of Mr. Liu in the
Company including long position and short position.

Interests in associated corporations

Name of associated

REIETBRABRRG RIEH
HNEZRERXE @

Bl REEERAR(MHRERE] —HAREBRELES
AMKINERAR)WE—EEHEAA MEES
351,600,000 B W EEBEE A - o BIEES
35,559,000 DM B A A

AZEtRBEENERB RARS—REF - REES
FEEGH AR HERNBEERENMBAR
A (BHEFRA RAR) DA EE -

T AR B % B Y R A

Long position
Ha

Approximate
percentage of
total number of

Name of Director corporation Capacity Notes Share capital shareholding
E R AR
EEps HBEEER g7 Bt &t R 2 BMABED
Mr. Liv Kaijin Wangii Beneficial owner ] 200 ordinary shares 100%
2IFELE AE £ EmEAA 200 /% & i@ X
Jiangsu Xingyu Beneficial owner ] Register capital of 100%
RMB39,315,800
T A% ELF ESBEAA ALt & A
AR#¥39,315,8007T
Ms. Zhou Shuhua Wangji Inferest in spouse 2 200 ordinary shares 100%
FERE R+ AEE BB # & 200z & s Ax
Jiangsu Xingyu Interest in spouse 2 Register capifal of 100%
RMB39,315,800
L o L T BB #E A& A
AR #39,315,8007T
Notes: Wi
1. Mr. Liu is the sole beneficial owner of the entire registered capital of Jiangsu 1. AAENAIHEFNE2BIMERANE —EXHES
Xingyu. Mr. Liu and Ms. Zhou are registered holders of 98.47% and 1.53% A Bl ERALZ LD R BLIEHRETFTO8.47%K%1.53%
in the registered capital in Jiangsu Xingyu respectively. The 1.53% inferest AMEANEZEZHEEA - RE-_ZE—ZF+A+=H
in the registered capital of Jiangsu Xingyu were held on trust by Ms. Zhou IV —ERERER BXLTtUEEARARE EA#
for Mr. Liu pursuant to a shareholding confirmation dated 12 July 2010. BIHEFFMERN . 53% s -
2. Ms. Zhou is the spouse of Mr. Liu who is also a Director. By virtue of the 2. RAXETRALENER RTIR—BEF-BREZESH

SFO, Ms. Zhou is deemed to be interested in all interests of Mr. Liu in the
associated corporations including long positions and short position.

EHEGRY  AXERE /R ILERFEHMA B
ZHER(BEFRRRR)THEARER



DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE'S
INTERESTS AND SHORT POSITIONS IN
SHARES AND UNDERLYING SHARES (CONTINUED)

Saved as disclosed above, none of the Directors and chief executive of
the Company or any of their associates had any interests or short
positions in the Shares, underlying shares or debentures of the Company
or any associated corporation as at 31 December 2020 (within the
meaning of Part XV of the SFO), which had been notified to the Company
and the Stock Exchange pursuant to Divisions 7 and 8 of Part XV of the
SFO lincluding interests and short positions which the Directors or chief
execufive of the Company were deemed or taken to have under such
provisions of the SFO) or as recorded in the register required to be kept
by the Company under section 352 of the SFO, or as otherwise nofified
to the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant fo the Model Code.

SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS’ INTERESTS
AND SHORT POSITIONS IN SHARES AND
UNDERLYING SHARES OF THE COMPANY

As at 31 December 2020, fo the best of the knowledge and belief of the
Directors, other than those set out in the section headed "Directors’ and
Chief Executive's Interests and Short Posifions in Shares and Underlying
Shares” in this annual report, persons had inferests or short positions in
the Shares or underlying shares of the Company which would fall to be
disclosed to the Company under the provisions of Divisions 2 and 3 of
Part XV of the SFO as recorded in the register required fo be kept under
section 336 of the SFO were as follows:

Long positions in Shares

Annual Report 2020 —E_EEER 77

Directors’ Report (Continued)

EEgHE@

BEXPEBEN RZBE_BF+-_RA=+—8H"
ARABEZERETBTHRABHBEENEAHEARE
RARBHEMBEZEZE(EELESF MBI FE
XE) BB - RO HEST  FEREIESF LB
ERGIFXVERE7 R 8D R A M & AN 1 7] I B 32 A 19
EFAREIARR (BREARAEFTLEIRZTHRAER
BESKHBEGRINZFZEXREFXNRSEAORE
BEKR)RBREE S LB GG FEI52KALHER
AABMFENELMOEMZRIONS  HRER
RFRIARMEARR KB FAAEAIESESROAR -

A i 10 & A6 B R 42
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BoFe

Approximate

Number of percentage of

Name of Shareholder Capacity Note Shares shareholding

1B R BN

KRR &R ) K &t KROHE ERlse

Wangiji Beneficial owner 351,600,000 17.81%
BEE EmEA A

Yuan Xiangbing Beneficial Owner 191,917,000 9.72%
REER EmEA A

Jiangsu Baisite Environment Engineering Co., Lid Beneficial Owner I 148,180,000 7.51%

IHBMSREIEBRAA

BEEEAA

These percentages are computed based on the total number of Shares in
issue (i.e. 1,974,283,000 Shares) as at 31 December 2020.

Note:

1. luck Morgan Investment Limited acts as nominee for Jiangsu Baisite
Environment Engineering Co., ltd* to hold 148,180,000 Shares.

* ZEBALIBRBERAARR-_ZE_TF+_A=+—
HEZTRGEE(A1,974,283,000R i 7)) 5t & -

ff et

1. Luck Morgan Investment Limited bA T # B HT 5 3R 3% Ti2 A
RAREIER A S #FH 148,180,000 i 17
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AUDIT COMMITTEE, REMUNERATION
COMMITTEE AND NOMINATION COMMITTEE

Details of the Audit Committee, Remuneration Committee and Nomination
Comnmittee are set out in section headed "Corporate Governance Report”
of this annual report.

SUFFICIENCY OF PUBLIC FLOAT

As at the date of this annual report, the Company has maintained the
prescribed public float under the Listing Rules based on the information
that is publicly available to the Company and within the knowledge of
the Directors of the Company.

EVENT AFTER END OF REPORTING PERIOD

For details, please refer to the section headed “Management Discussion

and Analysis” in this annual report.

AUDITOR

Moore Stephens CPA Limited was appointed as auditor of the Company
with effect from 31 October 2018.

Moore Stephens CPA Limited will retire and a resolution for their re-

appointment as auditor of the Company will be submitted at the
forthcoming annual general meefing.

On behalf of the Board

Liv Kaijin
Chairman

Hong Kong, 16 April 2021
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| MOORE

To the Shareholders of
China Dredging Environment Protection Holdings Limited
(Incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability)

OPINION

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of China
Dredging Environment Protection Holdings Limited (the “Company”) and
its subsidiaries (collectively referred to as the “Group”) set out on pages
89 to 224, which comprise the consolidated statement of financial
posifion as af 31 December 2020, and the consolidated sfatement of
profit or loss and other comprehensive income, consolidated statement of
changes in equity and consolidated statement of cash flows for the year
then ended, and notes fo the consolidated financial statements, including

a summary of significant accounting policies.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a frue and fair
view of the consolidated financial position of the Group as at 31
December 2020, and of its consolidated financial performance and ifs
consolidated cash flows for the year then ended in accordance with
Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards ("HKFRSs") issued by the Hong
Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants ("HKICPA”) and have been
properly prepared in compliance with the disclosure requirements of

Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.
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BASIS FOR OPINION

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards on
Auditing ("HKSAs"] issued by the HKICPA. Our responsibilities under
those standards are further described in the Auditor's Responsibilities for
the Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements section of our report.
We are independent of the Group in accordance with the HKICPA's
Code of Ethics for Professional Accountants (“the Code”), and we have
fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with the Code.
We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and
appropriate fo provide a basis for our opinion.

MATERIAL UNCERTAINTY RELATED TO GOING
CONCERN

We draw attention to Note 2 to the consolidated financial statements,
which highlight that the Group experienced a gross loss and loss of
approximately RMB44 million and RMB537 million respectively for the
year ended 31 December 2020 and had net current liabilities of
approximately RMB557 million as af that date. As at 31 December 2020,
the bank borrowings and other borrowings classified as current liabilities
amounted fo approximately RMB293 million and RMB79 million
respectively are scheduled with repayment ferms to be seffled within one
year.

The Group's ability to generate funds to satisfy its financial obligations in
the next twelve months is reliant on the group’s ability to renew the bank
borrowings of approximately RMB293 million and other borrowings of
approximately RMB79 million under current liabilities as at 31 December
2020 when they come up for repayment, or to obtain alternative
financing.

These conditions, along with other matters as set forth in Note 2 to the
consolidated financial statements, indicate the existence of material
uncertainties which may cast significant doubt over the Group's ability fo
continue as a going concern. Our opinion is not modified in respect of
these matters.

KEY AUDIT MATTER

Key audit matter is the matter that, in our professional judgment, was of
most significance in our audif of the consolidated financial statfements of the
current period. This matter was addressed in the context of our audit of the
consolidated financial statements as a whole, and in forming our opinion
thereon, and we do not provide a separate opinion on this matter. In
addition fo the matter described in the Material Uncertainty Related to
Going Concern section, we have determined the matter described below
to be the key audit matter to be communicated in our report.
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Key audit matter
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How our audit addressed the key audit matter

FOTEFNMEERARETSHE

Assessment of loss allowance for expected credit losses (“ECL”) on trade receivables and contract assets

BEREFRENEERNEEFER(FAHEEFRADEERRETE

We identified the assessment of loss allowance for expected credit losses on
trade receivables and contract assefs as a key audit matter. The Group's frade
receivables and contract assets mainly arise from dredging, water management
and marine related businesses. The estimation of expected credit losses of these
frade receivables and confract assets involved exercise of significant judgement
by management and high degree of estimation uncertainty.
FITHEBERRANEERBEEFRNBEEEHTARRBARE
AHEH. EEENERERRGHNEETIZERENE KBEEER
HEAEEED ZERUERRENEERBEEFRAT I RER
[& 17 58 B N i DA KOR B R B9 fh 5 N RERE M -

As at 31 December 2020, the Group had trade receivables and contract
assets, net of allowance for credit losses of RMB497,151,000 and
RMB25,047,000 as disclosed in Nofes 22 and 24 respectively, and provision
of expected credit losses of RMB146,947,000 and RMB241,000 were
recognised for frade receivables and contract assets respectively during the year
as disclosed in Note 11.

RZBEZFTF+_A=+—H EEEZEBEREZIRENEE
MRiEEEBEE) ARKE497151,0007T B A R #25,047,0007T (5
I BERKI E22K%24) - a0 FET1FT B EE - F RN 5 Bl 5L FE YR 3K
RENEERABHEEEBRE AR 146,947,000 &k A R
241,000t °

Our procedures in relation fo the evaluation of the
assessment of loss allowance for expected credit losses on
frade receivables and confract assets included:
RTERBRKRERRAHNEERPEEBENER
BB ANGARETFEHE

e We obtained an understanding of the
management's process for credit risk assessment and
impairment assessment of allowance for expected
credit losses on frade receivables and confract
assefs.

o RITRGHEREBAHERRERRANEE
BHEEBRBEBETEERR M ERE
AP RIZ AR AR o

e We tested, on a sample basis, the accuracy of
aging of trade receivables balances based on
invoice date and due dafe as at the end of the
reporting period fo the underlying invoices.

. AOTERBREMREREZTERTAHRIH
B il ORI 54 P8 MK BR BN A AR BR e SE R ©

J For the collectively assessed ECL, we assessed the
reasonableness of the Group’s ECL models,
including the model inputs, model design, model
performance for significant portfolios.

. M- EEACEEER A7FHE &%
ERACEFEEANGELE BEEER
BEHAamEABA  EHARE BEAXRR-
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How our audit addressed the key audit matter

ROEHNMNERFERESFSHE

Assessment of loss allowance for expected credit losses (“ECL”) on trade receivables and contract assets

BERESRENEERNEEGR(FAHEEFRADEERETHE

The Group has applied a lifetime expected credit loss model in determining the
expected credif losses fo be recognised in respect of the trade receivables and
contract assefs during and as at the end of the year. When determining the
amount of expected credit losses fo be recognised as af the end of the reporting
period, the management considered the risk of a default occurring on the frade
receivables and contract assefs as af the reporting date, taking info account
both quantitative and qualitative information that is reasonable and supportable,
including historical experience (including credit history and current credit
worthiness of the customers| and forward-looking information (including current
market conditions) that is available without undue cost or effort.
EXEECERAEZYEREEBFRER  EXFEHBNFRERE
REANEERANIAPEERE BETREHABHEEFRLRE
K EBEEZRIBREAPRUERNANEEZRLEEZNNER I
BEREE EBEUTERTHEN BREEFTBERANIE N E
BZEEMER(BEEEPEELHANACGEAEL) LREEH
(BFEE AT HARMR) °

We challenged whether historical experience is
representative of current circumstances and of the
recent losses incurred in the portfolios and assessed
the reasonableness of forwardooking adjusiments,
including the economic variables and assumptions
used in each of the economic scenarios and their
probability weightings. Where changes had been
made in model parameters and assumptions, we
evaluated the reasonableness of such changes.
ATERELUELRESRKREAMAREBER
MEHa T HEE YA EREAENA
Bt BRSEBEBEAALEEE KRR
REAEMEE - ERAZ2BIBRREE - K
TRIFIAEEE RN A B -

We also assessed the disclosures to the financial
statement relating to the Group's exposure fo credit
risks.

NG W) R G
SRR -

EEEHEEEERRERN
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How our audit addressed the key audit matter

FOTEFNMEERARETSHE

Impairment of property, plant and equipment and right-of-use assets

V¥ BERRBEURCEHEEEHRE

We identified the impairment of property, plant and equipment and right-of-use

assefs as a key audit matter.

RITEME BEMRBAREREEERER RBRESEE -

The continuing challenging market condition has led to segment losses in the
Group's capifal and reclamation dredging business and environmental protection
dredging water management business, which is considered as an indicator of
possible impairment and impairment assessment has been performed as af 31
December 2020.

MEREFERMIABES EEENERKEBRZERLRRE
BRBEREBEENDHBE  ERREEBERETR LER_-F
—EE+ A=+ RETRERMG-

As af 31 December 2020, an impairment provision of RMB248,130,000
and RMB5,855,000 respectively have been recorded fo reduce the carrying
values of property, plant and equipment and rightof-use assets to their estimated
recoverable values, which is the higher of fair value less costs of disposal and
value in use. The Group's property, plant and equipment and rightofuse assets
are amounted to RMB1,039,088,000 and RMB86,276,000 respectively after
impairment as at 31 December 2020.

RZZE_TEF+_A=+—H EfRAEBRESINAARK
248,130,000t & A R #5,8550007C - A% - BE K& ENU R
ERAEEENRAEREE G ATREEE  BIQFERLDSEKE
HEREBEMEPNBRSE R_ZE-_TEF+-_A=+—H" &
SENYE BEMRBURCRAREENRERD I AARE
1,039,088,0007T & A R #86,276,0007T °

Our procedures in relation to management's impairment
assessment of property, plant and equipment and right-of-
use assefs included:

RTEEDE BERREBEALEREEENER
B ERHIZF B

e Assessing the methodologies used by the external
independent valuer to estimate resale values and by
management fo estimate values in use;

e FMHIEBUMEMAAEEEEREREE
HEHEREEMAN A

o Evaluating the independent external independent

valuer's competence, capabiliies and objectivity;

o FIEBUIEMEEMNER REORTEML:

e  Checking, on a sample basis, the accuracy and
relevance of the input data provided by
management fo the external independent valuer;

s MEREEEEMIIEBIGEMEHROE
ABUR B E R RARRE M
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Key audit matter How our audit addressed the key audit matter
BEEtEE AIENNAUEEERESSE

Impairment of property, plant and equipment and right-of-use assets

V¥ BERRBEURCEHEEENRE

These conclusions are dependent upon significant management judgement, ®  Checking, on a sample basis, the accuracy and
including estimated resale values, provided by an independent external valuer; relevance of the input data used by management to
and estimated utilisation, disposal values, and discount rates applied to future estimate values in use;
cash flows. o mMEREEEEMFEAEEMRE ABE
ZEERRTERERBHE  2EBUIIBAEMER GBS B XERE M R ARR I

BE: ARGAFBRER HEBERRARRSREMRMANBEIRE -

O Assessing management's key assumptions used to
estimate values in use based on our knowledge of
the dredging industry; and

e HRATHRATENER FEHEEER
REEHEREENBRERR

e Considering the appropriateness of the resale values
estimated by external valuer based on our
knowledge of the industry and value obtained by
the Group in respect of vessels that had been
disposed in the market during the year.

e ERATHATENEME BEEERRF
NWEMmS EHEMMAESHNEE 28I
BhEmEtEEEENEE T -
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OTHER INFORMATION

The directors of the Company are responsible for the other information.
The other information comprises the information included in the annual
report, but does not include the consolidated financial statements and our
auditor’s report thereon.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not cover the
other informafion and we do not express any form of assurance

conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial statements, our
responsibility is to read the other information and, in doing so, consider
whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the
consolidated financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit
or otherwise appears to be materially misstated. If, based on the work
we have performed, we conclude that there is a material misstatement of
this other information, we are required fo report that fact. We have
nothing fo report in this regard.

RESPONSIBILITIES OF DIRECTORS AND THOSE
CHARGED WITH GOVERNANCE FOR THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation of the
consolidated financial statements that give a frue and fair view in
accordance with HKFRSs and the disclosure requirements of the Hong
Kong Companies Ordinance, and for such internal control as the
directors determine is necessary to enable the preparation of consolidated
financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due

to fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the directors are
responsible for assessing the Group's ability to continue as a going
concem, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and
using the going concem basis of accounting unless the direcfors either
intfend to liquidate the Group or fo cease operations, or have no realistic

alternative but to do so.

Those charged with governance are responsible for overseeing the
Group's financial reporting process.

Ht &R

BERREFAHEMEN AR HEMENBRFRA
FBMEN  ENEREAMBBRRRATHRES
B AZ BRBD R -

ATHEAWBRINERL TRERMER AT
NAHEZEEMERNEREFAEANRELES °

RATHES M BBROF  ATHNEEDAME
fER  FltBiEd TERHEMGENERSWHEE
EARTERABETAATNBEAREFEEANERE
FEUFEERERBL - ERNAITEITHTAE
WATRBREMERFEEAERRL - NTTFER
ERERE -ATHUE Y EEMERERS -

ERAEERGLUBRRAR

a
T L

i

BERREFRERBEEAVMBRELENRBERAMK
PIHRERERBAEEMAFNGEAMBRER LY
E=ZRRRERAMBRERNBETIEFEARKIFR
HARMEBMERERRATFNAMZEHEE -

EREGAVBEHRRE EXRETG ESERKE
mENRED TEERBEATREERELEEEN
FE - URERRELERSER BRFEEEE
# BEREBFRAFLLE  AREEMERENER
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AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE AUDIT
OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the
consolidated financial statements as a whole are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor's
report that includes our opinion solely to you, as a body, in accordance
with our agreed terms of engagement and for no other purpose. We do
not assume responsibility towards or accept liability to any other person
for the contents of this report. Reasonable assurance is a high level of
assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance
with HKSAs will always detect a material misstatement when it exists.
Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material
if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to
influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these

consolidated financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with HKSAs, we exercise professional
judgment and maintain professional skepticism throughout the audit. We

also:

e I|dentify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the
consolidated financial statements, whether due to fraud or error,
design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and
obfain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide
a basis for our opinion. The risk of not defecting a material
misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting
from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional

omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

e Obtain an understanding of infernal control relevant to the audit in
order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the
circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on

the effectiveness of the Group's internal control.

o Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the
reasonableness of accounting estimates and related disclosures
made by the directors.

FPEIZRRIZEREBRAE
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BREYAEEE - AERFR/FKFHRE - BT
RERBELEAERETORTAEBERERER
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HEEBEAERAERAIEYEGS W BRREAEK
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AMATRARAEE K
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s TEEEFTRASMAERRNEZEMEUARELE
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e Conclude on the appropriateness of the directors’ use of the going
concem basis of accounting and, based on the audit evidence
obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or
condifions that may cast significant doubt on the Group's ability to
confinue as a going concemn. If we conclude that a material
uncertainty exisfs, we are required to draw affention in our audifor’s
report to the related disclosures in the consolidated financial
stafements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our
opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence
obtained up fo the date of our auditor's report. However, future
events or conditions may cause the Group to cease fo continue as

a going concemn.

o Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the
consolidated financial statements, including the disclosures, and
whether the consolidated financial statements represent the
underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair

presentation.

e Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the
financial information of the entities or business activities within the
Group to express an opinion on the consolidated financial
stafements. We are responsible for the direction, supervision and
performance of the group audit. We remain solely responsible for

our audif opinion.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding,
among other matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit and
significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in infernal
control that we identify during our audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that
we have complied with relevant ethical requirements regarding
independence, and to communicate with them all relationships and other
matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence,
and where applicable, related safeguards.
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From the matters communicated with those charged with governance, we NESRIBEEBNEIEY  ATREZSHAHME
determine those matters that were of most significance in the audit of the EUBBRRNETRAEENSZTE AMEKBERSE
consolidated financial statements of the current period and are therefore EBE - ATEXREMREPEMEZSEE BIEE
the key audit matters. VWWe describe these matters in our auditor's report BEROIRA T AFREZSEE  EBRERLY

unless law or regulation precludes public disclosure about the matter or BRAT AEBHMNAITHREFIARESZTEER
when, in extremely rare circumstances, we determine that a matter should MEEERBBEEN ARG - BIARITRE NERE
not be communicated in our report because the adverse consequences of WMERTHZEIER-

doing so would reasonably be expected to outweigh the public interest

benefits of such communication.

Moore Stephens CPA Limited REERESHMEEMBRAA
Certified Public Accountants A A

Chan King Keung R 45 58

Practising Certificate Number: PO6057 MEBERE  PO6057

Hong Kong, EE

16 April 2021 —E_—FMA+H
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For the year ended 31 December 2020 HEZE—_ZE —FF+-_A=+—HILFE
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2020 2019
—B-2F —T-hF
Nofes RMB’000 RMB'O00
B aF AR® T ARET T
Revenue & 6 286,341 442,368
Operating cost #2538 ik 2N (329,895) (391,004)
Gross (loss)/profit £ (8),F (43,554) 51,364
Other income H A g A 8 2,176 1,295
Allowance for expected credit losses, net of reversal 78 HA {2 & /5 18 38 8 1% 0 )% 58 11 (149,956) (333,685)
Impairment loss on property, plant and equipment Y - BB N R LA K 5 R
and rightof-use assets BEREEE 17 (253,985) —
Other gains and losses, net H i zs B BB %58 Q 25,610 (5,590)
Marketing and promotion expenses MHEHEEREREERS (6,047) (7,681)
Administrative expenses TR X (75,590) 65,722)
Changes in fair value of investment properties KENELATEEE 19 19,400 (6,286)
Finance costs Bh & pK AR 10 (43,389) (45,050)
Loss before tax % %5 A E5 48 (525,335) (411,355)
Income tax expense TSR X 12 (12,029) (110,673)
Loss and comprehensive expense for FABERZEMAX
the year 13 (537,364) (522,028)
Loss for the year attributable fo: THATEEFAERE :
Owners of the Company PiN/NETEZ F =N (526,583) (517,586)
Non-controlling interests R (10,781) (4,442)
(537,364) (522,028)
Total comprehensive expense aftributable fo: THALTEELEMA L 425 :
Owners of the Company ZiN/NEIEZ RN (526,583) (517,5806)
Non-confrolling interests JE R I b 2 (10,781) (4,442)
(537,364) (522,028)
Loss per share A% &5 48 15
— basic and diluted (RMB cents) —HAREE(ARESD) (55.01) (58.30)
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At 31 December 2020 R=—ZE-—FEE£+=-A=+—H
W

2020 2019

LI ==

Notes RMB’000 RMB'000
it EEDNCLEEM AR T

Non-current assets FRBEE
Property, plant and equipment ME - WENE 17 1,039,088 1,385,482
Right-of-use assets FEREEE 18 86,276 94,591
Investment properties REWME 19 483,900 464,500
Goodwill EES 201 201
Inferest in an associate NSRRI ER 20 150 —
Deposit paid for acquisition of property, plant and ENNEME  BERZHEN
equipment R& 23 18,752 8,421
Other intangible assets Hin |\ & E 3,417 3,750
Trade and other receivables and prepayments JFE UK BR 3R B EL At FE MUER A K
SEERE-N 22 145,471 2,338
Contract assets BRHEE 24 19,064 11,613
1,796,319 1,070,896
Current assets REEE
Trade and other receivables and prepayments J7E Ui B 3 K L At U 3R DA B
TR 22 576,754 863,660
Contract assets AEREE 24 5,983 -
Bank balances and cash WITEHRER S 25 29,309 12,612
612,046 876,272
Current liabilities REBEE
Trade and other payables & AT BR R Ko L fth 8 1R 26 359,371 377,939
Amounts due to directors of the Company JERARBIESRIEA 27 44,855 11,334
Amounts due to non-controlling shareholders of FEAT —FE M B A B FEIE B AR R
a subsidiary I8 28 2,257 3,060
Tax payable J& 5 A5 38 60,218 105,952
Bank borrowings PBITEE 29 293,400 297,000
Other borrowings HiEE 30 78,943 54,090
Bonds payable FES & A 31 287,482 286,804
Contract liabilities aHBaE 24 42,364 22,010
Llease liabilities HEald 32 605 1,263
1,169,495 1,159,452

Net current liabilities REBAEFE (557,449) (283,180
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At 31 December 2020 R=—ZE=-ZEF+=-A=+—H
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2020 2019

—ECEHF —E-NF

Nofes RMB’000 RMB'O00

B aF AR® T ARET T

Total assets less current liabilities BWEERRBARS 1,238,870 1,687,716
Capital and reserves BEAXN#E

Share capifal A& 2N 33 167,914 150,365

Reserves & 740,213 1,266,504

Equity attributable to owners of the Company RRARER AEGER 908,127 1,416,869

Non-confrolling inferests JE 2 A A = 129,731 146,305

Total equity EREE 1,037,858 1,563,174
Non-current liabilities ERBERE

Amounts due to non-controlling shareholders of FEAT — R B A R FEIE AR AR R

a subsidiary NIE 28 61,387 68,502

Deferred tax liabilities BRIERBEEE 21 27,260 17,256

Other borrowings HipEE 30 110,510 37,915

Llease liabilities HEAE 32 1,855 869

201,012 124,542

1,238,870 1,687,716

The consolidated financial statements on pages 89 to 224 were HNELOE2UBEMNGEEVBRREN T - —FMN

approved and authorised for issue by the board of directors on 16 April

2021 and are signed on ifs behalf by:

Liv Kaijin
2B E

Director

EE

Zhou Shuhua
R E
Director

EE

AtTARBEESSHEREENE YA TIALR
REE:
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China Dredging Environment Protection Holdings Limited
Consolidated Statement of
Changes in Equity
MEERBEXR
For the year ended 31 December 2020 HEZ—_Z -FTF+-_A=+—HLLFE

e e s D D S

Attributable to owners of the Company

ERAEEARE
PRC Share Non-
Share Share statutory Other  options  Retained controlling
capital premium  reserve  reserve  reserve profits Total interests Total
HE BRE FER
BE  ROBE ZERE HtRE R BEEd st B @t
RMB'OOO  RMB'OOO ~ RMB'00O  RMB'000 RMB'O0O0  RMB'000 RMB'O0O0  RMB'000 RMB'000
ARBTT ARBTRT ARBTL ARKTE ARBTT ARETT ARETRT ARETR ARETR
[note i) [nofe i)
(Hi&ti) (H&tii)
At T January 2019 RZE—N%F
—A—H 149,577 928,198 19,658 204,554 2,752 628,684 1,933,423 155,203 2,088,626
Loss and fofal comprehensive FABBR
income expenses for the year FAMEAX
wE - = = = —  [517,586)  [517,586) (4,442)  (522,028)
Dividend paid o noncontrolling 37 i F 3F 22 i 4 25
inferests HO PR S - - - - = = = (4,456) (4,456)
Issue of shares upon exercise of 77 BE IR HE 14 17
share options (Nofe 44) W15 (Bt 5t 44) 788 523 - - (279) - 1,032 - 1,032
Share option lapsed BAMA B R E - - - - [2,473) 2,473 - - -
At 31 December 2019 and RZZ-N&F
1 January 2020 +ZA=1+—H
RZE_Zf
—R—AH 150,365 928,721 19,658 204,554 = 118,571 1,416,869 146,305 1,563,174
Loss and fotal comprehensive FRERER
income expenses for the year 2EBERX
ok - - = = — (526,583 [526,583) (10,781) (537,364)
Dividend paid fo nonconfrolling X ft F 3E #E R 25
inferests R B — — — — — — — (5,793 [5,793)
Equitysettled sharebased AEREEH KRG
payments (Note 44) S (W E44) = = = - 292 - 292 - 292
Placing of new shares [Note 33) ¥Rk {p B2 &
(Hi£33) 17,549 - = = = = 17,549 = 17,549
At 31 December 2020 R-_ZE_TF
+=-A=+—-H 167914 928,721 19,658 204,554 292 [413,012) 908,127 129,731 1,037,858
Notes: By &t -

BIEPEARKNMBE(REDKRZIOME QR NOAR
ERAR - ANAF D BB B AR RS RE
MERMBREAAD KBRS Z A BB EG BAER
B EREESREZHBME QR EME AR 50%E
ARIEEE - ZAERBAREKIERFT BEKEH
BB A RIIZINE A o

(i) According fo the Arficles of Association of subsidiaries established in the (i)

People’s Republic of China ["PRC"), a portion of the profit after taxation of
the Company's PRC subsidiaries is required to be fransferred to a PRC
statutory reserve before distribution of a dividend to their equity owners. The
fransfer can cease when the balance of the reserve reaches 50% of the
registered capital of the respective subsidiaries. The statutory reserve can be
applied either to set off accumulated losses or to increase capital of the
respective subsidiaries.

AEEMEMRBEEBEADRBIEIBRBRAEEN T
MEAEERR_—_F - —FREEHEMELNENE
ARAEHEBE(EETPEEERE(ER R E42) 8
BHERANRKE39,316,0007T) &K ZHE

[i)  The other reserve of the Group represents the difference between the (i)
nominal amount of the share capital issued by the Company in exchange
for the nominal amount of the share capital and share premium of its
subsidiaries and the paidin capital of RMB39,316,000 of the PRC
Operational Entity (as defined in Nofte 42) pursuant fo the group
reorganisation in 201 1.
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2020 2019
—EC-EE —ZT—hEF
Notes RMB’000 RMB'000
Kt iF ARBT T AR T T
Operating activities ReETFTH
Loss before fax KBRS 18 (525,335) (411,355)
Adjustments for: BTARIEFR
Depreciation of property, plant and equipment ME - BERZBITE 17 104,407 105,974
Allowance for expected credit losses, RHEEBERERRFA
net of reversal 11 149,956 333,685
Impairment loss on property, plant and equipment Y R KR A N
and rightof-use assets EEREER 17 253,985 -
Amortisation of intangible assets B EERE 333 333
Depreciation of rightof-use assets FREESENE 18 3,942 4,024
Gain on disposal of property, plant and HEME  BERRELE
equipment, net R 58 Q (2,988) (177)
Gain on modification of bonds payable 1EF] FEHE 75 8 W s % (325) -
Gain on termination of a lease LI EE R MR % (54) -
Changes in fair value of investment properties KEYENFEED 19 (19,400) 6,286
Finance costs B & Bk AN 10 43,389 45,050
Interest income BB A (51) (133)
Unrealised exchange (gain)/loss REIRIE S (W), BB Q (22,243) 5,767
Equity-seftled share-based payments VARE 25 45 B9 AR 19 2 T 44 292 =
Operating cash flows before movements in HEERBYPHEER SRS
working capital (14,092) 89,454
Decrease/(increase) in frade and other receivables & Uiz B 3% % B #b & W Fom >~
(1% 4n) 110,170 (73,317)
(Increase)/decrease in confract assets AEHBEEGEM, B (13,675) 23,049
Decrease in frade and other payables JE 11 AR R % EL A FE A TN@Z? (18,568) (494)
Increase/|decrease) in contract liabilities SHaEEM Gl 20,354 (1206
Cash generated from operations EEMMENIRE 84,189 38,566
PRC income tax paid EANHPBEAEN (47,759) (2,250)
Net cash from operating activities RETBHRERESTE 36,430 36,316
Investing activities REEE
Purchase of property, plant and equipment BEWE BB IR (10,405) (14,941)
Capifal injection of investment in an associate REERANIEETE (150) —
Deposit (paid)/refunded for acquisition of property, FLUEEHZE - B R K&
plant and equipment (X)) REWEZES (10,331) /86
Proceeds from disposals of property, plant and HEME - BE KBS RIE
equipment 11,042 269
Interest received B RS 51 133
Net cash used in investing activities REETHARSTE (9,793) (13,753)
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L ey W iy, S i, B, S I, S, i, Sy, iy, S 8
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2020 2019
—E-2F TR
Notes RMB’000 RMB'000
B & N ARBFT
Financing activities BMEEH
New bank borrowings raised MBRTEE 288,400 418,000
Advance from directors of the Company REARARREZTME Y RIE 157,486 85,438
New other borrowings raised HEEMmEE 189,082 350,368
Advance from non-controlling shareholders of R E— B A B8R
a subsidiary MR B 2 FRIE 1,216 5,000
Proceeds received from share placements & 19 B & P15 508 33 17,549 =
Proceeds from issue of shares upon exercise of 1T R B ITR (D
share opfions P iS58 33 - 1,032
Repayment of lease liabilities BEHEAE 18 (1,203) (1,330)
Repayment of bank borrowings BERITEE (292,000) (445,670
Repayment to directors of the Company BERNABEFHIE (123,965) (81,037)
Inferest paid 21 F & (25,337) (26,348
Repayment of bonds BRES 31 (3,000) (6,030)
Repayment of other borrowings BEAMEES (204,160) (347,144
Repayment to non-controlling shareholders of ) — BT B 2 5 B FE4E iR
a subsidiary P ES VR ] (8,215) (6,209)
Dividend payment to non-controlling shareholders of 1 — R I B A 7] A9 3£ 12 I
a subsidiary P 3R ST AR R (5,793) (4,456)
Net cash used in financing activities RETBHFRMARESFEE (9,940) (58,386)
Net increase/(decrease) in cash and ReRRASEEWEM
cash equivalents (R D) #E 16,697 (35,823
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning FHHWRERRSZEEY
of the year 12,612 48,435
Cash and cash equivalents at end of FRNBRERREZEEY
the year, represented by MBITHEBRRESE
bank balances and cash 29,309 12,612
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For the year ended 31 December 2020 HEZE—_ZE —FF+-_A=+—HILFE

GENERAL

The Company was incorporated as an exempted company with
limited liability in the Cayman Islands and its shares are listed on
the Main Board of The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the
"Stock Exchange”). The Company's immediate and ultimate
holding company is Wangji Llimited, a limited company
incorporated in the British Virgin Islands, which is ultimately and
wholly owned by Mr. Liu Kaijin (“Mr. Liu"), who is the Executive
Director and chairman of the board of directors of the Company the
"Board”). The Company's registered office is located at Cricket
Square, Hutchins Drive, P.O. Box 2681, Grand Cayman, KY1-
1111, Cayman Islands and its principal place of business in Hong
Kong is located af Rooms 15012, 15/F., Siu On Plaza, 482
Jaffe Road, Causeway Bay, Hong Kong.

The Company acts as an investment holding company and the
particulars of ifs subsidiaries are set out in Note 42 to the
consolidated financial statements.

The consolidated financial statements are presented in Renminbi

("RMB"), which is also the functional currency of the Company.

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The Group has incurred loss for the year ended 31 December
2020 amounting to RMB537,364,000 and net current liabilities
of RMB557,449,000 as at 31 December 2020. As at 31
December 2020, the Group had not setiled the Bonds as defined
in Note 31 which had become due, with the outstanding principal
amount and interest amounting to RMB265,045,000 and
RMB22,437,000 respectively.

Pursuant to the Seventh Amendment Agreement as defined in Note
31, the Company shall be deemed fo have repaid the Bonds in
full if the Company repays the Bondholder an amount of
HK$98,359,000 on or before 31 March 2021. On 30 March
2021, the Company repaid HK$98,359,000 fo the Bondholder
in pursuant with term ¢ set out in the Seventh Amendment
Agreement as define in Note 31 and the management of the
Company considers that the Company is deemed fo have repaid
and sefiled the Bonds in full.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the directors of
the Group [the “Directors”) have given careful consideration fo the

future liquidity of the Group.

1.

—REHR

AAAiRBERESHE AR EEMK I AER R
ERAF - ERORBABERZIFNBERAR
([HMRADEREM - ARFTHNEEZERFKE
BRAFREEERAR —HAREBEZES
AMEKZIHERAR - ERARRMITESFR
Exe((EFxg)zRIARAELETREE]D
BEREEEHEB - ARRNFEMRESEMR
Cricket Square, Hutchins Drive, P.O. Box 2681, Grand
Cayman, KY1-1111, Cayman Islands » & B & 4 £
TREEMBUAR BB M EHLEBELI82H KR
E% 15 1501-2% -

ARRR—HREZRAR  EWEAAMN
BN RS M BEMRM T2

Pm;

HAUBBEBRUARETARED (FAEXRATA
MIREE ) 251 -

CAMBRENFERESE

AEERBE_ZT_EF+_A=+—HLHF
EREEIE A AREES373640007T K=
T-TE+_A=+-HAEARBEEFEA
R¥557,449000c - R—_E_FEF+ A=
+—H AEEHNALEEINHPES(E& L=
3 ERREMNEASBERINEDAABARE
265,045,000 & AR #E22 437 0007 ©

BREFELHBEHHE(EERERLWE3)  MAA
AR E-—F=ZA=+— B zaAESH
B ABIEO8 3500008 L AARERIEE R
HEBBESF R_ZT-_—E=A=1+8 K2 7
ERBELME & (ER LW THE K
)| EEHEFHE AEIES8,359,000/8 T » AR Al
ERERA ARAHAEERREEREN
&% o

EREEEMBERE A5EBEF(EF)E
BEEEAEENRRRHES
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2,

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
(CONTINUED)

The conditions described above indicate the existence of a
material uncertainty which may cast significant doubt on the
Group's ability fo confinue as a going concem and hence, ifs
ability to realise its assets and discharge its liabilities in the normal
course of business. The Direcfors have reviewed the Group’s cash
flow projections prepared by management. The cash flow
projections cover a period of not less than twelve months from the
end of the reporting period. They are of the opinion that, faking
into account the above-mentioned plans and measures, the Group
would have sufficient working capital to finance its operations and
to meet its financial obligations as and when they fall due within
the next twelve months from the end of the reporting period.
Nevertheless, the consolidated financial statements were prepared
based on the assumption that the Group can be operated as a
going concern, affer taking info consideration of the following:

(1) The Group contfinues to generate cash inflows from its
operafing acfivities by implementing measures fo fighten cost
confrols over various operating expenses in order fo improve
its cash flows position and fo generate greater positive cash
inflows from its operations in the future;

(2)  Since most of the bank borrowings as at 31 December
2020 of RMB293,400,000 were secured by the Group's
assefs, the Directors believe that it is highly probable that
they can be renewed in the next twelve months;

(3)  The Directors also believe that it is highly probable that other
borrowings as at 31 December 2020 of RMB78,943,000

can be renewed in the next twelve months; and

(4)  The Directors do not intend to demand repayment of
amounts due to directors amounted to RMB44,855,000 as
at 31 December 2020 until the Group has sufficient cash to

make repayment.

On the basis of the above considerations, the Directors believe that
the Group can satisfy its financial obligations in the foreseeable
future and accordingly, the consolidated financial statements have

been prepared on a going concemn basis.

e, W i S e S S iy, iy, iy, iy, W 8

2. GEUVBBRRNEREE@

EXARB TR EEERTRABARER A4
HASBEEBRRBECEEENRE I RERY
ER-—BREBBEPEREEEREERGEDN
ENELEREB EFCEHNEEEREN
AEEREREBN REREBAREAR
EMREFAIOR T ZEASMB - WERR 5
REztERER AEESERAREESR
ERERBEBREHREARK T —BEARNE
BREAMBTHIBUBEE -Af - REET
FJIBRRE HRAVBRERDEAEEAUFE
REMBREMBR :

(1) AEFEERAEHRWEHSHELEMX
IR ARERIE G EERBHKEEBLN
HeRE MRS EBBRRESTEMNR
MEEERNEEHRER

2) BHRR-_ZE_TFFT_A=+—HHAR
% 293,400,000 L RITEE X B D /A
SEEEFEER EFHE AK+-A
HBEERNH A RERX

3) BEBENMRAR_-_ZT-_TF+_-_A=+—H
BEAMEE AR 78,943,000 EH Al 42
RARERT—EAREE: &

4) BIFAEEERMBASENR EFTHE
RKEER-_Z_ZF+_A=+—HHE
NEEFIEA KM 44,8550007T °

RELEREX EEHEAEERATERLRRK
MRMNEMBEE BitHEE B BERRTI AR
BB AR -
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3. APPLICATION OF AMENDMENTS TO

HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“HKFRSs")

Amendments to HKFRSs that are mandatorily
effective for the current year

In the current year, the Group has applied the Amendments fo
References to the Conceptual Framework in HKFRS Standards and
the following amendments to HKFRSs issued by the Hong Kong
Institute of Certified Public Accountants ("HKICPA") for the first time,
which are mandatorily effective for the annual period beginning on
or affer 1 January 2020 for the preparation of the consolidated
financial stafements:

Amendments to HKAS 1 and  Definition of Material
HKAS 8

Amendments to HKFRS 3 Definition of a Business

Amendments to HKFRS 9, Interest Rate Benchmark Reform

HKAS 39 and HKFRS 7

Except as described below, the application of the Amendments fo
References fo the Conceptual Framework in HKFRS Standards and
the amendments to HKFRSs in the current year had no material
impact on the Group’s financial positions and performance for the
current and prior years and/or on the disclosures sef out in these

consolidated financial statements.

3.1 Impacts on application of Amendments to
HKAS 1 and HKAS 8 Definition of Material

The Group has applied the Amendments to HKAS 1 and
HKAS 8 for the first time in the current year. The amendments
provide a new definition of material that states “information
is material if omitfing, misstating or obscuring it could
reasonably be expected fo influence decisions that the
primary users of general purpose financial stafements make
on the basis of those financial statements, which provide
financial information about a specific reporting enfity.” The
amendments also clarify that materiality depends on the
nature or magnitude of information, either individually or in
combination with other information, in the context of the

financial statements taken as a whole.

The application of the amendments in the current year had
no impact on the consolidated financial statements.

3.

ERFHERNEBITER

RAFE AEHERERUBTEAVMBREE
AR ERHMIERNSIBNETRTIEE
AEFAMAS(EESMAS]) BEh2LE
RIBEEMBREER -REEGEM B REM
T RBSEADR-_ZE_TF-A—BH2E
B 4R 2 F 2 B0 ) 5 o AR A

EEGHEAZIRREE EANESR
SEHERE SR (BRI A)

BEEMBHRELAEINR EBNES
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ERUBREERFEOR - FRELERE

BAEGEAEION Kk
BREVBEREELET R
CHES)

BRTIXAEN RAFERBYE EBMBE R
SEARERHBHEIERN S BB REE
RIEEMBREENHAEEANRAFERBAE
FENTBERARRRAE REZEGAHB
BRRAENRELBERZE -

3 ERAEARASHEAFIRRER
B ENFEHR(ETF)ERY
EENTE
AEBERAFEEERERE SR ER
BIRRBEEREANESRUETA) - &
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i

3. APPLICATION OF AMENDMENTS TO 3. EHEBIEEMBHREER
HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING ([&# \M‘%ﬁ’z%i— A1)

STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”) (CONTINUED)

Amendments to HKFRSs that are mandatorily REAFERFHERNKEEBITESR

effective for the current year (Continued) B 7% 3R 45 % Bl ;)

3.2 Impacts on application of Amendments to 32 ERERBMBEREE ,EJJ 5 33k (18
HKFRS 3 Definition of a Business AR EBHNEENTE
The Group has applied the amendments for the first fime in AEBERAFEENERZBEAN %
the current year. The amendments clarify that while BAAES BEXBBTAEL BY
businesses usually have outputs, outputs are not required for R—HEEENEREEMS BAED
an infegrated sef of activities and assets to qualify as a el BB - EEREBER - T
business. To be considered a business, an acquired set of MN—HEHREENERLBIELRYA
activiies and assefs must include, at a minimum, an input EELENEEAGROKBALREE BN
and a substantive process that together significantly 72 e

contribute to the ability to create outputs.

The amendments remove the assessment of whether market FZIEFTAEBCETH 2 H & A g B
participants are capable of replacing any missing inputs or FEHBREAHEALBRER ﬁ BE LMY
processes and contfinuing to produce outputs. The e ZBITANSIABYREETRR D&
amendments also infroduce additional guidance that helps FEEMERENEINES -

to determine whether a substantive process has been

acquired.

In addition, the amendments introduce an optional Uboh - ZIEFTARSIATEE ML & EA
concentration test that permits a simplified assessment of Ao BEKBN—HEHREERS
whether an acquired set of activities and assetfs is not a REBE(L - BB EMNEDRE AR -
business. Under the optional concentration fest, the acquired MW EAEEZ A TEER EHEFR
set of acfivities and assets is not a business if substantially all E—rHpEES —AEUNEER AT
of the fair value of the gross assets acquired is concentrated WENZAETSREELIFBER %ﬁ% o &F
in a single identifiable asset or group of similar assets. The FREETEEERESAREEEY -

gross assefs under assessment exclude cash and cash MBEENLRBEERIBAGHZE ﬁﬁ%
equivalents, deferred tax assets, and goodwill resulting from FHEE - RRIREBERBREMEHRER
the effects of deferred tax liabilities. The election on whether RIBLBEETHET o

to apply the optional concentration fest is available on

fransaction-by-ransaction basis.

The amendments had no impact on the consolidated ZEFTAEAEBNGET BRI ER
financial statements of the Group but may impact future 2 EMASEBEELEAUE - BT e

periods should the Group make any acquisition. BERRHEAM ©
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APPLICATION OF AMENDMENTS TO
HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“HKFRSs") (CONTINUED)

New and amendments to HKFRSs in issue but
not yet effective

The Group has not early applied the following new and
amendments to HKFRSs that have been issued but are not yet

effective:

Insurance Contracts and the
related Amendments'

Covid-19-Related Rent
Concessions”

Reference to the Conceptual

HKFRS 17
Amendment to HKFRS 16

Amendments to HKFRS 3

Framework?
Amendments to HKFRS 9, Interest Rate Benchmark Reform
HKAS 39 and HKFRS 7, — Phase 2°

HKFRS 4 and HKFRS 16

Sale or Contribution of Assets
between an Investor and its
Associate or Joint Venture®

Amendments to HKFRS 10
and HKAS 28

Classification of liabiliies as
Current or Non-current and

Related amendments to Hong
Kong Interpretation 5 (2020

Amendments to HKAS 1

Amendments to HKAS 16 Property, Plant and Equipment
— Proceeds before Intended
Use?

Onerous Contracts — Cost of
Fulfilling a Contract?

Annual Improvements to HKFRSs

2018-2020?

Amendments to HKAS 37

Amendments to HKFRSs

Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2023.

Effective for annual periods beginning on or affer

1 January 2022.

Effective for annual periods beginning on or after a date fo be
determined.
Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 June 2020.

Effective for annual periods beginning on or affer

1 January 2021.

Except for the new and amendments to HKFRSs mentioned below,
the Directors anticipate that the application of all other new and
amendments to HKFRSs will have no material impact on the

consolidated financial statements in the foreseeable future.
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APPLICATION OF AMENDMENTS TO
HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“HKFRSS") (CONTINUED)

New and amendments to HKFRSs in issue but
not yet effective (Continued)

Amendments to HKFRSs Annual Improvements to
HKFRSs 2018-2020

The annual improvements make amendments to the following
standards.

HKFRS 9 Financial Instruments

The amendment clarifies that for the purpose of assessing whether
modification of ferms of original financial liability constitutes
substantial modification under the “10 per cent” fest, a borrower
includes only fees paid or received between the borrower and the
lender, including fees paid or received by either the borrower or

the lender on the other’s behalf.

HKFRS 16 Leases

The amendment to lllustrative Example 13 accompanying HKFRS
16 removes from the example the illustration of reimbursement
relating fo leasehold improvements by the lessor in order fo remove

any potential confusion.

HKAS 41 Agriculture

The amendment ensures consistency with the requirements in
HKFRS 13 Fair Value Measurement by removing the requirement in
paragroph 22 of HKAS 41 to exclude faxation cash flows when
measuring the fair value of a biclogical asset using a present value

technique.

The application of the amendments is not expected to have
significant impact on the financial position and performance of the
Group.

HEFARRIERERA A
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared in
accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards issued
by the HKICPA. In addition, the consolidated financial statements
include applicable disclosures required by the Rules Governing the
Listing of Securities on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited
(“Listing Rules”) and by the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared on the
historical cost basis except for investment properties that are
measured at fair values at the end of each reporting period, as

explained in the accounting policies set out below.

Historical cost is generally based on the fair value of the

consideration given in exchange for goods and services.

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or
paid fo fransfer a liability in an orderly transaction between market
participants af the measurement date, regardless of whether that
price is directly observable or estimated using another valuation
fechnique. In estimating the fair value of an asset or a liability, the
Group fakes into account the characteristics of the asset or liability
it market participants would take those characteristics info account
when pricing the asset or liability at the measurement date. Fair
value for measurement and/or disclosure purposes in these
consolidated financial statements is defermined on such a basis,
except for share-based payment transactions that are within the
scope of HKFRS 2 Share-based Payment, leasing transactions that
are accounted for in accordance with HKFRS 16 (since 1 January
2019) or HKAS 17 (before application of HKFRS 16), and
measurements that have some similarities to fair value but are nof
fair value, such as net realisable value in HKAS 2 Inventories or

value in use in HKAS 36 Impairment of Assets.

A fair value measurement of a nonfinancial assef takes into
account a market participant's ability to generate economic
benefits by using the assef in its highest and best use or by selling
it fo another market participant that would use the assef in its

highest and best use.

4., FTEEFTHE
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

For investment properties which are fransacted at fair value and a
valuation technique that unobservable inputs is to be used to
measure fair value in subsequent periods, the valuation technique
is calibrated so that at inifial recognition the results of the valuation

technique equals the transaction price.

reporting purposes, fair value
1, 2 or 3 based on the
degree to which the inputs fo the fair value measurements are

In addition, for financial

measurements are categorised info Llevel

observable and the significance of the inputs to the fair value

measurement in its entirety, which are described as follows:

e level 1 inputs are quoted prices [unadjusted) in acfive
markets for identical assets or liabilities that the entity can
access at the measurement date;

o level 2 inpufs are inputs, other than quoted prices included
within level 1, that are observable for the asset or liability,

either directly or indirectly; and

® level 3 inputs are unobservable inputs for the asset or

liability.
The principal accounting policies are set out below.

Basis of consolidation

The consolidated financial statements incorporate the financial
statements of the Company and entities (including structured
entities) controlled by the Company and its subsidiaries. Control is

achieved where the Company:
®  has power over the investee;

o is exposed, or has rights, to variable returns from its

involvement with the investee; and
®  has the ability to use its power to affect its retumns.
The Group reassesses whether or not it controls an investee if facts

and circumstances indicate that there are changes to one or more

of the three elements of control listed above.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

Basis of consolidation (Continued)

Consolidation of a subsidiary begins when the Group obtains
control over the subsidiary. Specifically, income and expenses of a
subsidiary acquired or disposed of during the year are included in
the consolidated statement of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income from the dafe when the Group gains
control until the dafe when the Group ceases to have control over
the subsidiary.

Profit or loss and each item of other comprehensive income are
affributed to the owners of the Company and to the non-controlling
inferests. Total comprehensive income of subsidiaries is affributed
fo the owners of the Company and to the non-controlling interests
even if this results in the non-controlling interests having a deficit
balance.

Where necessary, adjustments are made to the financial statements
of subsidiaries to bring their accounting policies into line with the

Group's accounting policies.

All infra-group assets and liabilifies, equity, income, expenses and
cash flows relating to transactions between members of the Group

are eliminated in full on consolidation.

Non-controlling interests in subsidiaries are presented separately
from the Group's equity therein, which represent present ownership
interests entitling their holders to a proportionate share of net assets
of the relevant subsidiaries upon liquidation.

Business combinations or asset acquisitions

Optional concentration test

Effective from 1 January 2020, the Group can elect to apply an
opfional concentration fest, on a fransaction- by-ransaction basis,
that permits a simplified assessment of whether an acquired sef of
acfivities and assefs is nof a business. The concentration fest is mef
if substantially all of the fair value of the gross assets acquired is
concenfrafed in a single identifiable asset or group of similar
identifiable assefs. The gross assefs under assessment exclude cash
and cash equivalents, deferred tax assets, and goodwill resulting
from the effects of deferred tax liabilities. If the concentration test is
met, the set of activities and assets is determined not to be a

business and no further assessment is needed.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

Business combinations or asset acquisitions
(Continued)

Asset acquisitions

When the Group acquires a group of assets and liabilities that do
not consfitute a business, the Group identifies and recognises the
individual identifiable assets acquired and liabilities assumed by
allocating the purchase price first fo invesiment properties which
are subsequently measured under fair value model and financial
assefs/financial liabilities at the respective fair values, the
remaining balance of the purchase price is then allocated to the
other identifiable assefs and liabilities on the basis of their relafive
fair values at the date of purchase. Such a transaction does not

give rise fo goodwill or bargain purchase gain.

Business combinations

Acquisitions of businesses, other than business combination under
common control are accounted for using the acquisition method.
The consideration transferred in @ business combination is
measured at fair value, which is calculated as the sum of the
acquisition-date fair values of the assefs transferred by the Group,
liabilities incurred by the Group fo the former owners of the
acquiree and the equity inferests issued by the Group in exchange
for control of the acquiree. Acquisition-related costs are generally

recognised in profit or loss as incurred.

Except for cerfain recognition exemptions, the identifiable assets
acquired and liabilities assumed must meet the definitions of an
asset and a liability in the International Accounting Standards
Committee's Framework for the Preparation and Presentation of
Financial Statements (replaced by the Conceptual Framework for

Financial Reporting issued in September 2010).
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4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

Business combinations or asset acquisitions
(Continued)

Business combinations (Continued)
At the acquisition date, the identifiable assets acquired and the

liabilities assumed are recognised at their fair value, except that:

. deferred tax assets or liabilities, and assets or liabilities
related to employee benefit arangements are recognised
and measured in accordance with HKAS 12 Income Taxes

and HKAS 19 Employee Benefits respectively;

e liabilities or equity instruments relafed to share-based
payment arrangements of the acquiree or sharebased
payment arrangements of the Group entered info fo replace
share-based payment arrangements of the acquiree are
measured in accordance with HKFRS 2 Share-based
Payment at the acquisition date (see the accounting policy

below);

e assefs or disposal groups| that are classified as held for sale
in accordance with HKFRS 5 Non-current Assets Held for
Sale and Discontinued Operations are measured in

accordance with that standard; and

J lease liabilities are recognised and measured at the present
value of the remaining lease payments (as defined in HKFRS
16) as if the acquired leases were new leases at the
acquisition date, except for leases for which (a) the lease
ferm ends within 12 months of the acquisition dafe; or (b)
the underlying asset is of low value. Rightof-use assefs are
recognised and measured at the same amount as the
relevant lease liabilities, adjusted to reflect favourable or
unfavourable terms of the lease when compared with market

ferms.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

Business combinations or asset acquisitions
(Continued)

Business combinations (Continued)

Goodwill is measured as the excess of the sum of the consideration
transferred, the amount of any non-controlling inferests in the
acquiree, and the fair value of the acquirer's previously held equity
inferest in the acquiree (if any] over the net amount of the
identifiable assets acquired and the liabilities assumed as at
acquisition date. If, after re-assessment, the net amount of the
identifiable assefs acquired and liabilities assumed exceeds the
sum of the consideration transferred, the amount of any non-
controlling interests in the acquiree and the fair value of the
acquirer's previously held interest in the acquiree (if any), the
excess is recognised immediately in profit or loss as a bargain
purchase gain.

Non-controlling interests that are present ownership inferests and
enfitle their holders fo a proportionate share of the relevant
subsidiary’s net assefs in the event of liquidation are initially
measured at the non-controlling interests’ proportionate share of the
recognised amounts of the acquiree’s identifiable net assets or at
fair value. The choice of measurement basis is made on a

fransaction-by-ransaction basis.

When the consideration fransferred by the Group in a business
combination includes a confingent consideration arrangement, the
confingent consideration is measured at its acquisition-date fair
value and included as part of the consideration transferred in a
business combination. Changes in the fair value of the contingent
consideration that qualify as measurement period adjustments are
adjusted  refrospectively. Measurement period adjustments are
adjustments that arise from additional information obtained during
the “measurement period” (which cannot exceed one year from the
acquisition date) about facts and circumstances that existed at the

acquisition date.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

Business combinations or asset acquisitions
(Continued)

Business combinations (Continued)

The subsequent accounting for the contingent consideration that do
not qualify as measurement period adjustments depends on how
the contingent consideration is classified. Contingent consideration
that is classified as equity is not remeasured at subsequent
reporting dates and its subsequent seflement is accounted for
within equity. Contingent consideration that is classified as an
asset or a liability is remeasured to fair value at subsequent
reporting dates, with the corresponding gain or loss being

recognised in profit or loss.

When a business combination is achieved in stages, the Group's
previously held equity inferest in the acquiree is remeasured to fair
value af the acquisition date [i.e. the date when the Group obtains
control), and the resulting gain or loss, if any, is recognised in
profit or loss or other comprehensive income, as appropriafe.
Amounts arising from interests in the acquiree prior fo the
acquisition date that have previously been recognised in other
comprehensive income and measured under HKFRS @ would be
accounted for on the same basis as would be required if the

Group had disposed directly of the previously held equity interest.

If the initial accounting for a business combination is incomplete by
the end of the reporting period in which the combination occurs,
the Group reports provisional amounts for the items for which the
accounting is incomplete. Those provisional amounts are adjusted
refrospectively during the measurement period (see above|, and
additional assets or liabilities are recognised, fo reflect new
information obtained about facts and circumstances that existed af
the acquisition date that, if known, would have affected the

amounts recognised at that date.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

Goodwill

Goodwill arising on an acquisition of a business is carried at cost
as established af the date of acquisition of the business less any

accumulated impairment losses, if any.

For the purposes of impairment testing, goodwill is allocated to
each of the Group's cash-generating units that is expected to
benefit from the synergies of the combination, which represent the
lowest level af which the goodwill is monitored for internal

management purposes and not larger than an operating segment.

A cash-generating unit to which goodwill has been allocated is
fested for impairment annually or more frequently when there is
indication that the unit may be impaired. If the recoverable amount
of the cash-generating unit is less than its carrying amount, the
impairment loss is allocated first to reduce the carmying amount of
any goodwill allocated to the unit and then to the other assets of
the unit on a pro rafa basis based on the carrying amount of each
assef in the unit. Any impairment loss for goodwill is recognised
directly in profit or loss. An impairment loss recognised for goodwill
is not reversed in subsequent periods.

On disposal of the relevant cash-generating unit or any of the cash-
generating unit within the group of cash-generating units, the
aftributable amount of goodwill is included in the determination of
the amount of profit or loss on disposal. VWhen the Group disposes
of an operation within the cash-generating unit, the amount of
goodwill disposed of is measured on the basis of the relative
values of the operation (or the cash-generating unit) disposed of

and the portion of the cash-generating unit retained.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

Investments in associates

An associate is an entity over which the Group has significant
influence. Significant influence is the power fo participate in the
financial and operating policy decisions of the investee but is not

control or joint control over those policies.

The results and assets and liabilities of associates are incorporated
in these consolidated financial stafements using the equity method
of accounting. The financial statements of associates used for
equity accounting purposes are prepared using uniform accounting
policies as those of the Group for like transactions and events in
similar circumsfances. Under the equity method, an investment in
an associafe is inifially recognised in the consolidated statement of
financial position at cost and adjusted thereafter to recognise the
Group's share of the profit or loss and other comprehensive income
of the associate. VWhen the Group's share of losses of an associate
exceeds the Group's interest in that associate (which includes any
longerm interests that, in substance, form part of the Group's net
invesiment in the associate), the Group discontinues recognising its
share of further losses. Additional losses are recognised only fo the
extent that the Group has incurred legal or constructive obligations
or made payments on behalf of the associate.

An investment in an associate is accounted for using the equity
method from the dafe on which the investee becomes an associate.
On acquisition of the investment in an associate, any excess of the
cost of the investment over the Group's share of the nef fair value
of the identifiable assets and liabilities of the investee is recognised
as goodwill, which is included within the carrying amount of the
investment. Any excess of the Group's share of the net fair value of
the identifiable assets and liabilities over the cost of the investment,
affer reassessment, is recognised immediately in profit or loss in the

period in which the investment is acquired.

The Group assesses whether there is an objective evidence that the
interest in an associate may be impaired. VWhen any objective
evidence exists, the entire carrying amount of the investment (including
goodwill] is tested for impairment in accordance with HKAS 36 as
a single asset by comparing its recoverable amount (higher of
value in use and fair value less costs of disposal) with its carrying
amount. Any impairment loss recognised is not allocated to any
asset, including goodwill, that forms part of the carrying amount of
the investment. Any reversal of that impairment loss is recognised in
accordance with HKAS 36 fo the extent that the recoverable

amount of the investment subsequently increases.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

Investments in associates (Continued)

When the Group ceases to have significant influence over an
associate, if is accounted for as a disposal of the entire interest in
the investee with a resulting gain or loss being recognised in profit
or loss. VWhen the Group retains an interest in the former associate
and the refained interest is a financial asset within the scope of
HKFRS 9, the Group measures the refained interest at fair value at
that date and the fair value is regarded as its fair value on initial
recognition. The difference between the carmying amount of the
associate and the fair value of any retained interest and any
proceeds from disposing of the relevant interest in the associate is
included in the determination of the gain or loss on disposal of the
associate. In addition, the Group accounts for all amounts
previously recognised in other comprehensive income in relation fo
that associate on the same basis as would be required if that
associate had directly disposed of the related assets or liabilities.
Therefore, if a gain or loss previously recognised in other
comprehensive income by that associate would be reclassified to
profit or loss on the disposal of the related assets or liabilities, the
Group reclassifies the gain or loss from equity to profit or loss (as a
reclassification adjustment] upon disposal /partial disposal of the

relevant associate.

When the Group reduces its ownership inferest in an associafe but
the Group confinues fo use the equity method, the Group
reclassifies to profit or loss the proportion of the gain or loss that
had previously been recognised in other comprehensive income
relating fo that reduction in ownership interest if that gain or loss
would be reclassified to profit or loss on the disposal of the related

assets or liabilities.

When a group entity fransacts with an associate of the Group,
profits and losses resulting from the transactions with the associate
are recognised in the consolidated financial statements only to the

extent of inferests in the associate that are nof related fo the Group.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

Government grants

Government grants are not recognised unfil there is reasonable
assurance that the Group will comply with the conditions affaching

to them and that the grants will be received.

Government grants are recognised in profit or loss on a systematic
basis over the periods in which the Group recognises as expenses
the related costs for which the grants are intended to compensate.

Government grants that are receivable as compensation for
expenses or losses already incurred or for the purpose of giving
immediate financial support to the Group with no future related
cosfs are recognised in profit or loss in the period in which they
become receivable. Such grants are presented under “other

income”.

Revenue from contracts with customers

The Group recognises revenue when (or as] a performance
obligation is satisfied, i.e. when “control” of the goods or services
underlying the particular performance obligation is fransferred to
the customer.

A performance obligation represents a good and service (or a
bundle of goods or services) that is distinct or a series of distinct

goods or services that are substantially the same.

Control is fransferred over time and revenue is recognised over
time by reference fo the progress towards complefe satisfaction of

the relevant performance obligation if one of the following criteria

is met:

e  the customer simultaneously receives and consumes the
benefits provided by the Group's performance as the Group
performs;

e the Group's performance creates and enhances an asset

that the cusfomer controls as the Group performs; or

e the Group's performance does not create an asset with an
alfernative use to the Group and the Group has an
enforceable right to payment for performance completed to
date.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

Revenue from contracts with customers
(Continued)

Otherwise, revenue is recognised at a point in fime when the

cusfomer obtains control of the distinct good or service.

A contract asset represents the Group's right to consideration in
exchange for goods or services that the Group has transferred to a
customer that is not yet unconditional. It is assessed for impairment
in accordance with HKFRS 9. In confrast, a receivable represents
the Group's unconditional right to consideration, i.e. only the
passage of time is required before payment of that consideration is

due.

A contract liability represents the Group's obligation to transfer
goods or services to a customer for which the Group has received
consideration (or an amount of consideration is due] from the

customer.

A contract asset and a confract liability relating to a confract are

accounted for and presented on a net basis.

Over time revenue recognition: measurement of
progress towards complete satisfaction of a
performance obligation

Output method

Where revenue is recognised over time, the progress fowards
complete satisfaction of a performance obligation is measured
based on output method, which is to recognise revenue on the
basis of direct measurements of the value of the goods or services
transferred to the customer to date relative to the remaining goods
or services promised under the confract, that best depict the
Group's performance in transferring control of goods or services.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

Revenue from contracts with customers
(Continued)

Over time revenue recognition: measurement of
progress towards complete satisfaction of a
performance obligation (Continued)

Variable consideration

For contfracts that contain variable consideration, the Group
esfimates the amount of consideration to which it will be entitled
using either (a) the expected value method or [b) the most likely
amount, depending on which method better predicts the amount of

consideration to which the Group will be enfitled.

The esfimated amount of variable consideration is included in the
fransaction price only to the extent that it is highly probable that
such an inclusion will not result in a significant revenue reversal in
the future when the uncertainty associated with the variable

consideration is subsequently resolved.

At the end of each reporting period, the Group updates the
estimated transaction price (including updating its assessment of
whether an esfimate of variable consideration is constrained) fo
represent faithfully the circumstances present at the end of the
reporting period and the changes in circumstances during the

reporting period.

Contract modifications are changes in the scope or price (or both)
of a contract that are approved by the parties to the contract. The
Group recognises a contract modification when the parties fo a
confract approve a modification that either creafes new, or
changes existing, enforceable rights and obligations of the parties
fo the confract. Confract modifications are included in the
fransaction price only if it is probable that the modification estimate
will not result in a significant reversal of revenue. The nature of the
Group's confracts seldom give rise o confract modifications based
on historical information and thus confract modifications are nof

routine in the performance of the Company's contracts.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

Property, plant and equipment
Property, plant and equipment including buildings and leasehold

land (classified as finance leases) held for use in the production or
supply of services or administrative purposes (other than
construction in progress as described below) are stated in the
consolidated statement of financial position af cost, less subsequent
accumulated depreciation and subsequent accumulated impairment

losses, if any.

Properties in the course of construction for production, supply or
administrative purposes are carried at cost, less any recognised
impairment loss. Cosfs include any cost directly attributable to
bringing the asset fo locafion and condition necessary for it to be
capable of operafing in the manner intended by management
and, for qualifying assets, borrowing costs capitalised in
accordance with the Group’s accounting policy. Such properties
are classified fo the appropriate categories of property, plant and
equipment when completed and ready for intended use.
Depreciation of these assets, on the same basis as other property
assefs, commences when the assets are ready for their intended

use.

If an item of property, plant and equipment becomes an investment
property because ifs use has changed as evidenced by end of
owneroccupation, any difference between the carrying amount
and the fair value of that item (including the relevant prepaid lease
payments) at the date of transfer is recognised in other
comprehensive income and accumulated in property revaluation
reserve. On the subsequent sale or retirement of the asset, the
relevant revaluation reserve will be transferred directly to refained

profits.

Depreciation is recognised so as to write off the cost of assets (other
than properties under construction) less their residual values over
their useful lives, using the straightline method. The estimated useful
lives, residual values and depreciation method are reviewed af the
end of each reporting period, with the effect of any changes in

esfimate accounted for on a prospective basis.

Assefs held under finance leases are depreciated over their

expected useful lives on the same basis as owned assets.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

Property, plant and equipment (Continued)

An item of property, plant and equipment is derecognised upon
disposal or when no future economic benefits are expected to arise
from the continued use of the asset. Any gain or loss arising on the
disposal or refirement of an item of property, plant and equipment
is determined as the difference befween the sales proceeds and

the carrying amount of the asset and is recognised in profit or loss.

Investment properties

Investment properties are properties or rightof-use assefs by the
lessee held to earn rentals and/or for capital appreciation (including

properties under construction for such purposes).

Investment properties are measured using their fair value model.
Gains or losses arising from changes in the fair value of investment
properties are included in profit or loss for the period in which they

arise.

An investment property is derecognised upon disposal or when the
investment property is permanently withdrawn from use and no
future economic benefits are expected from its disposals. Any gain
or loss arising on derecognition of the property (calculated as the
difference between the net disposal proceeds and the carrying
amount of the asset] is included in the profit or loss in the period in

which the property is derecognised.

Impairment losses on property, plant and
equipment and right-of-use assets

At the end of each reporting period, the Group reviews the
carrying amounts of its property, plant and equipment and rightof-
use assefs to determine whether there is any indication that those
assets have suffered an impairment loss. If any such indication
exists, the recoverable amount of the relevant asset is estimated in

order to defermine the extent of the impairment loss, if any.

4., FESITBER @)

M HERKE®@®

ME - BERXBRERLERAELERLS
ZEEERTEEEEM[ B &LHE T 55T
R -LEXFLEAYE BERRXEBEEM
EENEIRAUEXEREERS L EMSKAR
BERASHEMMNERE  UNBRER -

REWME

REMEDEABAFEERRDRES KX
FEREENMEXRERREE (BRER/ZA
BHERME)

REMEDMNABRAFERE FUGFE -BRE
MELAFEEHELNRAXNEBEEREELEH
At Az e

REMERBERZILERAKAREER -
WERREARENETNTRE - EAPER
IHEBEENEERERRFEERS W
BEMREERE) FAEHES-

NE BEERREBEUAREHAESR
ERERE

REBEMA AEESENEYE  BERR
BARERELENEDE LAKRTHE
AFRETZSEECLRRERE - 77
AAZETS AHEHAENTOKS HiE
st AEEREBR(NA) M2 -



116

China Dredging Environment Protection Holdings Limited

Notes to the Consolidated
Financial Statements (Continued)

e B 1% R 3R MY A |

For the year ended 31 December 2020 i Z — T —FF+ - A=+—HILFE

e, W i S e S S iy, iy, iy, iy, W 8

4,

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

Impairment losses on property, plant and
equipment and right-of-use assets (Continued)

The recoverable amount of property, plant and equipment and
rightof-use assefs are estimated individually, when it is not possible
fo estimate the recoverable amount of an asset individually, the
Group estimates the recoverable amount of the cash-generating
unit fo which the asset belongs.

In festing a cash-generating unit for impairment, corporate assets
are allocated to the relevant cash-generating unit when a
reasonable and consistent basis of allocation can be established,
or otherwise they are dllocated to the smallest group of cash
generating units for which a reasonable and consistent allocation
basis can be established. The recoverable amount is determined
for the cash-generating unit or group of cash-generating units fo
which the corporate asset belongs, and is compared with the
carrying amount of the relevant cash-generating unit or group of

cash-generating units.

Recoverable amount of property, plant and equipment and right-of-
use assefs is the higher of fair value less costs of disposal and
value in use. In assessing value in use, the estimated future cash
flows are discounted fo their present value using a pre-tax discount
rate that reflects current market assessments of the time value of
money and the risks specific fo the asset [as a cash-generating uni)
for which the estimates of future cash flows have not been
adjusted.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

Impairment losses on property, plant and
equipment and right-of-use assets (Continued)

If the recoverable amount of an asset is estimated fo be less than
its carrying amount, the carrying amount of the asset (or a cash-
generating unit) is reduced to its recoverable amount. For corporate
assefs or portion of corporate assets which cannof be allocated on
a reasonable and consistent basis to a cash-generating unit, the
Group compares the carrying amount of a group of cash-
generating units, including the carrying amounts of the corporate
assets or portion of corporate assefs allocated fo that group of
cash-generating units, with the recoverable amount of the group of
cash-generating units. In allocating the impairment loss, the
impairment loss is allocated first to reduce the carrying amount of
any goodwill (if applicable) and then to the other assefs on a pro-
rata basis based on the carrying amount of each asset in the unit
or the group of cash-generating units. The carrying amount of an
asset is not reduced below the highest of its fair value less costs of
disposal (if measurable), its value in use |(if deferminable] and zero.
The amount of the impairment loss that would otherwise have been
allocated to the asset is allocated pro rata to the other assets of the
unit or the group of cash-generating units. An impairment loss is
recognised immediately in profit or loss.

Where an impairment loss subsequently reverses, the carrying
amount of the asset (or a cash-generating unit) is increased fo the
revised estimate of its recoverable amount, but so that the
increased carrying amount does not exceed the carrying amount
that would have been defermined had no impairment loss been
recognised for the asset (or a cash-generating unif) in prior years.
A reversal of an impairment loss is recognised as income

immediately.
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4.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

Leases

Definition of a lease
A confract is, or contains, a lease if the confract conveys the right
to control the use of an identified asset for a period of fime in

exchange for consideration.

For contracts enfered into or modified or arising from business
combinations on or after the date of initial application, the Group
assesses whether a contract is or contains a lease based on the
definiion under HKFRS 16 af inception, modification date or
acquisition date, as appropriate. Such contract will not be
reassessed unless the terms and conditions of the confract are

subsequently changed.

The Group as a lessee

Allocation of consideration to components of a contract
For a contract that contains a lease component and one or more
additional lease or nonlease components, the Group allocates the
consideration in the confract to each lease component on the basis
of the relative stand-alone price of the lease component and the

aggregate stand-alone price of the nonlease components.

Non-lease components are separated from lease component on

the basis of their relative stand-alone prices.

Short-term leases and leases of low-value assets

The Group applies the shorterm lease recognition exemption to
leases of property, plant and equipment that have a lease ferm of
12 months or less from the commencement dafe and do not
contain a purchase optfion. It also applies the recognition
exemption for lease of low-value assets. lease payments on short-
ferm leases and leases of low-value assets are recognised as
expense on a sfraightline basis or another systematic basis over
the lease ferm.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

Leases (Continued)

The Group as a lessee (Continued)
Right-of-use assets

The cost of right-of-use asset includes:
®  the amount of the initial measurement of the lease liability;

®  any lease payments made at or before the commencement

date, less any lease incentives received;
e any initial direct costs incurred by the Group; and

®*  an estimate of costs fo be incurred by the Group in
dismantling and removing the underlying assefs, resforing
the site on which it is located or restoring the underlying
asset fo the condition required by the terms and conditions

of the lease.

Rightofuse assefs are measured at cost, less any accumulated
depreciation and impairment losses, and adjusted for any

remeasurement of lease liabilities.

Rightof-use assefs in which the Group is reasonably certain to
obtain ownership of the underlying leased assets at the end of the
lease term are depreciated from commencement date to the end of
the useful life. Otherwise, rightof-use assets are depreciated on a
straightline basis over the shorter of its estimated useful life and the

lease term.

The Group presents rightof-use assefs as a separate line item on

the consolidated statement of financial position.

Refundable rental deposits

Refundable rental deposits paid are accounted under HKFRS @
Financial Instruments ("HKFRS Q") and initially measured at fair
value. Adjustments fo fair value at initial recognition are considered
as addifional lease payments and included in the cost of rightof-

use assets.

4., FESITBER @)

HEm

AEBEEFABA @
FREEE
FREEERABIE:

s MEREMUIFIESHE:

s REBBHHZAIEHMEMEENK
BMEFMSKEERS

s AKREEANEAVFIEERAE: &

s AEERBIERHEBEE REMLBE
EMAESKSHEAEEREZEE KK
KGR E M BB E LR AR ©

EREEERKANBEIMR;TEREERE
AR UYRERNENAEREAGRELRE -

AEEAEREXNHERARKNGHEBEES
BERARNEREEEMRKAYREAER
FHERFE - TR ERABREEREMFAE
REAREERNREERERENE -

AEBRGEAMBRARBEREREEZI R
B IAR e

AREHERS
ENAREHERSREFEVHRERLAEC
FEMTATEEMBREENFIR]) AR
YTHMFRAFEFE RUEERSEAFE
MABREASRIEENK X ARRESR
BERA ©



120  China Dredging Environment Protection Holdings Limited FEIIARRIZRBERA R

Notes to the Consolidated
Financial Statements (Continued)

5 B 5 R AR B R (D

For the year ended 31 December 2020 HEZE =T =_FTF+ZA=+—HLLFE

e, W i S e S S iy, iy, iy, iy, W 8

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 4. FESTHTBER@

(CONTINUED)

Leases (Continued) HE @)

The Group as lessee (Continued) AEBERAEA @

Lease liabilities HEEE

At the commencement date of a lease, the Group recognises and REERKBY AEBEERZEBAIMNZHE
measures the lease liability af the present value of lease payments ENRAEBERLAEHEEGE - RFEHE
that are unpaid at that date. In calculating the present value of RZIBEE HESHXYEY RASRET  J)
lease payments, the Group uses the incremental borrowing rate at AEEFERAEERBBE PN S ERAE-

the lease commencement date if the interest rate implicit in the
lease is not readily deferminable.

The lease payments include: HERMNKBE :

e fixed payments (including in-substance fixed payments) less o FEMNR(BIEEEBEFE M) BT A ER
any lease incentives receivable; HEEE:

e variable lease payments that depend on an index or a rate, o AEHEENZ HE RN —EHEHKE
initially measured using the index or rate as at the o FRAAGAHANERRERETISR
commencement date: &

e amounts expecled fo be payable by the Group under e RBEFNHBEEEFRBHAEZEEETINN
residual value guarantees; ok

e  the exercise price of a purchase option if the Group is o AEREHBAASETFENEEEERD
reasonably cerfain fo exercise the opfion; and TEE: &

° payments of penalties for terminating a lease, if the lease ° HEEER R AREBITER FEERE
term reflects the Group exercising an opfion fo ferminate the BB IE&R IEHE RS BT K -
lease.

After the commencement date, lease liabilities are adjusted by REWGLBHEE BEafEfagmciEsn

interest accrefion and lease payments. B
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

Leases (Continued)

The Group as lessee (Continued)
Lease liabilities (Continued)
The Group remeasures lease liabilities (and makes a corresponding

adjustment to the related rightofuse assefs) whenever:

e  the lease term has changed or there is a change in the
assessment of exercise of a purchase opfion, in which case
the related lease liability is remeasured by discounting the
revised lease payments using a revised discount rate at the
dafe of reassessment.

e the lease payments change due to changes in market rental
rafes following a market rent review/expected payment
under a guaranteed residual value, in which cases the
related lease liability is remeasured by discounting the

revised lease payments using the initial discount rafe.

The Group presents lease liabilities as a separate line item on the
consolidated statement of financial position.

The Group as lessor

Classification and measurement of leases

Leases for which the Group is a lessor are classified as finance or
operating leases. Whenever the terms of the lease transfer
substantially all the risks and rewards incidental fo ownership of an
underlying asset fo the lessee, the contract is classified as a finance

lease. All other leases are classified as operating leases.

Amounts due from lessees under finance leases are recognised as
receivables at commencement date at amounts equal to net
invesiments in the leases, measured using the inferest rate implicit
in the respective leases. Inifial direct costs (other than those incurred
by manufacturer or dealer lessors) are included in the inifial
measurement of the nef investments in the leases. Interest income is
allocated to accounting periods so as fo reflect a constant periodic
rate of refurn on the Group's net invesiment outstanding in respect
of the leases.
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4.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

Leases (Continued)

The Group as lessor (Continued)

Classification and measurement of leases (Continued)
Rental income from operating leases is recognised in profit or loss
on a straightline basis over the ferm of the relevant lease. Initial
direct cosfs incurred in negotiating and arranging an operating
lease are added fo the carrying amount of the leased asset, and
such cosfs are recognised as an expense on a straightline basis
over the lease ferm except for investment properties measured
under fair value model. Variable lease payments for operating
leases that depend on an index or a rafe are estimated and
included in the fotal lease payments fo be recognised on a straight-
line basis over the lease term. Variable lease payments that do not
depend on an index or a rate are recognised as income when
they arise. When a lease confract contains a specific clause that
provides for rent reduction or suspension of rent in the event that
the underlying assets (or any part thereof) are affected by adverse
events beyond the control of the Group and the lessee so as to
render the underlying assets unfit or not available for use, the
relevant rent reduction or suspension of rent resulting from the
specific clause is accounted for as part of the original lease and
not as a lease modification. Such rent reduction or suspension of
rent is recognised in profit or loss in the period in which the event

or condition that triggers those payments to occur.

Inferest and rental income which are derived from the Group's

ordinary course of business are presented as revenue.

Allocation of consideration to components of a contract
When a contract includes both leases and non-lease components,
the Group applies HKFRS 15 Revenue from Contracts with
Customers ["HKFRS 15”) to allocate consideration in a contract to
lease and nonlease components. Nonlease components are
separated from lease component on the basis of their relative

stand-alone selling prices.

Refundable rental deposits

Refundable rental deposits received are accounted for under
HKFRS 9 and initially measured at fair value. Adjustments to fair
value at initial recognition are considered as additional lease

payments from lessees.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

Foreign currencies

In preparing the financial statements of each individual group
enfity, transactions in currencies other than the entity’s funcfional
currency (foreign currencies) are recognised af the rates of
exchange prevailing at the dates of the transactions. At the end of
the reporting period, monefary items denominated in foreign
currencies are refranslated at the rates prevailing at that date. Non-
monetary items that are measured in ferms of historical cost in a
foreign currency are not refranslated.

Exchange differences arising on the seftlement of monetary items,
and on the refranslation of monetary items, are recognised in profit

or loss in the period in which they arise.

Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition, construction
or production of qualifying assets, which are assets that necessarily
take a substantial period of fime fo get ready for their infended use
or sale, are added to the cost of those assets, until such time as the
assets are substantially ready for their intended use or sale.

Any specific borrowing that remain outstanding after the relafed
asset is ready for its infended use or sale is included in the general
borrowing pool for calculation of capitalisation rate on general
borrowings. Investment income earned on the temporary investment
of specific borrowings pending their expenditure on qualifying
assefs is deducted from the borrowing costs eligible for

capitalisation.

All other borrowing costs are recognised in profit or loss in the

period in which they are incurred.

Retirement benefit costs

Payments to defined confribution schemes are recognised as an
expense when employees have rendered service entitling them to
the contributions. For forfeited contributions that are not vest fully, if
any, may be used to reduce the existing level of confributions.

Payments made fo stafemanaged retirement benefit schemes are
dealt with as payments to defined contribution plans where the
Croup's obligafions under the schemes are equivalent to those

arising in a defined contribution refirement benefit plan.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

Short-term and other long-term employee
benefits

Shortterm employee benefits are recognised at the undiscounted
amount of the benefits expected to be paid as and when
employees rendered the services. All shortterm employee benefits
are recognised as an expense unless another HKFRS requires or

permits the inclusion of the benéfit in the cost of an asset.

A liability is recognised for benefits accruing to employees (such as
wages and salaries, annual leave and sick leave) affer deducting

any amount already paid.

Liabilities recognised in respect of other longterm employee
benefits are measured at the present value of the estimated future
cash outflows expected to be made by the Group in respect of
services provided by employees up to the reporting date. Any
changes in the liabilities’ carrying amounts resulting from service
cost, interest and remeasurements are recognised in profit or loss
except fo the extent that another HKFRS requires or permits their

inclusion in the cost of an asset.

Taxation

Income fax expense represents the sum of the tax currently payable

and deferred tax.

Current Tax

The tax currently payable is based on taxable profit for the year.
Taxable profit differs from “(loss) profit before tax” as reported in
the consolidated statement of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income because of items of income or expense that
are faxable or deductible in other years and items that are never
taxable or deductible. The Group's liability for current tax is
calculated using tax rates that have been enacted or substantively

enacted by the end of each reporting period.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

Taxation (Continued)

Deferred Tax

Deferred tax is recognised on femporary differences between the
carrying amounts of assets and liabilities in the consolidated
financial statements and the corresponding tax bases used in the
computation of taxable profit. Deferred tax liabilities are generally
recognised for all taxable temporary differences. Deferred tax
assefs are generally recognised for all deductible temporary
differences fo the extent that it is probable that taxable profits will
be available against which those deductible temporary differences
can be utilised. Such deferred tax assefs and liabilities are nof
recognised if the femporary difference arises from the inifial
recognition (other than in a business combination) of assefs and
liabilities in a transaction that affects neither the taxable profit nor
the accounting profit. In addition, deferred tax liabilities are not
recognised if the temporary difference arises from the initial

recognition of goodwill.

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for taxable temporary
differences associated with investments in subsidiaries, except
where the Group is able to control the reversal of the temporary
difference and it is probable that the temporary difference will not
reverse in the foreseeable future. Deferred tax assefs arising from
deductible temporary differences associated with such investments
are only recognised to the extent that it is probable that there will
be sufficient taxable profits against which to utilise the benefits of
the temporary differences and they are expected to reverse in the
foreseeable future.

The carrying amount of deferred fax assets is reviewed af the end
of each reporting period and reduced to the extent that it is no
longer probable that sufficient taxable profits will be available to

allow all or part of the asset to be recovered.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax rates that
are expected to apply in the period in which the liability is seftled,
or the asset is realised based on tax rate (and tax laws) that have
been enacted or subsfantively enacted by the end of the reporting

period.
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4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 4. FESTHTBER@

(CONTINUED)

Taxation (Continued)

Deferred Tax (Continued)

The measurement of deferred tax liabilities and assets reflects the
fax consequences that would follow from the manner in which the
Group expects, af the end of the reporting period, to recover or

seftle the carrying amount of its assets and liabilities.

For the purposes of measuring deferred tax for investment
properties that are measured using the fair value model, the
carrying amounts of such properties are presumed to be recovered
enfirely through sale, unless the presumption is rebutted. The
presumption is rebutted when the investment property is
depreciable and is held within a business model whose objective
is fo consume substantially of the economic benefits embodied in
the investment property over time, rather than through sale.

Deferred fax assets and liabilities are offset when there is a legally
enforceable right to set off current tax assefs against current tax
liabilities and when they relate to income taxes levied by the same

taxation authority.

Current and deferred tax for the year

Current and deferred tax are recognised in profit or loss, except
when they relate to items that are recognised in other
comprehensive income or directly in equity, in which case the
current and deferred tax are also recognised in other
comprehensive income or directly in equity respectively. Where
current tax or deferred tax arises from the initial accounting for a
business combination, the tax effect is included in the accounting

for the business combination.

Share-based payments

Equity-settled share-based payment transactions
Share options granted to employees

Equity-sefled share-based payments fo employees and others
providing similar services are measured at the fair value of the

equity insfruments at the grant date.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

Share-based payments (Confinued)

Equity-settled share-based payment transactions
(Continued)

Share options granted to employees (Continued)

The fair value of the equity-sefled share-based payments
defermined at the grant date without taking into consideration all
non-market vesting conditions is expensed on a straightline basis
over the vesting period, based on the Group's estimate of equity
instruments that will eventually vest, with a corresponding increase
in equity (share options reserve). At the end of each reporting
period, the Group revises ifs estimate of the number of equity
instruments expected fo vest based on assessment of all relevant
non-market vesting conditions. The impact of the revision of the
original estimates, if any, is recognised in profit or loss such that
the cumulative expense reflects the revised estimate, with a

corresponding adjustment to the share options reserve.

When share options are exercised, the amount previously
recognised in share options reserve will be transferred fo share
capital and share premium. When the share options are forfeited
affer the vesting date or are sfill not exercised at the expiry date,
the amount previously recognised in share options reserve will be

transferred fo retained profits.

Provisions

Provisions are recognised when the Group has a present obligation
(legal or constructive) as a result of a past event, it is probable that
the Group will be required to settle that obligation, and a reliable

estimate can be made of the amount of the obligation.

The amount recognised as a provision is the best estimate of the
consideration required fo seftle the present obligation at the end of
the reporting period, taking into account the risks and uncertainties
surrounding the obligation. When a provision is measured using
the cash flows estimated to seffle the present obligation, its carrying
amount is the present value of those cash flows (where the effect of

the time value of money is material).
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

Financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are recognised when a
group enfity becomes a party to the confractual provisions of the
instrument. All regular way purchases or sales of financial assets
are recognised and derecognised on a trade date basis. Regular
way purchases or sales are purchases or sales of financial assefs
that require delivery of assets within the fime frame established by

regulation or convention in the market place.

Financial assefs and financial liabilities are inifially measured af
fair value except for frade receivables arising from contracts with
customers which are initially measured in accordance with HKFRS
15. Transaction costs that are directly affributable fo the acquisition
or issue of financial assets and financial liabilities (other than
financial assets or financial liabilities at fair value through profit or
loss) are added to or deducted from the fair value of the financial
assets or financial liabilities, as appropriate, on initial recognition.
Transaction costs directly attributable to the acquisition of financial
assefs or financial liabilities af fair value through profit or loss are
recognised immediately in profit or loss.

The effective interest method is a method of calculating the
amortised cost of a financial asset or financial liability and of
allocating interest income and interest expense over the relevant
period. The effective inferest rate is the rate that exactly discounts
esfimated future cash receipts and payments (including all fees and
points paid or received that form an integral part of the effective
interest rate, fransaction costs and other premiums or discounts)
through the expected life of the financial asset or financial liability,
or, where appropriate, a shorter period, fo the net carmying amount

on inifial recognition.

Inferest income which are derived from the Group's ordinary
course of business are presented as revenue.

FPEIZRRIZEREBRAE

4., FESITBER @)

€I A

CREENSRAGHESEERKARESY
BXWAHNTRHER MBESREETREER
KHETARRKX S AERRKILHER - BREHK
HESREENEABEXLETAZRNT
BERBINERAENREEEARNEE -

TREEREBRABVIEAVEFE BE
AUMBBREEANSISHENTAENTFAORE
WA - WERETEREEREREE
BEREANRIRARNTERBTASRE
ExcRaE(REaRRAFEIENSRE
EFeRAEERIINNAFEXLBERAFERR
(@) ARBEREBEREZAFEINERHE
REESCRAEBERELENIHZRANEFR

ERMBENAEARYREREEXERE
BEHERARDENBRARANBRAXNTT
HoBRNMEDRNAERARREBREELS
BABENBEFFHK(ER) B2 RS
ARASRX (BREBXERF XA HRE D
MXNERBOAEFEERYES RHKA
REMBEXITE) ERMREREFENF

AEE-REBBEFELENNERAZINSG

Wezs



For the year ended 31 December 2020 #{ 2= —Z —

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(CONTINUED)

Financial instruments (Continued)

Financial assets

Classification and subsequent measurement of financial
assets

Financial assets that meet the following conditions are subsequently

measured aft amortised cost:

. the financial asset is held within a business model whose

objective is o collect contractual cash flows; and

e the contractual terms give rise on specified dates fo cash
flows that are solely payments of principal and inferest on

the principal amount outstanding.

Financial assets that meet the following conditions are subsequently
measured at fair value through other comprehensive income

("FVTOCI"):

° the financial asset is held within a business model whose
objective is achieved by both selling and collecting
contractual cash flows; and

e the contractual terms give rise on specified dates fo cash
flows that are solely payments of principal and inferest on

the principal amount outstanding.

All other financial assefs are subsequently measured at fair value
through profit or loss ("FVTPL"), except that at the date of initial
application of HKFRS Q/initial recognition of a financial asset the
Croup may irrevocably elect to present subsequent changes in fair
value of an equity investment in OCI if that equity investment is
neither held for trading nor contingent consideration recognised by
an acquirer in a business combination to which HKFRS 3 Business

Combinations applies.
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4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

Financial instruments (Continued)

Financial assets (Continued)
Classification and subsequent measurement of financia
assets (Continued)

A financial asset is held for trading if:

it has been acquired principally for the purpose of selling in

the near term; or

on inifial recognition it is a part of a porffolio of identified
financial instruments that the Group manages together and

has a recent actual pattern of shortferm profitiaking; or

it is a derivative that is not designated and effective as a

hedging instrument.

In addition, the Group may irevocably designate a financial asset

that are required to be measured at the amortised cost or FVTOCI

as measured at FVTPL if doing so eliminates or significantly reduces

an accounting mismatch.

(i

Amortised cost and interest income

Inferest income is recognised using the effective interest
method for financial assets measured subsequently af
amortised cost and debt instruments/receivables
subsequently measured at FVTOCI. For financial instruments
other than purchased or originated creditimpaired financial
assets, inferest income is calculated by applying the effective
inferest rate to the gross carrying amount of a financial asset,
except for financial assets that have subsequently become
creditimpaired. For financial assets that have subsequently
become creditimpaired, interest income is recognised by
applying the effective interest rate to the amortised cost of
the financial asset from the next reporting period. If the credit
risk on the credit impaired financial instrument improves so
that the financial asset is no longer creditimpaired, interest
income is recognised by applying the effecfive interest rate
fo the gross carrying amount of the financial asset from the
beginning of the reporting period following the defermination
that the asset is no longer credit impaired.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

Financial instruments (Continued)

Financial assets (Continued)

Impairment of financial assets

The Group performs impairment assessment under expected credit
loss ("ECL") model on financial assets (including trade and other
receivables and bank balances), and other items (including
confract assefs) which are subject to impairment under HKFRS 9
(including trade receivables and contract assets). The amount of
ECL is updated at each reporting date to reflect changes in credit

risk since initial recognition.

Lifetime ECL represents the ECL that will result from all possible
default events over the expected life of the relevant instrument. In
contrast, 12-month ECL ("12m ECL") represents the portion of
lifetime ECL that is expected fo result from default events that are
possible within 12 months after the reporting date. Assessment are
done based on the Group's historical credit loss experience,
adjusted for factors that are specific to the debtors, general
economic conditions and an assessment of both the current
conditions af the reporting date as well as the forecast of future
conditions.

The Group always recognises lifetime ECL for frade receivables
and contract assefs without significant financing component. The
ECL on these assefs are assessed individually for debtors with
significant balances and/or collectively using a provision matrix

with appropriate groupings.

For all other instruments, the Group measures the loss allowance
equal to 12m ECL, unless when there has been a significant
increase in credit risk since initial recognition, the Group
recognises lifetime ECL. The assessment of whether lifetime ECL
should be recognised is based on significant increases in the
likelihood or risk of a default occurring since initial recognition.
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4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

Financial instruments (Continued)

Financial assets (Continued)
Impairment of financial assets (Continued)

(i

Significant increase in credit risk

In assessing whether the credit risk has increased
significantly since initial recognition, the Group compares
the risk of a default occurring on the financial instrument as
af the reporting date with the risk of a default occurring on
the financial instrument as at the date of initial recognition.
In making this assessment, the Group considers both
quantifative and qualitative information that is reasonable
and supportable, including hisforical experience and
forward-looking information that is available without undue

cost or effort.

In particular, the following information is taken info account
when assessing whether credit risk has increased

significantly:

e an actual or expected significant deferioration in the
financial instrument’s external (if available) or internal

credit rafing;

e significant deferioration in external market indicators
of credit risk, e.g. a significant increase in the credit

spread, the credit default swap prices for the debtor;

e  existing or forecast adverse changes in business,
financial or economic conditions that are expected to
cause a significant decrease in the debtor’s ability to

meet its debt obligations;

e an actual or expected significant deferioration in the
operating results of the debtor;

e an actual or expected significant adverse change in

the regulatory, economic, or technological
environment of the debtor that results in a significant
decrease in the debtor's ability to meet its debt

obligations.
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4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

Financial instruments (Continued)

Financial assets (Continued)
Impairment of financial assets (Continued)

(i

Significant increase in credit risk (Continued)

Irespective of the outcome of the above assessment, the
Group presumes that the credit risk has increased
significantly since initial recognition when contractual
payments are more than 30 days past due, unless the
Group has reasonable and supportable information  that

demonstrates otherwise.

Despite the aforegoing, the Group assumes that the credit
risk on a debt instrument has not increased significantly since
inifial recognition if the debt instrument is determined to have
low credit risk af the reporting date. A debt instrument is
determined to have low credit risk if i) it has a low risk of
default, ii) the borrower has a strong capacity to meet ifs
contfractual cash flow obligations in the near term and iii)
adverse changes in economic and business conditions in the
longer term may, but will not necessarily, reduce the ability
of the borrower to fulfil its contractual cash flow obligations.
The Group considers a debt insfrument to have low credit
risk when it has an internal or external credit rating of

'investment grade’ as per globally understood definitions.

The Group regularly monitors the effectiveness of the criferia
used tfo identify whether there has been a significant
increase in credif risk and revises them as appropriate fo
ensure that the criteria are capable of identifying significant

increase in credit risk before the amount becomes past due.
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4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

Financial instruments (Continued)

Financial assets (Continued)
Impairment of financial assets (Continued)

(i)

(i)

Definition of default

For internal credit risk management, the Group considers an
event of default occurs when information developed
internally or obtained from external sources indicates that the
debtor is unlikely to pay its creditors, including the Group, in
full {without taking info account any collaterals held by the
Group).

Irespective of the above, the Group considers that default
has occurred when a financial asset is more than 90 days
past due unless the Group has reasonable and supportable
information fo demonstrate that a more lagging default
criferion is more appropriafe. For contracts with large sfafe-
owned enterprise or local government, the Group would
assess the exposure individually taking info consideration
specific facts and circumstances in considering when an

event of default has occurred.

Creditimpaired financial assets

A financial asset is creditimpaired when one or more events
of default that have a detrimental impact on the estimated
future cash flows of that financial asset have occurred.
Evidence that a financial asset is credit impaired includes
observable data about the following eventfs:

[a)  significant financial difficulty of the issuer or the

borrower;

[b) @ breach of confract, such as a default or past due

event;

(c)  the lender(s) of the borrower, for economic or
contractual reasons relating fo the borrower's financia

difficulty, having granted to the borrower a
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4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

Financial instruments (Continued)

Financial assets (Continued)
Impairment of financial assets (Continued)

(iv)

v)

Write-off policy

The Group writes off a financial asset when there is
information indicating that the counterparty is in severe
financial difficulty and there is no redlistic prospect of
recovery, for example, when the counterparty has been
placed under liquidation or has enfered into bankruptcy
proceedings, or in the case of frade receivables, when the
amounts are over five years past due, whichever occurs
sooner. Financial assefs written off may still be subject o
enforcement activities under the Group's recovery
procedures. A writeoff consfitutes a derecognition event.
Any subsequent recoveries are recognised in profit or loss.

Measurement and recognition of ECL

The measurement of ECL is a funcfion of the probability of
default, loss given default (i.e. the magnitude of the loss if
there is a defaul) and the exposure at default. The
assessment of the probability of default and loss given
default is based on hisforical data adjusted by forward-
looking information. Estimation of ECL reflects an unbiased
and probability-weighted amount that is defermined with the

respective risks of default occurring as the weights.

Generally, the ECL is the difference between all contractual
cash flows that are due to the Group in accordance with the
confract and the cash flows that the Group expects to
receive, discounted at the effective inferest rate determined

at initial recognition.
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4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

Financial instruments (Continued)

Financial assets (Continued)
Impairment of financial assets (Continued)

v)

Measurement and recognition of ECL (Continued)

Where ECL is measured on a collective basis or cater for
cases where evidence at the individual instrument level may
not yet be available, the financial instruments are grouped
on the customer basis:

o Nature of financial instruments (i.e. the Group's trade
and other receivables are each assessed as a

separate group);

° Past-due status;
° Nature, size and industry of debtors; and
o External credit ratings where available.

The grouping is regularly reviewed by management fo
ensure the consfituents of each group confinue fo share
similar credif risk characteristics.

Inferest income is calculated based on the gross carrying
amount of the financial asset unless the financial asset is
credit impaired, in which case interest income is calculated
based on amortised cost of the financial asset.

The Group recognises an impairment gain or loss in profit or
loss for all financial instruments by adjusting their carrying
amount, with the exception of trade receivables and contract
assets where the coresponding adjustment is recognised
through a loss allowance account.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

Financial instruments (Continued)

Financial assets (Continued)

Derecognition of financial assets

A financial asset (or, where applicable, a part of a financial asset
or part of a group of similar financial assefs) is primarily
derecognised (i.e., removed from the Company's stafement of

financial position) when:

e the rights fo receive cash flows from the asset have expired;
or
e the Company has fransferred its rights fo receive cash flows

from the asset or has assumed an obligation to pay the
received cash flows in full without material delay to a third
party under a “passthrough” arrangement; and either (a) the
Company has transferred substantially all the risks and
rewards of the asset, or [b) the Company has neither
fransferred nor refained substantially all the risks and rewards

of the asset, but has transferred control of the asset.

When the Company has fransferred its rights o receive cash flows
from an asset or has entered info a passthrough arrangement, it
evaluates if and fo what exfent it has retained the risk and rewards
of ownership of the asset. When it has neither transferred nor
retained subsfantially all the risks and rewards of the asset nor
fransferred control of the asset, the Company confinues to
recognise the fransferred asset fo the extent of the Company's
continuing involvement. In that case, the Company also recognises
an associated liability. The transferred asset and the associated
liability are measured on a basis that reflects the rights and

obligations that the Company has refained.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

Financial instruments (Continued)

Financial liabilities and equity instruments
Classification as debt or equity

Debt and equity instruments issued by a group entity are classified
as either financial liabilities or as equity in accordance with the
substance of the contractual arrangements entered into and the

definitions of a financial liability and an equity instrument.

Equity instrument

An equity instrument is any confract that evidences a residual
interest in the assets of the Group affer deducting all of its liabilities.
Equity instruments issued by the Company are recognised at the

proceeds received, net of direct issue costs.

Effective interest method

The effective interest method is a method of calculating the
amortised cost of a financial liability and of allocating interest
expense over the relevant period. The effective interest rate is the
rafe that exactly discounts estimated future cash payments (including
all fees and points paid or received that form an integral part of
the effective interest rate, transaction costs and other premiums or
discounts| through the expected life of the financial liability, or,
where appropriate, a shorter period to the net carrying amount on
initial recognition. Inferest expense is recognised on an effective

interest basis.

Financial liabilities at amortised cost

Other financial liabilities (including trade and other payables,
amounts due to directors of the Company, amounts due to non-
controlling shareholders of a subsidiary, bank borrowings, other
borrowings and bonds payable) are subsequently measured af
amortised cost, using the effective inferest method.

Derecognition

Derecognition/modification of financial liabilities

The Group derecognises financial liabilities when, and only when,
the Group's obligations are discharged, cancelled or have
expired. The difference between the carrying amount of the
financial liability derecognised and the consideration paid and

payable is recognised in profit or loss.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

Financial instruments (Continued)

Derecognition (Continued)
Derecognition/modification of financial liabilities
(Continued)

When the contractual terms of a financial liability are modified, the
Croup assess whether the revised terms result in a substantial
modification from original ferms taking info account all relevant
facts and circumstances including qualitative factors. If qualitative
assessment is not conclusive, the Group considers that the terms
are substantially different if the discounted present value of the cash
flows under the new terms, including any fees paid net of any fees
received, and discounted using the original effective interest rate,
is at least 10 per cent different from the discounted present value
of the remaining cash flows of the original financial liability.
Accordingly, such modification of terms is accounted for as an
extinguishment, any costs or fees incurred are recognised as part
of the gain or loss on the exfinguishment. The exchange or
modification is considered as non-substantial modification when

such difference is less than 10 per cent.

Non-substantial modifications of financial liabilities

For non-substantial modifications of financial liabilities that do nof
result in derecognition, the carrying amount of the relevant financial
liabilities will be calculated af the present value of the modified
contractual cash flows discounted at the financial liabilities” original
effective interest rate. Any adjustment to the carrying amount of the
financial liability is recognised in profit or loss at the date of
modification. Transaction costs or fees incurred are adjusted fo the
carrying amount of the modified financial liabilities and are

amortised over the remaining term.

In the application of the Group's accounting policies, which are
described in Note 4 to the consolidated financial statements, the
Directors are required to make judgements, estimates and
assumptions about the carrying amounts of assefs and liabilities
that are not readily apparent from ofher sources. The esfimates and
associated assumptions are based on historical experience and
other factors that are considered fo be relevant. Actual results may
differ from these estimates.

The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an
ongoing basis. Revisions fo accounting estimates are recognised in
the period in which the esfimate is revised if the revision affects
only that period, or in the period of the revision and future periods

if the revision affects both current and future periods.
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5.

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS
AND KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION
UNCERTAINTY

Critical judgements in applying accounting
policies

The following are the critical judgements, apart from those
involving esfimations (see below), that the Directors have made in
the process of applying the Group's accounting policies and that
have the most significant effect on the amounts recognised in the
consolidated  financial statements and the results, assets and
liabilities of the PRC Operational Entity and its subsidiaries are

consolidated with other group entities.

Consolidation of a structured entity
PRC laws and regulations prohibit or restrict foreign invesfors from
owning more than 50% equity interest in any enterprise which

owns vessels for conducting dredging business in the PRC.

On 19 April 2011, Xiangyu PRC (as defined in Note 42), the
PRC Operational Entity (as defined in Note 42) and ifs respective
equity participants, being Mr. Liv and Ms. Zhou Shuhua ("Ms.
Zhou"), the spouse of Mr. Liu, entered into the Contractual
Arrangements (as defined in Note 42). The PRC Operational Entity
and ifs subsidiaries are engaged in the provision of dredging
services of the Group. Details of the Contractual Arrangements are
set out in Note 42.

The Directors, after obtained legal opinion (the “legal Opinion”),
are of the view that the terms of the Contractual Arrangements
have in substance enabled Xiangyu PRC to have the ability and
right to direct the relevant activities to obtain variable returns from
its involvement with the PRC Operational Entity and ifs subsidiaries,
and fo have free ability to use its power to affect its returns, despite
the absence of formal legal equity interest held by the Group
therein. Accordingly, the PRC Operational Enfity is freated as a
subsidiary of the Company, and the results, assets and liabilities of
the PRC Operational Entity and ifs subsidiaries are consolidated
together with other group entities as if they were wholly owned by

the Company.
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5. CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS

AND KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION
UNCERTAINTY (CONTINUED)

Critical judgements in applying accounting
pOlICIeS (Continued)

Consolidation of a structured entity (Continued)

In the opinion of the Directors, with reference fo the Legal Opinion,
the Confractual Arrangements are in compliance with the existing
PRC laws and regulations are valid, binding and legally
enforceable, and do not result in any violation of PRC laws or
regulations currently in effect in all matferial respects. However,
uncerfainties in the PRC legal system could cause the Group's
current Confractual Arrangements Structure to be found in violation
of any existing and/or future PRC laws or regulations and could
limit the Company’s ability, through Xiangyu PRC, to enforce its
rights and power over the PRC Operational Entity under the
Confractual Arrangements.

The operation of the Group was substantially derived from the PRC
Operational Enfity and its subsidiaries. If the current structure or any
of the Contractual Arrangements were found fo be in violation of
PRC Lows and regulations, the Group may be subject to pendlies,
which in the future may include but not be limited to, the
cancellation or revocation of the Group's business and operating
licenses, being required tfo restructure the Group's operations or
discontinue the Group's operating acfivities. The imposition of any
of these or other penalies may result in a material and adverse
effect on the Group’s ability to conduct its operations. In such case,
the Group may not be able to operate or control the PRC
Operational Enfity and its subsidiaries, which may result in

deconsolidation of it.
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5.

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS
AND KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION
UNCERTAINTY (CONTINUED)

Critical judgements in applying accounting
pOlICIeS (Continued)

Deferred taxation on investment properties

For the purposes of measuring deferred faxafion arising from
invesiment properties that are measured using the fair value model,
the Direcfors of the Company have reviewed the Group's
invesiment property and concluded that the Group's investment
properties are held under a business model whose objective is to
consume substantially all of the economic benefits embodied in the
investment properties over time, rather than through sale. Therefore,
in measuring the Group’s deferred taxation on investment
propetties, the Directors have defermined that the presumption that
the carrying amounts of investment properties measured using the
fair value model are recovered entirely through sale is rebutted.
Accordingly, deferred taxation in relation to the Group's investment
properties has been measured based on the tax consequences of

recovering the carrying amounts entirely through use.

Key sources of estimation uncertainty

The key sources of estimation uncertainty at the end of the reporting
period that may have a significant risk of causing a material
adjustment fo the carrying amounts of assefs within the next

financial year are disclosed below.

Estimates of fair values of investment properties
As described in Nofe 19, investment properties are measured at
fair value at the end of reporting period using income capitalised
approach by independent professional valvers. Such valuations
are based on certain assumptions, which are subject fo uncertainty
and might materially differ from the actual results. In relying on the
valuation report, the directors of the Company have exercised their
judgment and are satisfied that the assumptions used in the
valuation reflect market condition. Whilst the Group considers
valuations of the Group's investment properties are the best
esfimates, the ongoing Covid-19 pandemic has resulted in greater
market volatility depending on how the Covid-19 pandemic may
progress and evolve, which have led to higher degree of
uncerfainties in respect of the valuations in the current year. Where
there are any changes in the assumptions due to the market
conditions in the PRC, the estimate of fair value of investment
properties may be significanily affected. As at 31 December
2020, invesiment properties of approximately RMB483,900,000
(2019: RMB464,500,000) are measured using income
capitalised approach.
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CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS
AND KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION
UNCERTAINTY (CONTINUED)

Key sources of estimation uncertainty (Continued)

ECL allowances for trade receivable and contract
assets

Management regularly assesses the loss allowances for expected
credit losses on frade receivables and confract assets and
recognises lifetime ECL for trade receivables and contract asses.
Allowances for these receivables and confract assefs are made
based on evaluation of ECL for frade receivables and confract
assets and involve exercise of management's judgments, which are
made by reference to the estimation of the future cash flows
discounted at the original effective interest rate to calculate the
present value. A considerable amount of judgment is required in
assessing the ulfimate realisation of these debtors, including their
current creditworthiness and the risk of default occurring on debtors
with significant balances and/or collectively using a provision
matrix with appropriate groupings. The assessment on the
probability of default and loss given default is based on historical
dafa adjusted by forward-looking information. As at 31 December
2020, the carrying amount of frade receivables and contract
assefs are approximately RMB497,151,000 and
RMB25,047,000 respectively, and provision of expected credit
losses, net of reversal of RMB146,947,000 and RMB241,000

respectively.

Estimated useful life and residual values of
property, plant and equipment

Dredgers and plant and machinery included in property, plant and
equipment are depreciated over their useful lives. The assessment
of estimated useful lives and residual values are matters of
judgement based on the experience of the Group, taking info
account factors such as technological progress, conditions of the
dredgers and plant and machinery and changes in market
demand. Useful lives and residual values are periodically reviewed
for continued appropriateness. Due to the long useful lives of the
dredgers and plant and machinery, changes to the estimates used
can affect the amount of depreciation to be charged fo profit or
loss in each reporting period and consequently affect their carrying
value at the end of the reporting period. There was no change in
the estimated useful lives or residual values of property, plant and

equipment for both years.
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5.

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS
AND KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION
UNCERTAINTY (CONTINUED)

Key sources of estimation uncertainty (Continued)

Impairment of property, plant and equipment
and right-of-use assets

Property, plant and equipment and rightofuse assefs are stated at
cosfs less accumulated depreciation and impairment, if any. In
determining whether an asset is impaired, the Group has to
exercise judgement and make estimation, particularly in assessing: (1)
whether an event has occurred or any indicators that may affect
the asset value; (2) whether the carrying value of an asset can be
supported by the recoverable amount, in the case of value in use,
the net present value of future cash flows which are estimated
based upon the confinued use of the asset; and (3) the appropriate
key assumptions to be applied in estimating the recoverable
amounts including cash flow projections and an aoppropriate
discount rafe.

Changing the assumptions and estimates, including the discount
rafes or the growth rate in the cash flow projections, could
materially affect the recoverable amount of the asses.

As at 31 December 2020, the carrying amounts of property, plant
and equipment and rightof use assefs that are subject to
impairment assessment affer recognising impairment losses of
RMB248,130,000 and RMBS5,855,000 respectively (2019
RMBnil) were RMB613,120,000 and RMBnil (2019:
RMBQ67,724,000 and RMB6,207,000) respectively. Details of
the impairment of property, plant and equipment and right-of use
assets are disclosed in Note 17 and Note 18 respectively.

Deferred tax asset

No deferred tax asset has been recognised in relation
to the unused tax losses of RMB146,722,000 (2019
RMB108,554,000) and unrecognised deductible temporary
differences of RMB1,109,347,000 (2019: RMB705,406,000)
in the consolidated statement of financial position due fo
unpredictability of future profit streams (see Note 21). The
realisability of the deferred tax asset mainly depends on whether
sufficient future profits or faxable temporary differences will be
available in the future. In cases where the actual future taxable
profits generated are less or more than expected, or change in
facts and circumstances which result in revision of future taxable
profits estimation, a material reversal or further recognition of
deferred tax asset may arise, which would be recognised in profit
or loss for the period in which such a reversal or further recognition
takes place.
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REVENUE

Disaggregation of revenue from contracts with customers

i =

KEEFAMNNREAD

2020 2019
—EF_BF ZE-NF
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR® TR ARBF T
Segments o
Capital and Reclamation Dredging Business EEREBHE XD 71,421 145,031
Environment Protection Dredging and AR Z R K75 %8 1R % 75
Water Management Business 49,080 47,910
Other Marine Business H 5 E ¥R 158,940 241,678
Property Management Business MEERER 6,900 7,749
286,341 442,368
Timing of revenue recognition Ui 225 2R Y B
At point in time I — B A B - -
Over time W& B ) 286,341 442,368
Total HEr 286,341 447,368

For Capital and Reclamation Dredging Business and Environment
Protection Dredging and Water Management Business, the Group
has a right to consideration from its customers in an amount that
corresponds directly with the value to the customers of the Group's
performance completed to date. As the Group bills its customers
based on each porfion of dredging works provided, the Group
recognises revenue based on the amount it has a right fo invoice.

The Group recognises revenue on the basis of the volume of
dredging works performed and delivered to customers. The
measurements of value of the dredging works transferred to
customers are directly invoiced based on a quantitative measure of
dredging, that is, a unit price for the material dredged per cubic
meter is sef forth in the confracts with customers and therefore the
revenue is recognised based on the amount invoiced. As the
Group's performance creates an assef that customer simultaneously
receives and consumes, this method provides a faithful depiction of

the transfer of an asset to the customer.

RERZREBRERFEURRREZ KB E
BEXBEME ASEEREEFPUNERER
HEAEEHLSDERBNNENEFBEYE
MRE ARAEEERMEREEZTIRENS
AR REFPHARE RAEEEREA#
BMENEZSRERYNES -

AEBRBEETRINTEFPNRATRE
BRAkR AEERTEPHNOATIREER
ERBRENEENE(ARPANTHESL
DAREEMBOEB)HANERSE Bt
WHEREZCRER AR ASENBENEL
EFRAERSREANEE R HEREE
TEFMEERHREEMMEL
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6.

BF %5 ¥R 3R MY & (A0

REVENUE (CONTINUED)

The ftransaction price of the Group is defermined upon
esfablishment of the contract that contains the unit price for the
quantity dredged for dredging projects.

For Other Marine Business, the Group provides marine hoisting,
installation, salvaging, vessel chartering and other engineering
services to clients and recognises revenue over time based on the

progress of the services provided.

For Property Management Business, the Group provides property
management services fo ifs fenanfs in a shopping mall and
factories and recognises monthly property management fee over

time.

The maijority of the Company’s contracts are shorterm confracts
and have a duration of less than one year, the practical expedient
for contracts with durations of one year or less is applied and

therefore the effect of the fime value of money is not considered.

An analysis of revenue from customers contributing over 10% of the

Group's total revenue for the year is as follows:

HEFARRIERERA A

6.

Ui 2= ()
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BERAHEEREZEN

REMEEXBME  AEEREFREHASL
PR TR -85 MHEEREGIRRE
AR 45 P 4 44 AR 755 1O 3 2 B By D RE AR MK

PMEEEEBMS  AEEREFSEEIMK
MEFPREMEEERY YHEEHBERES A
MEERE -

ARABRBAEHNARERANOEHMBER—F N
N YHBARS - FHXATHEORBAITHE
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WD -

0% Ey & P 1

2020 2019
—B-2F —h&F
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR¥T T ARBF T
Customer A EFPA
— Environmental Protection Dredging and — IRIREE RKTEE IR
Water Management Business 45,786 N/ATE A
Customer B EFB
— Capital and Reclamation Dredging Business —ERREBAEEY N/A T~EH 69,371
Customer C BRC
— Other Marine Business — Hith BB 31,193 N/AT
Note: Customer B did not contribute over 10% of the Group's total revenue Hia - BEFBERITEBAREENBE ST T4+
for the year ended 31 December 2020. Other than customers A A=+ —BHUIEFEEAKRFI% - BEEARC

and C, no other customers contributed over 10% of the Group's total
revenue for the year ended 31 December 2020.

S Y EEMBEPEMBAASERAEZ_F
TEFEF+ A=+ BULFELKRZEI0%-
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7. OPERATING SEGMENTS 7. €EDF

The Group defermines ifs operating segments based on the reports REBERARFRTEE (A HIEEBRE
reviewed by the Executive Directors of the Company who are also MEEBELRARE(ZTZELEARAREDEND
the chief operating decision makers (“CODM), that are used to MEETHZEDH METZELEAKEZER
make strategic decisions. Information reported o the CODM is WEHDERAEEELHENTRMEE MR
based on the different nature of projects carried out by the Group. o

Defails of the Group's four reportable and operating segments are AEBOEN 2K K EEDHBHFBHIIWAT

as follows:

()  Capital and Reclamation Dredging Business refers to the (i) EERBERAEKEASERENER
capital and reclamation dredging services and related KB % AR 7% K A8 B BE R AR 7%
consultation services provided by the Group;

(i)  Environmental Protection Dredging and Water Management i BREMARKEEBERERAEEEERR
Business refers to dredging or water management services T A B BRAR R s K K B T BB R 0 B OR
or constructions for promoting environmental inferests and HOKBEERBRITRE

water quality mainly for inland rivers provided by the Group;

(i)  Other Marine Business mainly comprises marine hoisting, i) EMSEEBETEREASEIRENE L
installation, salvaging, vessel chartering and other ME TE T8 MMeBEREMIRE
engineering services provided by the Group; and AR5 %

(iv)  Property Management Business refers to the management iv)] DEEBEBELAEERSRIKBNEE
and leasing of a shopping mall and factories and the ERROBERZR -

construction of a hotel by the Group.
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7. OPERATING SEGMENTS (cONTINUED)

Segment results DEEE

An analysis of the Group's reportable segment revenue and
segment resulfs is as below.

Environmental

Protection
Capital and Dredging
Reclamation and Water Other Property
Dredging Management Marine Management
Business Business  Business Business Total
HEER BRREAR HAt L/E S
HBRARE KEEEXK BIEXEH EEEH et
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®T T AR¥TRT ARWTR ARBTT AR%®TR
For the year ended BE-E2-%%
31 December 2020 t=A=+-H
LEE
Segment revenue 2 E U = 71,421 49,080 158,940 6,900 286,341
Segment results D EREE (408,850) (82,538) 7,305 272 (483,811)
Changes in fair value of BREMELAFEEZE
invesiment properties 19,400
Allowance for expected HHEERERE
credit losses (167)
Other gains and losses, net b It 35 & &5 48 /% 8 25,263
Unallocated other income AOBEEMUA 1,465
Unallocated corporate KOREERL
expenses (51,068)
Unallocated finance costs Ko RVE KA (36,417)
Loss before fax Br B AT B 18 (525,335)
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7. OPERATING SEGMENTS (cONTINUED)

Y

7. EE 5 @)

Segment results (Continued) o IR AE (@)
Environmental
Protection
Capital and Dredging
Reclamation and Water Other Property
Dredging Management Marine Management
Business Business Business Business Total
HEER RIREA R Hh S
HBmAREY KBEEER BFEH ERET Bt
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARET T ARBTT ARBTR ARBTT ARBTT
For the year ended BE-Z-1%¥
31 December 2019 +=ZA=+-—-H
LFEE
Segment revenue 2 P 28 145,031 47,910 241,678 7,749 442,368
Segment results DEREE LS (219,513) (72,630) 2,270 1,931 (287,942)
Changes in fair value of REMENTEES
investment properties (6,2806)
Allowance for expected HHMEERERE
credit losses (28,186)
Other gains and losses, net  E b ez & B 18 5 58 (5,767
Unallocated other income R BCE M A 77
Unallocated corporate KOEEERL
expenses (48,197)
Unallocated finance costs KA EE KA (35,054)
Loss before tax Wi AT B B [411,355)
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7. OPERATING SEGMENTS (CONTINUED) 7. EE5
Segment assets DHEE

Environmental

Protection

Capital and Dredging
Reclamation and Water Other Property
Dredging Management Marine Management

Business Business Business Business Total
BEER RERAR H i LY/
BHERAELE KEEEERE BEEE BEEK st
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥ T AR T AR%TR AR¥Tn AR%Tn

At 31 December 2020 R-ZB-ZE

+=-B=+-H
Segment assets DEEE 809,198 237,818 622,441 651,271 2,320,728
Unallocated assets: KOREE:
Rightofuse assets FREEE 9,845
Bank balances and cash RIOBEHRRRS 29,309
Others Hith 48,483
Consolidated assefs GAEEBE 2,408,365
Environmental
Profection
Capital and Dredging
Reclamation and Water Other Property
Dredging Management Marine Management
Business Business Business Business Total
EER RIREE R Hh S
HBRAEL KEEEEE BFEH EEER wat
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000

ARETT ARETT AR®TTR ARBTT ARETR

At 31 December 2019 RZZE-—I%F

t=A=t-H

Segment assets DEEE 1,247,701 350,876 520,469 625,535 2,744,581
Unallocated assets: KOBEE :

Rightof-use assefs FREELE 14,230

Bank balances and cash RITEHERS 12,612

Others Hit 75,745
Consolidated assefs RAEEE 2,847,168
For the purposes of moniforing segment performances and BEESTRBERELOBELIEER BE
allocating resources befween segments, assefs are allocated tfo HAPRMERSBRLED I W FXFAFIH KR
reportable and operating segments other than the unallocated S ECIE 8BRS

items listed above.
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7. OPERATING SEGMENTS (cONTINUED) 7. EE5
Segment liabilities oHMEE

As the liabiliies are regularly reviewed by the CODM in fotal for HREEBERRECHAAEEHBEET
the Group as a whole, the measure of total liabilities by reportable memap FENTEZY 2RO WL E G
segments is therefore nof presented. A& -

Other segment information H b 25 7B &

Environmental
Protection
Capital and Dredging
Reclamation and Water Other
Dredging Management Marine Management  Segment

Business Business Business Business total Unallocated Consolidated
HER BREAR Hit LS
BRRAEE KABEEEXE BEEK EEEE oHas K2 B &E
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥ TR ARETRE AR%®TR AR¥TR ARBTRT ARETR ARETR

For the year ended HE-Z-%%
31 December 2020 t=ZA=t+-H
LFEE

Amounts included in the SAR B Em A
measure of segment profit  BEFTEH L

o loss or segment assels

Additions fo non-current assets 7 & FE T 8) & E 1,098 1,417 7,470 4,212 14,197 - 14,197
Depreciation of property, ER T

plant and equipment nE 66,102 9,712 27,786 65 103,665 742 104,407
Depreciation of rightofuse  FAEEEMNNE

assets 983 - 47 2,792 3,822 120 3,942
Amorisation of other HiEVEEHH

infangible assefs - - - 333 333 - 333
Expected credi losses HEFEBRER

allowance 77,745 65,918 3,217 2,909 149,789 167 149,956

Impairment loss on property, ~ #1% « BE R R
plant and equipment and UREREEE
right-ofuse assets HEBR 241,304 12,681 - - 253985 - 253,985
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For the year ended 31 December 2020 &%

7. OPERATING SEGMENTS (cONTINUED)

HEFARRIERERA A

—EEF+_A=+—HLEFE

Other segment information (Continued)

Environmental

Protection
Capital and Dredging
Reclamation and Water Other Property
Dredging Management Marine  Management Segment
Business Business Business Business folol  Undllocated  Consolidated
2B R RRHAR Hith ES
BERRARY  KBERER BEEK BEEL  DHE AOE ma
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARETT ARETT ARBTT ARETT ARETT ARBTT ARET:n
For the year ended HE-2-1¥%
31 December 2019 +=A=+-8
LEE
Amounts included in the FAD BB S A
measure of segment profit  BEFTEH L
or loss or segment assefs
Additions to non-current assets N B JEREN & & 109 10,146 11,933 12,200 34,388 - 34,388
Depreciation of property, "% BERIE
plant and equipment TE 66,375 9,514 25,639 65 101,593 4,381 105,974
Depreciation of rightofuse  FAEEEMNINE
assefs 1,205 = 27 2,792 4,024 = 4,024
Amorisation of other Hi B EEBH
infangible assefs = = = 333 333 = 333
Expected credi losses BHEEEREE
allowance 203,982 88,906 12,357 254 305,499 28,186 333,685

The accounting policies of the reporiable segments are the same
as the Group's accounting policies described in Note 4 fo the

consolidated financial statements.

Segment results represent profit eamed or loss incurred by each
segment, without allocation of central administrative expenses,
other gains and losses, certain other income and certain finance
costs. This is the measure reported to the CODM for the purposes

of resource allocation and performance assessment.

Geographical information

As all the Group's revenue is derived from its operations in the PRC
and substantially all its noncurrent assefs [excluding the other
financial assefs) are located in the PRC, no geographical

information is presented.

AE2/D MO ST BRELEE M IEHRRM T4
HAEEN G BERMER -

DEEBERZ D AR H B AN EIR
(ROBEFRITEHAX HttbhEREE BT
HBRARETBERAE) - TR EREELR
REBREERDELFERNEHOIA -

i B & R
MAAEENAEREY T ERFENLE
BEBABDERDEE(FRIEL SRS
BRI R B - A 2 5 [ R o
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OTHER INCOME 8. Hftdgr A

2020 2019
= B i —T-hF
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR® T ARBFTT
Bank interest income R1T A B WA 51 133
Sundry income 1A 2,125 1,162
2,176 1,295

OTHER GAINS AND LOSSES, NET 9. Htt = R BB FHE
2020 2019
—E-2F —E-NEF
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR®T T AR T T
Gain on disposal of property, plant and equipment, net HH& ¥ % « BB & 5% 8 R 25 F 48 2,988 177
Gain on written off of a lease aH A & W 54 -
Gain on medification of bonds payable (Note 31) EFTEMNEEN RS (B :E3T) 325 =
Exchange gain/(loss), net BN e (EE) F 5 22,243 (5,767)

25,610 (5,590]
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For the year ended 31 December 2020 HZE T -_TF+ _A=+—HIEFE

m

10. FINANCE COSTS 10. B & Bk A&

2020 2019

S Bl ==

Notes RMB’000 RMB’'000
wi: PELEEM  AR%ETT

Interest expenses on: THEEMEFHX
Bank borrowings wholly repayable RAFRNEREERER
within five years RITEE 18,431 18,986
Discounted bills receivable FEU B BE IR R IR 512 40
Other borrowings Hib g & 2,882 4,794
The Bonds &% 31 22,857 32,714
Amounts due to non-controlling shareholders JE A~ — R Bt /B8 2 A
of a subsidiary FEHE PR A IR FRIA 2,396 3,864
lease liabilities HEBE 103 153
Payable for construction cost of the Vessel and A A AR B %A R R
Equipment AKX 7N 22(v) 2,263 —
Total borrowing costs BEERK 49,444 60,551
Less: amounts capitalised in the cost of WA EREERAR
qualifying assets BERbeHE (6,055) (15,501)
43,389 45,050
Borrowing cost capitalised during the year ended 31 December HE-Z-_ZTE+-_A=1+—RAILtEE AKX
2020 of approximately RMB6,055,000 (2019: LB EEKR RO ARE605500T(ZF—N
RMB15,501,000) arose on the general borrowing pool F: AR®15501,000m) v —REEHAR
caleulated by applying a weighted average capitalisation rate of MEFHEA L REBF/ NU(ZF-NF:
7.11% (2019: 8.99%) per annum. During the year ended 31 BN EX - BE_ZTE-_TEF+_A=+—H
December 2020, borrowing cost was capitalised as part of the LFEE - EBERRNERMEAME  WEREHR
construction in progress in respect of the hotel under construction PENEREEBENTEELIRN —BH -

included in property, plant and equipment.
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11. ALLOWANCE FOR EXPECTED CREDIT 1. EHEEEEREREFHR
LOSSES, NET OF REVERSAL

2020 2019
I -z =
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR%Fr NSRS

Expected credit losses recognised/(reversed) on: LA TR I8 B #ERR, () K 78 2B
EEEE
— Trade receivables — AR 146,947 308,194
— Contract assefs —ARNEE 241 (2,695)
— Other receivables and prepayments — Hfth FE MR R TR A K 2,768 28,186
149,956 333,685
Details of impairment assessment for the year ended 31 December HE-_Z-_ZF+-_A=1+—BLFERET
2020 are set out in Note 40(b). 1 5B PR BT 7E40(b) ©
12. INCOME TAX EXPENSE 12. FTE BB X
2020 2019
—E-2F —T-hF
RMB’000 RMB’'000
AR®T T ARBTT
The charge comprises: X
Current tax BIEAT 18
PRC Enterprise Income Tax (“EIT") RS
(TREMEHD 2,025 6,119
Deferred taxation (Note 21) EEFRL A (B aE21) 10,004 104,554

12,029 110,673




156 China Dredging Environment Protection Holdings Limited FEFRBRIERAER AT

Notes to the Consolidated
Financial Statements (Continued)

A MR RME®

For the year ended 31 December 2020 HEZE =T =_FTF+ZA=+—HLLFE

e, W i S e S S iy, iy, iy, iy, W 8

12. INCOME TAX EXPENSE (CONTINUED] 12. Fr 18 % B 32
The tax charge for the year can be reconciled fo the loss before FARB T HERTATSESERAT ¢

tax as follows:

2020 2019
e %3 —E-NF
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR® T ARET T

Loss before fax W 753 AT A5 18 (525,335) (411,355)
Tax at the PRC EIT rate of 25% (2019: 25%) RPBECEAEHBR25%TE
BWHIE(ZT—NEF: 25%) (131,334) (102,839
Tax effect of expenses not deductible for tax purpose A~ 8] F1 %1 B sk B9 B 75 52 28 6,224 8,020
Tax effect of deductible temporary differences not REER AR R 258 A
recognised HEEE 100,985 88,019
Land appreciation fax + i E 9,830 6,648
Tax effect of land appreciation tax THREHNREZE (2,710) (1,833
Tax effect of tax losses not recognised AERRBEENR G E 29,034 14,326
Tax effect of reversal of deductible temporary S RIRERE R _I F0 Rk B B = FE B O
differences previously recognised CokinhS-2 - - 98,332
Tax charge for the year FRABBRX 12,029 110,673
(i) PRCEIT (i) PEILEMREH
PRC EIT is calculated at 25% of the assessable profits for RBEEE 1 E u—_%ﬁﬁ T R
both years. i M DABE = 25% 5 &
(i) Hong Kong Profits Tax i) EENE
Hong Kong Profits Tax is calculated af 16.5% of the REEEE BBFEHIIRGERM
estimated assessable profits for both years, if any. A () AT E16.5%5T & ©
No provision for Hong Kong Profits Tax has been made in RRARD AR K ENBRRRMEEERL
the consolidated financial statements as the Company and EBABEBELANRETENEZRT R -
its subsidiaries had no assessable profits arising in or WGEABHRERANT EREBENESHEIED

derived from Hong Kong for both years. B o
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13. LOSS FOR THE YEAR 13. FAE1E

2020 2019
S8 -z =
RMB’000 RMB’'000
AR%ET [ENLESE

Loss for the year has been arrived af after charging ~ F A E BB &% (5FA) T 7

[crediting): XI8 -
Auditor's remuneration 1% 5B % B 1,648 1,852
Amortisation of other intangible assets H b & E 333 333
Depreciation of property, plant and equipment M- BEREBEINE 104,407 105,974
Depreciation of rightofuse assefs EREEESH 3,942 4,024
Directors’ emoluments (Note 14) EE=EMe (BiE14) 1,900 1,900
Other staff costs Hih 8 T AR 40,980 37,919
Retirement benefit scheme contributions, RIREFIGT SR
excluding those of Direcfors TEEEEHS 8,357 5,939
Total staff costs (including equity-settled BIRAEE(BEERAESR
share-based payment] &5 X 1<) 51,237 45,758
Impairment loss on VEREY SEi
—property, plant and equipment —WE BENMERE 248,130 =
—rightof-use assets —FREEE 5,855 =
253,985 —
Gain on disposal of property, plant HEWME BELEBKREFE
and equipment, net (2,988) (177)
Sub-contracting charges included in operating cost 5T AGBE K ANH 5 B & F 113,015 192,894
Gross renfal income from investment properties REWMEHRS WAL (6,900) (7,749)
Less: direct operafing expenses incurred for investment J& © F % & W XS H & WA
properties that generated rental income during EENEELERE
the year 331 488
direct operating expenses incurred for investment FAREMERFEHS W
properties that did not generate rental income ANEXRNEEZERX
during the year 77 155

(6,492) (7,1006]
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14. DIRECTORS’, CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER’S 4 EE T ETHABERES M
AND EMPLOYEES’ EMOLUMENTS ®

Directors and Chief Executive Officer EERFEITHAE

Defails of the emoluments paid or payable to the Directors and the FRA BENIENEZESREZTHRAENMNE
Chief Executive Officer during the year are as follows: EIRUENE

For the year ended 31 December 2020 BE-_Z-_Sf+-B=t+—HLEE

Retirement
Salaries benefit Share-
and other scheme based

Fees allowances contribution  Sub-total payment Total

HER RREF
ik Ht = RE ATEIER Pat RBXA i
RMB’000  RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBTT ARBTR ARBTT AR®TR ARWTR AR¥T=

Executive Directors: HITEE:
Mr. Liv 2k - 1,200 - 1,200 - 1,200
Mr. W Bin note i) {38 552 (A 22) - - - - . N
Mr. Wu Xuze RIBELE L - — - — — —
Ms. Zhou Azt - 600 - 600 - 600
- 1,800 - 1,800 - 1,800
Independent Non-Executive BIUFNTES:
Directors:
Mr. Chan Ming Sun Jonathan BR824 5% 4 100 - - 100 - 100
Mr. Huan Xuedong BERAE - - - - - -
Mr. liang Zequen RERKE - - - - - -
100 - - 100 - 100

100 1,800 - 1,900 - 1,900
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14. DIRECTORS’, CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER’S 1485 - FETHABRESMH

AND EMPLOYEES’ EMOLUMENTS (CONTINUED) € (@)
Directors and Chief Executive Officer (Continued) EERTETHAE @
For the year ended 31 December 2019 BE-_Z-hE+-A=+—HLEE
Retirement
Salaries benefit Share-
and other scheme based
Fees  allowances contribution Subrtofal payment Tofal
ek BREFI
we Hep2ah S &l 3R Nat B LA @it

RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARBTT ARBTRT ARBTT ARBTT ARETT ARETT

Executive Directors: HITES:
Mr. Liu P = 1,200 = 1,200 = 1,200
Mr. W Bin fnofe (i)} R 5 & (B () - = - - _ _
Mr. Wu Xuze RMBEREE = = = = = =
Ms. Zhou A%+ = 600 = 600 = 600
= 1,800 = 1,800 = 1,800
Non-Executive Directors: FRTES:
Mr. Liv longhua (note fiif) - BB %E 5 & (Kt i) = = - = — _
Independent Non-Executive BIUFNTES:
Directors:
Mr. Chan Ming Sun Jonathan BR # £ % & 100 — - 100 - 100
Mr. Huan Xuedong BEELLE — — — — — —
Mr. liang Zequen BRI — — — — — —
100 = = 100 = 100
100 1,800 = 1,900 = 1,900
Notes: B
(i) Mr. Wu Bin has resigned as the Vice Chairman and an Executive (i) AREAEAER-_E-_EF=A+—HBEFEa=
Director on 31 March 2020. FBRATERR -
[i)  Mr. Liu longhua has resigned as a Non-Executive Director on 8 i) BIEEELEER-_FT-—NF=ZANBEEEH
March 2019. TEERRS -
During the year, there was no arrangement under which a Director FRN VEEEFHEUHBEKIABZHEZEMIMS
waived or agreed to waive any remuneration. A 2Bk o
Salaries and other allowance paid fo or for the Executive Directors XMFHROTESNFEREMERBRZFA
are generally emoluments paid in respect of those persons’ other TREBADFAREMBARMEHREMENE
services in connection with the management of the affairs of the il AR 75 T 32 54 B0 — ARLER B o

Company and its subsidiaries.
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14. DIRECTORS’, CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER’S 4 EE T ETHABERES M

AND EMPLOYEES’ EMOLUMENTS (coNTINUED) cAC )
Employees ==
Of the Group's five highest paid individuals during the year, two FRNREERERETFHMESESR  EPRE (=
(2019: two) of them were Directors whose emoluments are TZ-hFE MB)AEE HHMELERN X2
presented above. The emoluments of the remaining three (2019: Fle B F=%2 (- NF: =R)&EaFMEA
three) highest paid individuals, were as follows: WS mT -
2020 2019
—B-BF —E-NEF
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR® T ARBFT
Salaries and other allowances & ROE fh)=Rh 1,218 1,255
Refirement benefit scheme contributions R IKAE A 5T &K 80 22
1,298 1,277
Their emoluments were within the following bands: EMEE TH AR AZBDT
2020 2019
—B-BF —E-NF
No. of No. of
employees employees
BEAH BB A
Nil to HK$ 1,000,000 T % 1,000,000 7T 3 3
During both years, no emoluments were paid by the Group to any RAEEERN AeEvEDERNES 217
of the Direcfors, Chief Executive Officer or the five highest paid BMAESALESHMEAA(AIEESE . T2
individuals (including Directors, Chief Executive Officer and BAERES)SNEMMES  UIESEMAS
employees) as an inducement fo join or upon joining the Group or AN AN £ [ 1 1 45 B ok B B [ o

as compensation for loss of office.
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LOSS PER SHARE

The calculation of the basic and dilufed loss per share attributable

fo the owners of the Company is based on the following dafa:

15.

FRER

AABBEEANEBEEREARBEERDET
S BUREHE

2020 2019
=¥ - —E—hF
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBT T ARBTT
Loss for the year affributable to owners of the Company Fiat HEEREARA R #EFHIEmM S
for the purposes of basic and diluted loss per share AR AIEAR ANELFRNER (526,583) (517,586)
2019
—E-NF
(Restated)
(&%)
Number of shares gk 4=
Weighted average number of ordinary shares for R HEERERNRESEEm S
the purposes of basic and dilufed loss per share B 38 A% N0 S S B (R AR LA
[adjusted to reflect share consolidation effective on @ RMHR-—_T-——F=A LB 4%
March 202 1(see Note 33liii)|) Bz B An & oF (R 5 33(0i1)) 957,170,900 887,737,962

The weighted average number of ordinary shares for the purpose
of basic loss per share has been adjusted to reflect the effect of the
Share Consolidation as defined in Note 46.

The computation of diluted loss per share for the year ended 31
December 2020 and 31 December 2019 does not assume the
exercise of the Company's share opfions because the exercise
price of those share options was higher than the average market
price for shares for the pericd from 20 January 2020 fo 31
December 2020 (2019: 1 January 2019 to 10 October 2019).
As at 31 December 2020 and 31 December 2019, the Group
did not have other potential ordinary shares.

DIVIDENDS

No dividend was paid or proposed during the year ended 31
December 2020 and 31 December 2019, nor has any dividend

been proposed since the end of the reporting period.

REFESRERNBEN ST BRMEFHHE
TEH A E - AR M E46F7 R E IR 5 & 8

By 488
Fao

HEHE TR A=t —HRZZE—
NF+ZA=+T—"HLFETREEEERR
BANBBRERETE REASBRETE
BEeRNE-_EF—A-t+tRE-_T_TF+
ZAEF+—RACZE—NF ZE—NF—A—
AZE-—-AE+A+H) ARG FEHT
B-RZEZTFF+_A=F+—RAEK=ZF—H
F+-_A=+—HB AEBTEHMEELRE
Hﬁo

RBE-_Z_ZF+_A=+—HAHKZZE—N
F+_A=ZT - HLEFEHERNIEHRR
B MmBEmERARETBEEATARE -
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17. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT 17. % BERRZE
Furniture,
Dredgers fittings
Leasehold and Plant and and office Motor Construction
Building improvements  vessels machinery equipment  vehicles in progress Total

#R M BE HA- %E
BF HE£E R RE REARE AE HRIR o
RMB'000 RMB'0O0O0  RMB'OO0  RMB'0O00  RMB'000  RMB'000 RMB'0O00  RMB'000
ARETT ARETT ARETR ARETT ARETRT ARBTT ARETR ARETR
[note i)

(K122 i)

Cost BA
At 1 Jonuary 2019 R-Z-L&—HA—A 54,401 244 1,764,767 135,661 2,025 17,472 158,315 2,132,885
Additions NE = = 11,545 1,058 49 296 21,440 34,388
Disposals HE - - (1,401) - - (352) - (1,753)
At 31 December 2019 R=ZE-h&+-A=1+—H 54,401 244 1774911 136,719 2,074 17416 179,755 2,165,520
Additions NE = = 1,314 8,503 = 168 4212 14,197
Disposals HE (8,268) = (2,214) (3,204) = (3,844) = (17,530)
At 31 December 2020 W-_Z-Z€#+-A=+-A 46,133 244 1774011 142,018 2,074 13,740 183,967 2,162,187
Accumulated depreciation Z3f 7% K &

and impairment
At T January 2019 R=ZE-h&—A—H 11,084 244 590,873 59,954 1,752 11,818 - 675,725
Provided for the year FEREE 2,599 = 87,196 14,017 4] 2,121 = 105,974
Eliminated on disposals HERLH - - (1,332) - - (329) - (1,661
At 31 December 2019 R-E-AF+-A=+—-8 13,683 244 676,737 73,971 1,793 13,610 = 780,038
Provided for the year FREE 2,206 = 86,570 14,140 49 1,442 = 104,407
Eliminated on disposals HE B Y [2,062) = (2,104) [1,962) = [3,348) = (9,476)
Impairment loss for the year FAREER - - 221,301 1,551 - - 25,278 248,130
N3 Decomber2020  RZF-BFH-ASt-A 1387 44 082504 87700 1882 11704 25278 1,123,099
Carrying value REE
At 31 December 2020 R-E-TF+-A=1+—H 32,306 = 791,507 54,318 232 2,036 158,689 1,039,088
At 31 December 2019 R-F-hAE+-A=1+—H 40,718 — 1,098,174 62,748 281 3,806 179,755 1,385,482

The Group's buildings are located in the PRC. NEBEEEHNEE o
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For the year ended 31 December 2020 HZ - ZT T HF+-A=+—HIFE

17. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT
(CONTINUED)

Depreciation is charged so as to write off the cost of assets [other

than construction in progress), over their estimated useful lives and

affer taking info account their estimated residual values, using the

straightline method, on the following bases:

Building
Leasehold improvements
Dredgers and vessels

Plant and machinery
Furniture, fittings and office

2-4% or over the term of the
lease, whichever is shorter

20% or over the term of the lease,
whichever is shorter

5%6.7%

5%-20%

10%-33.3%

equipment

Motor

vehicles 16.7%20%

Details of property, plant and equipment that are pledged as

collateral are set out in Note 36.

Notes:

(i)

Impairment assessment

During the year, the continuing challenging market condition has led
to segment losses in the Group's capital and reclamation dredging
business and environmental protection dredging water management
business, the management of the Group reviewed the outlook of the
businesses and concluded there was indication for impairment and
conducted impairment assessment on recoverable amounts of certain
property, plant and equipment and rightofuse assets with carrying
amounts before impairment of RMB861,250,000 and
RMB5,855,000 respectively, including allocation of corporate
assefs when reasonable and consistent basis can be established.
Impairment losses of RMB253,985,000, representing impairment
loss on property, plant and equipment amounting fo
RMB248,130,000 and impairment loss of rightofuse assets
amounting to RMB5,855,000 (see Note 18), were recorded during
the year fo reduce the carrying value of these property, plant and
equipment and rightofuse assets (see Note 18) to their recoverable
amounts assuming these is no change of useful life of the property,
plant and equipment.

Management regards each dredger and vessel as a separately
identifiable cash-generating unit and monitors their financial
performance for the existence of impairment indicators, such as idle
dredger and vessel and the operafing loss generated from the
dredger and vessel. The recoverable amount of each vessel and
dredger are estimated individually.

17. 9% - BERKRE@®

sHIR YT B DAE MBH TR (A S AT B I R E

RINTEEREREGAERNGEEREE (K

BIRERIN B

BF 2-4% K HE F H
(AmEE RE)

HEXRE 20% % E F B
(AEEERE)

12 e M e A AR 5%-6.7%

5 B 25 5%-20%

B KERBER

B3] 10%-33.3%

b=} 16.7%-20%

ERSERYRNODE BEEREFBHER

3£ 36 ©

i -

(i) AEFME

FR FEBRROTSVEERAEENER
NEBRAEBARRRRERKBEREB
HESMER AEEERERS T ZEES
MATR REFERETR XHETHWE-
BELEEAREREREENT RE S HE
TTRENG REMEAES N AARK
861,250,0007t & A K #5,855,0007T - £ #& Al
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17. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT
(CONTINUED)

Notes: (Continued)

0]

(ii)

Impairment assessment (Continued)

The recoverable amount of each of the cash-generating unit ("CGU")
has been defermined based on the higher of value in use and fair
value less costs of disposal. During the year, the dredgers and
vessels and their related plant and machinery were impaired down
fo their fair value less costs of disposal.

The Group engages a third party qualified valuer to perform the
valuations in arriving the fair value less costs of disposal.

In determining the fair value less costs of disposal of the relevant
properties, the Chief Financial Officer of the Company is responsible
to determine the appropriateness of valuation techniques and inputs
for fair value measurements. The Chief Financial Officer works
closely with the qualified external valuer to establish the appropriate
valuation techniques and inputs to the model. This valuation requires
the use of unobservable inputs and is within Level 3 of the fair value
hierarchy. The valuation is based on a market approach under
which each vessel is valued with reference fo recent sales of
comparable dredgers and vessels adjusted for differences in the
nature, location, age and condifion of the dredgers and vessels.

Construction in progress

During the year ended 31 December 2020, the hotel under
construction with carrying value of construction in progress and right-
of-use assets amounted to RMB123,900,000 and
RMB75,811,000 as at 31 December 2020 respectively has been
suspended for 4 months during the first half of the year due to the
impact of COVID-19 and further suspended for 5 months afterwards.
The construction of hotel has resumed in October 2020.

FPEIZRRIZEREBRAE

17. 9% - BMERKE@

et - (&)

(i)

(i)

(B FT £k (A7)

ERTEARMN(REELEM) 2 k@S
BEORBEEREEEQATFTEREERNEAZRS
EET -FN ZRMEMMREABRE R
REBEZEREAFERBERA -

AEBZBE=Z7AERGEEMETHE K
stEQFER G o

EEFTHEDENRIFERDERAE  ARQ
ABREERREATFEFENBERNE
BABBEEZERE MBAERSERNINEG
HEMEZSE RETEENBHERITRE
BmABE- - WAGBEACHIAIBREEA
g BRAOFEEBRANE=R - HEATSES
ERETE - B2 F 5 B A] L BE A K A AR Y
HEBR  REZEEMEMBOEE LE - £

FRERANEZEZEHIE  HERHMET
CXEN
ERIR

HE—_ZT-_ZTHE+_-_A=+-—BIHEE %
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AERIREREAREERAEINIAARE
123,900,000t &2 A R #75,811,0007T # 7 i
BEECREXFEEINEA HEEE(FTH
@R - BERREN_-_Z_TE+ABEIL-



Annual Report 2020 —ECEBEFR 165

Notes to the Consolidated
Financial Statements (Continued)

A & 75 R R M R

For the year ended 31 December 2020 HEZE T =ZFTF+ZA=+—HLFE

e N . N N SN S SN S S SN SN SN SN N
N N NN N Ny N i N i N N i N i NN N

18. RIGHT-OF-USE ASSETS 1. EAREEE
Leasehold Leased
lands Dredger property Total
HE i 2 M EHEME ot
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARBT T ARBET T ARET T ARBT T
As at 31 December 2020 R-ZE_ZTF
+=ZA=+—8H
Carrying amount BREE 89,723 = 2,408 92,131
Impairment loss (Nofe 17) WEBE (K 17) (5,855 = = (5,855)
83,868 — 2,408 86,276
As at 31 December 2019 R-ZE—hF
+=—A=+—8H
Carrying amount BREE 92,514 2,010 67 94,591
For the year ended HE-_Z_ZF
31 December 2020 +-A=+—HIEE
Depreciation charge WEE 2,792 79 1,071 3,942
For the year ended HE_Z-NF
31 December 2019 +-_A=+—HILHFE
Depreciation charge WwES 2,792 1,205 27 4,024
2020 2019
—ECEF —ET-hnF
RMB’000 RMB'000
ARE TR ARBT T
Total cash outflow for leases HERS R LR 1,203 1,330
Additions fo rightof-use assets NEEREEE 2,587 Q4
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18. RIGHT-OF-USE ASSETS (CONTINUED)

For both years, the Group leases dredger and property for its
operations. Lease contracts are entered into for fixed terms of 2 to
3 vyears. lease ferms are negofiated on an individual basis and
contained a wide range of different terms and conditions. In
determining the lease terms and assessing the length of the non-
cancellable period, the Group applies the definition of a contract

and determines the period for which the confract is enforceable.

During the year ended 31 December 2020, the Group has
ferminated a lease contract for a dredger as at 30 September
2020, its rightofuse asset amounting fo RMB1,159,000 and
lease liability amounfing to RMB1,105,000 have accordingly
written off.

The Group entered info shorterm leases for office premises and
fransportation vessels. As at 31 December 2020 and 31
December 2019, the porifolio of shortterm leases is similar to the
portfolio of shortferm leases to which the shortterm lease expense
disclosed in Note 34.

The leasehold lands are located in Yancheng Jiangsu, PRC, and
the land use rights are held for a term expiring on 2052 and
2064.

FPEIZRRIZEREBRAE
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18. FRHEEE @m

MEFERN AEEHEEZREMERMELETH
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WWMAN

19. INVESTMENT PROPERTIES 19. REW =

RMB'000

ARET T

1 January 2019, ot fair value RZE-NFE—-—A—B RAFE 470,786
Changes in fair value recognised in the consolidated ~ R&R & Bk NER N A FEE

statement of profit and loss (6,2806)
At 31 December 2019 and 1 January 2020, R-ZE—hE+-_A=1+—HEK

at fair value —Z2-_ZFTF—HA—H ®&A¥E 464,500

Changes in fair value recognised in the consolidated ~ R4RE B R NER N QA F(EZ S
statement of profit and loss 19,400
At 31 December 2020, at fair value NR-ZEBE-_TEF+_A=+—8 A ¥E 483,900

The Group's property inferests are held fo earn rentals which are
measured using the fair value model and are classified and
accounted for as investment properties.

In defermining the fair value of the relevant properties, the Chief
Financial Officer of the Company is responsible to determine the
appropriateness of valuation techniques and inputs for fair value

measurements.

The Group engages a third party qualified valuer to perform the
valuation. The Chief Financial Officer works closely with the
qualified external valuer to establish the appropriate valuation
techniques and inputs to the model. The Chief Financial Officer
reports the findings fo the directors of the Company to explain the
cause of fluctuations in the fair value of the assets. The fair value of
the Group's investment properties as at 31 December 2020 and
31 December 2019 has been arrived at on the basis of a
valuation carried out on the respective dates, an independent

qualified professional valuer not connected to the Group.

The fair value of the Group's investment properties is categorised
as level 3 of the fair value hierarchy. There were no fransfer into or
out of level 3 during the year. In estimating the fair value of the
properties, the highest and best use of the properties is the current

use.

AEEBRFBENMERZDARDES  IUR
FEEAFE IRERAR/KREDE-

RETHBUMENRAFER  ARARMBAE
BERAFEFEEEEANGBERMEEA
Bz

AEBECZRBFEF =T ERMAEMETHE:-

MBREREERIINBEEMEZTKE Ut
BAREENBERMRBARE BKR
ERNARRESERIAETHER UBRBEER

FERIONRE R_FT_FTF+_H=+—
HEZZE-AF+ZA=+—H XxEEKE
MENRFEDENREERBEHREBEE —RHAEX
EEVYEBENBIAEREEMERRETT
MfEEmMER -

AEENREVERAFEIRSRAFEEBERD

CR-FAEZERLBEBARBH - /-G
MENRAFER UENESEEERERHE
ERIAE -
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19. INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (coNTINUED)

Valuation
technique(s)

fRERM

Significant unobservable input(s)

EXTUBEGARE

19. REY % @)

Relationship of
unobservable
inputs to fair value
T B EHIEE
DNFENER

Shopping mall located in
Yancheng, the PRC

i 7 B B8 490 T O 7 45

Factories located in
Yancheng, the PRC

37 7% B8 B 93k 7 ) TR

Income capitalised
approach

The key inputs are

[i) Estimated unit price

i) Capitalisation rafe

Y g & AMEE
TRHARER
(i) fAEFEAER

(i) BRI

Income capitalised
approach

The key inputs are

[i) Estimated unit rental

i) Capitalisation rafe

Yoz & LA
T2HABER
i) AEtECuEE

(i) EA(L=

Price per square meter, using market direct
comparable and faking into account of
location and other individual factors,
which is RMBZ,150 (2019: RMB7,000)
per square meter.

Capitalisation rate, taking into account of
rate generated by market, of 5.0% (2019:
5.0%)

BFIAER RATSERLRL
AARUEREMENRE  REF
FRARB7 150 (ZF—N4F :
AR®7,0007T) °

BALE S RTIBEENL X -
B50%(ZF—hF : 50%)

Rental per square metfer per month, using
market direct comparable and taking into
account of location and other individual
factors, which is RMB10.7 (2019:
RMB10.5] per square meter per month

Capitalisation rate, taking into account of
rafe generate by market, of 5.5% (2019:
5.5%)

BABYH AR KAMEEERL
BRI RUEREMENRE &
BRABFHIRARKIO7T(ZF—
NE: AR¥10.57T)

BARER Bt RTGEERNE X
BESH(ZE—NF : 55%)

The higher the unit price, the
higher the market value

The lower the capitalisation rate,
the higher the market value

BUERBES mHEEYES
BEARERBE mHEEEES

The higher the unit renfal, the
higher the market value

The lower the capifalisation rafe,
the higher the market value

BuEEHES mHEEES

BEARERBE mHEEES
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20. INTEREST IN AN ASSOCIATE 200 A—EBELTANER

2020 2019
S Bl ==
RMB’000 RMB’'000
ARmT NS

Cost of investment in an associate R — & QR AR E R A 150 —
Share of postacquisition loss and DEWIBEREBEERE M EE S H

other comprehensive expenses - —

150 =
Details of the Group's associate at 31 December 2020 and 2019 NEBR —EFERZE-NAFE+=_A=+
are as follows: —HZH?M/\723'| UM
Country of Principal Proportion of voting
incorporation/  place of Proportion of rights held by the
Name of entity registration business ownership interest Group Principal activity
TE rEERFEZ
BREE R/ ZMER X FEERRAGLL RERLLE TEXK
2019
—ENF
Jiangsu longxiang Harbour PRC PRC 30% = 30% — Provision of marine
Engineering Company hoisting and
Limited* installation
TR L2 H HE 30% = 30% - RELRER
BRAT Tk
* for identification only * EXEEE ]
The associate is unlisled and accounted for using the equity HENTABIELETAT EEASMBEHRE D E
method in the consolidated financial statements and the proportion RiEmEANE B &% ﬁ:|115 Lt B8 BT 35 2% R
of ownership interest is the same as the proportion of voting rights L AE R - B & A A EA_ E-TF+—HA=+
held. The associate was incorporated on 30 November 2020 By #iz2—_E-—ZTF#+-_HA=+—H
and has yet fo start its operation as at year ended 31 December IFEEHARIRES -

2020.
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21. DEFERRED TAX ASSETS/DEFERRED TAX
LIABILITIES

21 EEBIBEE EEREEE

AT RAFERBAFENTIECHADRELTH
BHEERCEERBAB)  UREEE

The following are the major deferred tax assets and (deferred tax
liabilities) recognised and movements thereon during the current

and prior year:

Fair value

adjustment
of property, Fair value
Allowance plant and adjustment
for doubtful equipment of
debts/ECL on acquisition investment
provisions of subsidiaries properties Total
s 5% B R
RIREE - QEAEYE.
BAHEE B ERRE REWE
BIEER AFEAE LATERE et
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARET T ARETTT ARBFTT ARETRT
At 1 January 2019 RZZE—-h&—HA—H 98,332 (11,034 = 87,298
(Charged)/credited to (3B, FtABER
profit or loss (Nofe 12) (Krat12) (98,332) 1,620 (7,842) (104,554)
At 31 December 2019 RZE-—NAE+=HA
=+—H = (9,414) (7,842) (17,256)
Credited/(charged) fo (BR),FrAB#EZE
profit or loss (Nofe 12) (Hiaz12) — 1,590 (11,594) (10,004)
At 31 December 2020 RZZE-_ZTF+=A
=+—8H = (7,824) (19,4306) (27,260)

At the end of the reporting period, the aggregafe amount of
femporary differences associated with undistributed earnings of
subsidiaries for which deferred tax liabilities have not been
recognised was RMB235,237,000 (2019: RMB311,655,000).
No liability has been recognised in respect of these differences
because the Group is in a position fo control the timing of the
reversal of the temporary differences and it is probable that such

differences will not be reversed in the foreseeable future.

At the end of the reporting period, the Group has unused tax loss
of RMB146,722,000 (2019: RMB108,554,000), no deferred
fax asset has been recognised for the unused tfax loss due to

unpredictability of future profit streams for both years.

RBERR BZEIERABRLEREAEN
MEARMNRIERNEMNGRZEEAER
AR #235237000n(=ZF—hF: ARE
311,655,0007T) ° B 7A 7 & [H 7] 4% 6 (5 i = 5
MBERRE MZEFEZBEBRHIRTRL BRI S
Bm FHi W EZEERER

&

RBEEHR AEENRPATEBFEES A
R #146,72200( ZF — L F: AR K
108,554,0007T) » A 7 4 0% 788 M 8 4 /2 &9 R
Hoa M ROR - # E ph OR ) A B R B 18 HE R
EBIHEE
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21. DEFERRED TAX ASSETS/DEFERRED TAX 2L EERBEE EEHELE
LIABILITIES (coNTINUED) ()
At the end of the reporting period, the Group has deductible RBEHRR AEFEAHNBEEZE AR
temporary differences of RMB1,109,347,000 (2019: 1109347000 ( Z & — AL F: AR
RMB705,406,000) not recognised. As at 31 December 2019, 705,406,0007) A ER - R=ZFT—NLF+ = A
the Group had reversed deferred tax assefs of RMB98,332,000 =t+—H AEESUTFERIBNEMATN
in respect of other deductible temporary differences of THER R = %8 A R# 393,329,000 7T # [ & 1 51 18
RMB393,329,000 recognised in previous years, which in the BEE ARS8 332,0005T ' &R IWE T 5 E
opinion of the Direcfors, are not probable to be utilised in the AR BEERARATRBRT AT ERD
foreseeable future taking into account the fact that no sufficient B-Al R BE-_TER-_ZET—-HFE+_A=
taxable profits will be available. Accordingly, no deferred tax +—B WEREBEANGEEEAEREL
asset has been recognised in relation to such deductible femporary HEEE-

difference as at 31 December 2020 and 2019.

An analysis of the expiry dafes of the unused tax losses is as KEAHEGREIBE ST :
follows:

2020 2019
—E-%F —TAF
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR®T ARBTT

Within 1 to 4 years —ZE=NFNR 81,022 51,253
Within the 5th year EFER 65,700 57,301

146,722 108,554
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22. TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES AND

22.@%%%&&Eﬂﬂ@ﬂ&fﬁ&&ﬁ

PREPAYMENTS T
2020 2019
—BE-BF —E-NE
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR®T T AR T T
Non-current: JERNER -
Value-added tax recoverable (nofe {iii)) A U [a] & (B i (KT £ fiii)) 2,582 2,338
Prepayment for construction of the Vessel and B R R e TR R
the Equipment (note (v)) (HtaE () 129,071 —
Prepayment (nofe (vi)) T8 154 FRIE (K7 2 (vi) 13,818 —
145,471 2,338
Current: BIER -
Trade receivables FE U BR X 1,633,251 1,766,712
Less: Allowance for credit losses B EEEEEE (1,136,100) (@89,153)
Trade receivable, net of expected credit losses KRR MBRBEHEEBR
(note (i)) (Bt a2 (i) 497,151 777,559
Bills receivable (note {ii)) B W Z= 4% (K At (i) 21,516 7,472
Govemment financial incentive receivables, net & U IR A B IR B R
(note (iv)) (K% (iv) 6,017 14,636
Prepayments, nef (nofe (vi)) T8 - FRIE F B8 (K 2 (vi)) 30,177 42,156
Deposits, net note (iv)) B FR (W) 17,030 13,187
Others, net (note (iv)) HhF 8 (W 2t (iv) 4,863 8,650
576,754 863,660
722,225 865,998
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22. TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES AND
PREPAYMENTS (CONTINUED)

Notes:

(i

Before accepting any new customer, the Group assesses the
potential customer's credit quality and defines its credit limits based
on reputation of the customers within the industry.

The Group prepares an aged analysis for ifs frade receivable based
on the dates when the Group and the cusfomers agreed on the
quantum of the services rendered, as evidenced by progress
certificates. Periodic statements are issued and agreed by the
customers for the services rendered for the customers. Most of the
contracts require the customers to make monthly progress payments
with reference to the quantum of the services completed (typically
©5% of the quantum of the services completed in the previous month)
within 30 days to 9O days affer the issuance of the progress
certificate. According to these contracts, the remaining balance
[typically 5% of the quantum of the services completed) is kept as
refention money and is to be paid by the customers within thirty to
sixty days after (a) the project is completed and (b) accepted by the
cusfomers.

A contract asset, is recognised over the period in which the
construction services are performed representing the Group's right to
consideration for the services performed because the rights are
conditioned on (a), (b) and expiration of defect liability period. The
contract assets are transferred fo trade receivables when the rights
become unconditional.

Retention receivables, prior fo expiration of defect liability period,
are classified as contract assets, which range from 30 to 365 days
after (a) and (b) are fulfilled. The relevant amount of contract asset is
reclassified to trade receivables when the defect liability period
expires. The defect liability period serves as an assurance that the
construction services performed comply with agreed-upon
specifications and such assurance cannot be purchased separately.
The timing of payment patterns give rise fo refention receivables
which are subject to performance risks but not only the passage of
time before the retention receivables are due. The Group's right on
the retention receivables is conditional and thus the entire amount of
retention receivables amounted to RMB25,047,000 dfter allowance
of credit losses of RMB4 19,000 as at 31 December 2020 (2019:
RMB1 1,613,000 after allowance of credit losses of RMB178,000)
are classified as contract assets, details of contract assets are stated
in Note 24.

0B R R HL BB W R A I FR
X ()

REMEMHETLA AEEERTPNITH
ANBEFGEZEETPNEEERRREH
EERE -

AEEERNAEERTFPHERMBRHEREE
MEH(REEEEER) FELBUERNE
RoMN -  BEBRREEPRERAT P REH/D
REMEEFEL RBIERBTELREL
EEBFER=THENTHARZETKRBE
(BERLEAZTKREENOS%) X AEEE
- REZEAR #RCBERZKRBZE
5% IERBERERE  ARE PN ()BE TX
Rb)EFEME=TERTHAXNMN-

BRBEERETASBEWERREKENZER
HHRER - ERER Al (b) R ERFE B E
RERGSH GRNEEREREZERMNESE

FBURRESNRETTHERNIBLEANE
2 Bla) R(b) w2 B BN FI0EI65H -
ERBAETHERNR  GHEENEHSHE
HOBBEUIR - RiEE EHARRE A
THRETIREFTARBEORE  BZRBTEE
EBEBE NREEEIATRELERLR
B mAgeFETERRE B TERNERR
BN BRERR R-F_FF+_HA
= t—H AEEREGSERRES2HFEEA
R#25047 000 (EMBEEEBEREARK
419,0007) (ZE—h4F : AR%11,613,0007T
(BEHRERBREMEARK1780007T)) &
FMREMEGE AEEBRREEDBEAD
BE ANBEFBHNMIE2 -
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22. TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES AND

2. EWERR R EMEWRFURTE
PREPAYMENTS (CONTINUED) =

AT
Notes: (Continued) et - ()

(i) (Continued) (i) (%)

The aged analysis of the Group's trade receivable, prepared based
on the dates of certification of work done, which approximate the
respective revenue recognition dates (net of credit losses for trade
receivable), at the end of each reporting period is as follows:

Aged analysis of the Group’s trade receivable, net of

REBREHR  RETIREXNKBBRE
B B HR (B 70 AE B W s B9 FE SR B HR) T 4R
HOAEEEEEX(NREEEREER
BB NERESTMOT

FEEREUERREIN(NKAREE

ECL i8)
2019
—Z-NF
RMB'000
ARBFIT
0-30 days 0E30X 68,224 62,555
31-60 days 31 E60K 9,690 45,113
61-90 days 61 290K 3,094 4110
91-180 days Q1 £ 180K 9,413 23,492
181-365 days 181 £ 365K 42,336 123,490
1 year-2 years 1 FE2F 74,573 224,859
Over 2 years BB F 289,821 293,940
497,151 777,559

Up to the date of approval of the consolidated financial statements,
there were subsequent sefflement of trade receivables amounting to
RMB83,348,000 (2019: RMB120,522,000) being received by
the Group.

The estimated loss rates for ECL calculations are estimated based on
historical observed default rates over the expected life of the debtors
and are adjusted for forwardlooking information that is available
without undue cost or effort. The grouping is regularly reviewed by
the management to ensure relevant information about specific
debiors is updated.

Included in frade receivables as at 31 December 2020 was a gross
carrying amount of approximately RMB42,803,000 (31 December
2019: RMB48,803,000) due from a customer of which the related
dredging project has been suspended since January 2014 due fo
change in use of relevant reclaimed areas by the Government. The
custfomer has signed an agreement with the Group fo repay
RMB40,000,000 before 31 December 2016 but failed to fulfil the
payment. During the year ended 31 December 2020, an amount of
RMB6,000,000 (2019: nil] was received. Accordingly, the
accumulative allowance of credit losses as at 31 December 2020
amounted fo RMB42,803,000 (2019: RMB48,803,000) and
reversal of expected credit losses of RMB6,000,000 were
recognised for the year ended 31 December 2020.

HERAVBHREAEMLEBHLE K&K
EEWBREEBRENNEKRERA A
R #83348000L( =T — L F: AR ¥
120,522,0007T) °

BEHEREBRFEGMAEREDEREL AR
BEHFHNBTEREMSENEMEH  XiRE
T B AR B A A BUS B AT B 1 & RHE S
BE-DHBERECHER  UMERBERBA
HEBEHCEH -

R-_E-_TE+-_A=Z+—HBHNEKEREHE
Bl —2RF(EEEREEEE - —NF—
FREABNEXEEESENREMER)H
HEAREEDARKL280300mT(=F —
NE+=-_A=+—8: AR%48,803,0007T) °
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22. TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES AND
PREPAYMENTS (CONTINUED)

Notes: (Continued)

(i

(i)

i)

(Continued)

Included in trade receivables as at 31 December 2020 was a gross
carrying amount of approximately RMB353,191,000 (31
December 2019: RMB362,079,000) due from customers who are
large stateowned enterprise or local govermnments which the
respective projects were already completed. During the year ended
31 December 2020, an amount of RMB11,626,000 (2019:
RMB19,275,000) was received. Considering the repayment
pattern and the credibility of respective customers, the accumulative
allowance of credit losses as at 31 December 2020 amounted fo
RMB295,418,000 (2019: RMB259,666,000) was recognised af
end of reporting period, representing an addition of
RMB35,752,000 being recognised for the year ended 31
December 2020.

The aged analysis of the Group's bills receivable, presented based
on the relevant dates of certification of work done, is as follows:

Aged analysis of the Group’s bills receivable

22Eyﬁﬂ&AMEWﬁu&ﬁ
NENC D
et - (&)
(i) (&)

(i)

RZZE-_ZEFE+_A=+—R0 RRKREZXET
R A ARMES53191,000T (=8 — L F
+=ZA=+—H: AR#%362,079,0007T) &Y
BREFRIE ZZRFAREBA RSN
FTBRFEBEBEBERK HE-_ZT=-_ZF
+Z A=t BLEE BERISEBARE
11,626,000 (ZZE—NF : AR¥ 19,275,000
) B REEFNEREAREEE R
ZEZEF+ A=t HWERFEEBRRE
BARE205418000L(ZE—hhF: AR¥
259,666,000L) RIMEBKRER  REEZT
—EF+ A=+ HULEEEBRRSEEMA
K #35,752,0007T °

ERNRTIBEZEEABRMEN 2 AE HEK
RENREOTOT

FEBERRERRD T

2020 2019

—g-%% 2N

RMB’000 RMB'000

AR¥ T ARMEF T

0-30 days 0Z30K - 590
31-60 days 31 E 60K 38 2,150
61-90 days EXPS 3,500 =
91-180 days 01%Z 180% 11,000 4,030
Over 180 days i@ 180K 6,978 702
21,516 7 472

VAT paid of approximately RMB2,582,000 (2019:
RMB2,338,000) by the Group in connection with its construction-in-
progress could be setoff against future value added tax payable
generated from the Group. The amount is not expected to be
recovered within one year from the end of reporting, and is
accordingly classified as non-current.

(i)

AEEREERTEMINNEEROARE
2,582,000t (=% — L& : A R 2,338,000
TOOAAREFEASEBRELEN RN EER -
HREHZERRETARNRERRES —FR
Ym - BB BIERE
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22. TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES AND
PREPAYMENTS (CONTINUED)

Notes: (Continued)

(iv)

(v)

The aggregate carrying amount of government financial incentive
receivable, deposits and other receivables were RMB27,910,000
(2019: RMB306,473,000). During the year ended 31 December
2020, an dllowance of expected credit loss of RMB827,000
[2019: RMB786,000) was recognised.

Details of impairment assessment of other receivables for the year
ended 31 December 2020 are set out in Note 40 (b).

RMB129,071,000 (2019: nil) is a prepayment to a Constructor (defined
as below). On 1 June 2020, a wholly owned subsidiary of the
Company [the “Subsidiary”), entered info a hoisting service contract
with a customer who is an independent third party of the Group (the
"Customer”) which the Group agreed to provide the Customer with
hoisting services for 4 years from the completion of consfruction of
the Vessel and the Equipment (defined as below) at a monthly
service income of RMB6,800,000 (the “Monthly Service Income”),
with the fotal service contract sum of RMB326,400,000 (the “Hoisting
Service Agreement”).

On 11 June 2020, the Subsidiary entered info 2 agreements with a
constructor, who is an independent third party of the Group (the
“Constructor”) to construct a vessel (the “Vessel”) and to install
equipment on the Vessel (the “Equipment’) (the “Consfruction
Agreements’). The fotal consfruction cost for the Vessel and the
Equipment is approximately RMB226,748,000 in which the st
instalment of the Construction Agreements is RMB28,836,000, and
the Subsidiary already paid the Constructor RMB15,836,000 on
23 July 2020. It is expected by the management of the Group that
the construction of the Vessel and the Equipment will be completed
in June 2021 and the Subsidiary is obligated fo pay a further
RMB13,000,000 upon its complefion in accordance with the

Construction Agreements.

On 23 July 2020, the Subsidiary and the Constructor entered into 2
agreements with a financing company, who is an independent third
party of the Group (the “Financing Company”), all parties agreed
the Subsidiary would transfer its right and obligation on  the
Construction Agreements to the Financing Company, the unpaid
contract sum of Construction Agreements, i.e. 2nd to 4th instalments
amounting fo RMB197,912,000 (“Unpaid Cost"), shall be borne
by the Financing Company.

22. /& W Bk =X

Htt BUWARURE

ﬁ' TA (1)

et - (&)

(iv)

v

& W RS B R B~ 4R % H fth UK IR 48 BR
EEAARKE27910000T(=ZFT—ALF: A
R¥36,473,0007L) - BHE-_FT_TF+ A=
T-HLEFE BRERCEEBERBARE
827,000 (ZZF— L5 : AR¥786,0007T) °

FHBE _ZT_FF+_A=1+—"BLEFED
H A 18 L R % TR AN SRR 0 Rk (B R A B 1 R Y
F40[b) °

AR®120071,000(ZFE—nF: T) AN
FT-R2REB(EZRTOMNRMR - R_F
—EEXA-H ARAN-—ME2EANEB QA
(THEARDEFSAREBLIE=77H—fu
EF(EFPDAILEERB AL B NEE
RAE BxKEEMMRRBERE TR
MEAMZEFREEERYE  ARBEKA
R AR 6,800,000 (& A RBUKAD - R
SRR TR AR 326,400,0007T ([ E R B
&H0D -

RZZ-ZEXRA+T—H ZMBARE %
BEREAAKEEN-—2BIFE=77)EE
BRI 200 ek A — MM ()L
R ERRRE(RED (REBZE]D -
RREOREERKE B ARE2206,748,000
T EPREBBEIRIBNRAARE
28,836,000t AZMBARNR —_ZE_TF £
AZ+=HMRZEERN AR 15836000
T ASEERERHZEMMERBEHN =
Z—FXARI BRWBARARERE
W R TR # — X AR 13,000,0007T -

RZFZZFLA-+=A ZMBEBRARRZ
RERE-—HMBEAR(EALEEN BB
F=RTRERFADIL 20 HHE - =HHA
EZMBARAZBRE AR EREZERHENE
MEEE ZEBZORTEOEEBFE2H
ZEARS AR AR 197,912,0007T ([ &
NARAD BZRE R BHALE -
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22. TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES AND
PREPAYMENTS (CONTINUED)

Notes: (Continued)

vl

(Continued)

On 23 July 2020, the Subsidiary entered into 2 finance lease
agreements with the Financing Company pursuant to which the
Financing Company would finance the Unpaid Cost to the
Consfructor during the construction period for the construction of
Vessel and the Equipment by the Subsidiary. As at 31 December
2020, the Financing Company has paid RMB50,526,000 and
RMB60,446,000 on 10 August 2020 and 30 October 2020
respectively on behalf of the Subsidiary. Interest on these amounts
are accrued at 8% in arrears and amounting to RMB2,263,000 for
the year ended 31 December 2020.

In order to fulfil the payment obligations for the financing service, the
Subsidiary and the Financing Company have entered info the
following arrangement such that (a) the Subsidiary would rent the
Vessel and the Equipment from the Financing Company at a monthly
rental of RMB4,785,000 for 4 years (the “Monthly Rental”) from the
completion of the construction of the Vessel and the Equipment, so
that the Group can provide the hoisting service to the Customer in
accordance with the Hoisting Service Agreement, inducing the total
future undiscounted cash outflows over the 4-year non-cancellable
lease period amounted to RMB229,680,000; (b) A deposit
amounting fo RMB3,958,000 (see Note 23] was paid by the
Subsidiary to the Financing Company on 1 August 2020 for the
renfal arrangement mentioned above. From the complefion of
construction of the Vessel and Equipment and during the 4-year
lease term, the ownership of the Vessel and Equipment belongs o
the Financing Company and at the end of the 4-year lease term, the
Subsidiary has an option to purchase the Vessel and the Equipment
from the Financing Company at RMB200.

Another vessel of the Group with carmying value amounted to
RMB21,677,000 as at 31 December 2020, has been pledged to
the Financing Company fo secure the arangement (see Note 306).
Mr. Lliv and Ms. Zhou have also provided personal guarantees to
secure the arrangement [see Note 38 [ii)).

22. & W AR X

Htt BB AUR A

I 7 @)

et - (&)

(v)

(&)
RZZE_ZEFLA-+=0 ZMBERAEZX
MERBFU2OBMEBRE RS UL %

ERAERNZMNBARZEMMERENEE
HHFE?WEQL%FHS‘ZH*HBZZK EA_;_ F
T-RA=+—R ZRERQ DRNR T
Tﬁ)\ﬂ-i—EI&f?f—{E'i'ﬂ THRRZ
ff BB~ Al X A R # 50,526,000 & A K #
60,446,000t - BEZE-_E_ZBF+ - =+—
BLEFE ZTLBENMNETNIZHERFIANY
25t EAR2,263,0007T

RETRERBONREET ZMBRAAR
ZRMERBTBERSL NIRE: (o)W B A A
HETREREMMERELAFANEGERAARE
4,785,000t (B AES]) BZBER A
HEMMERE EAEETREEERES
HWRAZEPRHELERY  BERIFEF AR
HEEHARRAURRAERHEREARE
229,680,0007 : (o)t LA ELHME - e
AR#3,0580007T (R 523) 2 AZ B R
AR-_Z_ZFNA-—HAZBERAN -
BERBEMMERBEAFHEHERN  MMRRK
BOMERERAERRME  RNAFEHKR Z
MiE AR EENARK200TARE A B
B R

RZZT-_ZTF+-_A=+—H A£BEEE
ARM21677,000LH) 5 — MM E EIF T
BRARILNERZLZHE(RKEIS) -2 EERA
ZENEREBEAEZERAERZZH(R T
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22. TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES AND
PREPAYMENTS (CONTINUED)

23.

Notes: (Continued)

(v)

(vil

(Continued)

On 23 July 2020, the Subsidiary and the Financing Company also
entered info an entrusted payment contract that the Subsidiary
entrusts the Customer fo pay the Financing Company the Monthly
Rental directly. However, if the Customer fails to repay the Monthly
Rental, the Subsidiary has the obligafion to repay the Financing
Company the amount in full. On the same date, the Subsidiary and
the Financing Company entered info an agreement fo set up a
restricted bank account (the “Account”) for the Cusfomer fo deposit
the excess of Monthly Service Income net with the Monthly Rental in
the Account, i.e. RMB2,015,000 per month, and the Financing
Company has the right to withdraw the excess directly from the
Account, in order to fulfil the Monthly Rental obligation. The Account
is pledged to the Financing Company fo secure the repayment of the
Monthly Rental.

In the opinion of the Directors of the Company, the above
arrangement with the Financing Company was just a financial
arrangement for the Group to obtain the Vessel and the Equipment.
As at 31 December 2020, the Financing Company and the
Subsidiary paid a total of RMB110,972,000 and
RMB15,836,000 respectively, amounting fo RMB126,808,000 in
aggregate fo the Constructor over the consfruction period in
accordance with specified milestones, representing a prepayment of
the Group whilst ifs financial arrangement with the Financing
Company represents an other borrowing of the Group as sef out in
Note 30.

Details of impairment assessment of prepayments for the year ended
31 December 2020 are set out in Note 40 (b).

Prepayments of the Group comprise of RMB30, 177,000 the Group
paid for the chartering cost, docking costs and fuel cost for both PRC
and overseas projects; and RMB13,818,000 for prepayment of
purchase of raw materials for the construction of hotel.

DEPOSIT PAID FOR ACQUISITION OF
PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Included in deposit paid for acquisition of property, plant and

equipment was mainly represented by the construction of Vessel
and Equipment amounting to RMB3,958,000 as defailed in Note
22[v) and deposit paid for the acquisition of dredgers amounting
fo RMB8,435,000 during the vear, and the remaining capital
commitment amounted fo RMB®,390,000 is disclosed per Note
35. The remaining portion is represented by deposit paid for the

purchase of vessels components.

22. B W AR X K H th B WK

NENC )

X A K T8

et - (&)
(G-

RZZE_ZFLtA-_+=0 ZMBRAKZ
MERRNITL—HEENKELD  ZHBR
AZAZEFPFERAZBERARAXNEAHA
oA MEZEPAEEESARE  BIZM
%Qﬂﬁﬁ&@%@ﬁ@i%%%ﬁ%ﬁ°%

EMBARKZBRAERBTL —DHE
“jiﬂﬂﬁﬁﬁﬁﬁﬁﬁD AR 3% & P %
BHENEZARBRAZFEREAEEFAZE
F-EMAR2015000T B BE AR AR
BEENRZEFPERSZHOFIEA UETTEAHE
SEME-ZHEFPEERTZBRE AR AERE
BBABRSE-

$’Aﬂ§$wﬁf) L%ﬁéﬁ%ﬁ%ﬂﬁ’&ﬁﬁ‘ﬂﬁ%k@
RASEESHALREN —AREZH-

R=ZF_F $+ A=+—B REEEER
B ZREARLEZMBARREZER S A
ZRER N AR®I10,972,0007T & A R
15,836,0007T * # 5t AR ¥ 126,808,0007T * {F
RASBENENT R HEZRE QRN
ERFRASENS —ER  SNHZE30-

E!zi* —EF+ A=+ - HLEFENREN
FORE RT {5 15 B A P 3£ 40(b)

V) AEENENREEASEEXNHOEMS LK
A B KB INE B AR M AR R AR R R A
R¥30,177,0007T : WA K& 22 308 5 i B R 1 &
B RA R 13,818,0007T °

B.ENFKRBYE BRERREN
BE

WEME BERRBIXNNRSIEREZS
¥ A B2 2R 1 B0 A R 5 3,958,000 7T (H 7% 15 & 1t
MTEIQQ(V})&iWEHE%A%/)E%E’Hz:zﬁ/\ﬁ’#%‘
8,435,0007C » VA M AR 45 it 7E 35 4% B8 &Y Tl #7 & A<
HHE R AR ¥9,390,0007T ° &4 E0 5 E A g
BEMfat iz 25 -



Annual Report 2020 ZETFEFR 179

Notes to the Consolidated
Financial Statements (Continued)

R A B RS R AR MY L (80

For the year ended 31 December 2020 HZ -ZE -TF+-A=+—HIFE

24. CONTRACT ASSETS/CONTRACT

LIABILITIES

The Group's dredging contracts usually include a retention period
ranging from 30 days to 365 days for 5% to 30% of the confract
value. This amount is included in contract assets until the end of the
refention period as the Group's entitlement to this final payment is
conditional on the safisfaction of the service quality by the
customers over the refention period as stipulated in the confracts.
The contract assets are fransferred fo the frade receivables when
the rights become unconditional, which is typically at the expiry
date of the period for the provision of assurance by the Group on
the service quality of the construction work performed by the

Group.

Refention receivables included in contract assets amounting to
RMB19,064,000 after allowance for credit losses (2019
RMB11,613,000) as at 31 December 2020 are resulted from
current projects which are expected to be realised more than 12
months. The remaining portion of confract assets amounting fo
RMB5,983,000 after allowance for credit losses (2019: nil) are

expected fo be realised within 12 months.

During the year ended 31 December 2020, there is an addition
of RMB19,967,000 (2019: RMB?,743,000) and a transfer of
RMB6,292,000 (2019: RMB32,614,000) from contract assets
fo trade receivables. The Group's rights to considerations on these
contracts assets have become unconditional i.e. only the passage

of the time is required before payment of that consideration is due.

As part of the infernal credit risk management, the Group applies

internal credit rating for its customers in relation fo confract asses.

Defails of impairment assessment of confract assefs for the year
ended 31 December 2020 are set out in Note 40 (b).

Confract liabilities represent service income received in advance of
RMB42,364,000 (2019: RMB22,010,000) as at 31 December

2020 and recognised as revenue when the services are rendered.

During the year ended 31 December 2020, there is an addition
of RMB32,194,000 (2019: RMB5,604,000) and a transfer of
RMB1 1,840,000 (2019: RMBS5,730,000) from contract liabilities

o revenue.

B i, S D S S e S e D i e
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25. BANK BALANCES AND CASH 25. RITHBRRRE
Bank balances that are denominated in a currency other than the NEBREE QRN EE AN BEEGHER
functional currency of the relevant group companies are set out RITESBRETIWOT -
below:

2020 2019
LB Il ==
RMB’000 RMB'000
LIS AR5 T

United States Dollar (“US$") Zx(Ex)) 15 15
Hong Kong Dollar ("HK$) A (BTl 784 383
26. TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES 26, FE {4 BE 2k T L 4 JE 4 2K

2020 2019
LI =i
RMB’000 RMB'000
ARETF 7 NSRS

Trade payables J& 5F BR 3K
Sub-contracting charge SBEEA 101,315 124,581
Fuel cost BREL KR 2,030 2,757
Repair and maintenance #ERRE 14,888 16,869
Others Hib 18,922 7,933
137,155 152,140
Other payables H At & A 3K
Payable for consfruction cost of ¥ & W) 5 SR K R FE N R
investment properties (nofe) (#t7) 73,945 82,640
Accrual for other taxes JE & E 51 I8 53,362 60,339
Accrual for staff salaries and welfare st B TH < MR 35,018 40,807
Others H1 59,891 42,013
222,216 225,799

359,371 377,939
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26. TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES (CONTINUED) 26. B ERF R H 1t B R )

The aged analysis of the Group's trade payables presented based AEBEREREPHMRZBLZB 25 B
on the invoice dafe, except for subcontracting charge which is ERREEEZEAHENNSBERABRIN G
presenfed based on dates of the progress certificates, as at the BREE DT T :

end of each reporting period is as follows:

2020 2019
LIl ==
RMB’000 RMB'000
AREFr NSRS

0-30 days 0Z 30K 15,798 6,100
31-60 days 31 E60K 19,563 4,528
61-90 days 61 £00XK 983 586
9@1-180 days Q1 & 180X 3,014 8,993
Over 180 days HBiE 180K 97,797 131,933
137,155 152,140
Note: As at 31 December 2020, based on invoice date, B RZFTEZTF+_A=+—HB REZEA
RMB73,873,000 (2019: RMB8 1,867,000 of the ofher payables A W R A H bR A R K
for construction cost for investment properties has been due for over 73,873,000 (ZE— N4 : AR¥81,867,000

1 year. TT)EmEEE ] F o

27. AMOUNTS DUE TO DIRECTORS OF THE 27. BENA DR EENRE

COMPANY

As at 31 December 2020, the balance represented advance from R-ZE_TFF+_A=+—H HHERER
and emolument payable to certain Directors of RMB3,955,000 BNETEEFNBRRME ARE3,9550007T
(2019: RMB3,900,000) and an amount due to Mr. Liu of —ZE—NF: ARE3,900,0007T) K FE 2%
RMB40,900,000 (2019: RMB7,434,000). All amounts are £ R IE A R 40,900,000t (ZE— 1 F : A
unsecured, interestfree, repayable on demand and non-rade in R¥7,434,0007T) ° Fi B % % ;K IA5 R EER

nature. GEEAREREBENIEESEE -
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28. AMOUNTS DUE TO NON-CONTROLLING
SHAREHOLDERS OF A SUBSIDIARY

28.

All balances are nonvinterest bearing except for an amount of
RMB19,360,000 as at 31 December 2020 (2019:
RMB26,474,000] which is inferest bearing at 12% (2019: 12%)
per annum (“p.a.”). On 31 December 2020, the non-controlling
shareholders agreed not to demand repayment of RMB61,387,000
of the amounts due to them before January 2022 (2019:
RMB68,502,000 of the amounts due to them before January
2021). All amounts are unsecured and non-trade in nature.

BN—ENBLRFERRR

IR

BB AT ERE REBEE-ZS-_SF 1+
ZA=+—HMREARKI19,360,000T (==
—NE: ARBE26,474,000) IREE((BE])
126 (ZF—NF12%) st BRI e RZFB=F
F+ZA=1+—8 FERBERER=_Z=
ZHE—RAZATEEREERMESREAR
61,387,000 (ZE—NF  R_TE=-_—F—
A 2 Al FE 1 S 30E A R #68,502,0007T) © At
ERERBEYAEEARIEESIHE -

29. BANK BORROWINGS 2. RITEE
2020 2019
—E-EF —E-NF
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR¥T T ARBF T
Secured bank borrowings BERRITEE
Payment schedule according to confractual repayment 12 & %738 3% 8 2 1+ 3R B fE R
terms (note) (K1 aE)
Amount due for sefflement within one year —ERNBH SIS R E 293,400 297,000
Note: B et -
The effective interest rafes of the secured bank borrowings are set out in the TREINBERBITEENEEREF X :
following table:
2019
—E-N%F
RMB'000
ARBTTT
Fixed interest at 5.44% p.a. to 8.05% p.a. BE5.44% % 8.05% & £ | &
[(2019: 4.57% p.a. to 7.61% p.a.) (ZB—NEF : BFA7ET.61%) 217,400 288,000
Floating interest at LPR plus 1.13% p.a. to 1.61% p.a. FEREEBEEFRMNENEFI1.13%
(2019: LPR plus 0.92% p.a. to 1.36% p.a.) Z2161%)(ZE—NF ZEBREXK
FEIMNBFEO0.92%ZE 1.36%) 76,000 9,000
293,400 297,000

As at 31 December 2020 and 2019, the Group's bank
borrowings were supported by the corporate guarantees given by
Xiangyu PRC (defined in Note 42) and the Company. The Group's
bank borrowings fo the extent of RMB192,500,000 (2019:
RMB195,000,000) were secured by certain assets of the Group (see
Note 36), a property owned by a company in which Mr. Liu has
beneficial inferest and personal guarantees provided by Mr. Liu
and Ms. Zhou respectively (see Note 38lii).

RZEZEFR_FT—NAF+ZA=+—8"
AEERITEEUAFTHRE(ER RME42) &
RARMEHEM AR BRESZF REBETHE
BEARKIO250000T(ZE—NLF: AR
195,000,00070) A A E B E T & E (R H&E36)
FABEERETFEEEa =N —HARAM
BEN—EYEARBIALERBALZ LSRR
/9 B A JE 4R (RT3 38(0) B3 -
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30. OTHER BORROWINGS 30. Hefg &

2020 2019
—B-BF —E-NEF
Nofes RMB’000 RMB'000
Bt AR®T R ARBFT
Unsecured other borrowings BEREMES
Without fixed repayment ferm and mEEEEHAR RS
classified as current liabilities "REBBEE (i) 52,650 54,090
Classified as non-current liabilities PERIERBERE (i) 24,277 37,915
Secured other borrowings EEREMEE
With fixed repayment term and BEEEEBRESHE
classified as current liabilities RnEaE (ii) 26,293 -
Classified as non-current liabilities DERIERBDAR (ii) 86,233 -
189,453 92,005
Notes: K&t -

(i) RMB21,742,000 (2019: RMB35,380,000) included in the (i)
Group's other borrowings carried fixed inferest rates ranged from
10% to 12% per annum (2019: 11% to 12%) and the effective

ALK EHEMEE ARK21,742,0007T (=
T— hF: AR#352380,0007T) 1% E F E 7
RIOBBI126(ZZE—NF: 11%E12%) 5T B -

(i)

interest rate was 10.09% (2019: 11.58%). Other than that, the
remaining other borrowings of the Group are inferestfree. All of the
Group's other borrowings are unsecured, without fixed repayment
term and were borrowed from independent third parties. On 31
December 2020, cerfain counterparties agreed not fo demand
repayment before January 2022 (2019: January 2021) and
accordingly, RMB24,277,000 (2019: RMB37,915,000) due to
these parties are classified as non-current.

It represents payable and inferest payable to the Financing
Company for construction of the Vessel and the Equipment
amounting to RMB 110,972,000 and RMB1,554,000 respectively.
Please refer to Note 22(v) for defails.

(i)

BERHMNEAEI0O09% (=T — FLF:11.58%)
Btz AEBESHOEMES L -
MEASEEGBEELNAERR YEBRTE
HEMEBBYE=FER - R_T=_TF+=
A=+—RH EBFHFHFRAETER =T
F—R(ZE—hAE: —2BE-—F—A)Z2HE
kEEEE At BNZSTOANARE
24,277,000 (ZZE— N F : AR¥37,915,000
TR BEAERBEER

EORREERMMERBEABE QAN
RERFBARKIN00972,0007T & A R #
1,554,0007T - B RIS - 2B M 22
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31.

BONDS PAYABLE

The Company issued unsecured convertible bonds (the “Bonds”) to
CITIC at a total nominal value of HK$243,000,000 (equivalent to
RMB191,970,000) on 8 November 2013, carrying an inferest
rate of 3% per annum with the maturity date of 7 November 2016
(the “Original Maturity Date”). The Bondholder, being CITIC, had
an option to either convert the Bonds into the Company's ordinary
shares at a conversion price of HK$2.7 per share, subject to anti-
dilufive adjustments, af any time affer six months from the date of
issue and up to the Original Maturity Date, or fo require the
Company fo redeem them at 133.792% of the nominal value of
the Bonds, which amounted to HK$325,115,000 (equivalent to
RMB290,818,000 based on spot exchange rafe on 7 November
2016) (the “Original Redemption Amount”), upon maturity. The
Company had no right fo early redeem the Bonds.

At the time when the Bonds were issued, the Bonds were analysed
by the management of the Group fo contain two components, the
host debt component and the conversion option. The Bonds are
denominated in HK$, which is a currency other than the
Company's functional currency. Therefore, the conversion option in
the Bonds does not result in an exchange of a fixed number of the
Company's own equity insfruments for a fixed amount of cash,
denominated in HK$. Accordingly, the conversion option was
accounted for separately as a derivative liability, which was not
closely related fo the host debt component. The fair values of the
debt component and the derivative component were determined at
the date of issue. Subsequent to initial recognition, the debt
component was carried at amortised cost while the derivative
component was measured at fair value, with changes in fair value
recognised in profit or loss. The effective interest rate of the debt

component was 16.9%.

The Group had not paid the Original Redemption Amount and the
last inferest payment on the Original Maturity Date to CITIC. During
the year ended 31 December 2016, the Group and CITIC
enfered info a framework agreement on 14 November 2016 (as
amended by supplemental framework agreements, collectively the
"Framework Agreement”) and a standstill and amended agreement
and supplemental deed to the original deed poll regarding the
Bonds (the “Amendment Agreement’] on 15 December 2016,
pursuant to which CITIC agreed fo a) extend the maturity from the
Original Maturity Date to 14 March 2017 and b) reduce the
principal amount of Original Redemption Amount to
HK$275,415,000 (equivalent to RMB246,381,000) based on
spot exchange rafe on 31 December 2016, subject to cerfain

conditions as sfated in the Amendment Agreement.

FPEIZRRIZEREBRAE

e, W i S e S S iy, iy, iy, iy, W 8

3. BN &=

ARAAR-_FT—-—=%+—H N\ B RCTC
B {7 48 T {E243,000,0007 T(&E X AR
191,970,0007T ) # #& # # 7] #% i & % ([ &
F NBEREEFE3N R _T—RF+— At
HUR2EA DI - EHFE ABICTIC) 7
MET B BENEAE R H B A E 6 EE
BURBREBER27BT(AIRETEH(FL
HAEBE)BEFLBRARBNEBR R 2 H
BREXRARAREFOEEN133.792%FEH
EM325 1150008 T(RBE-_F—R"F+—A
+ B #) B HA fE =40 E X A R #290,818,0007T)
(FE2) AARERREFERNZEES -

EBTEFR AEEEEEINESFNUES
MED  DEBHIED REBEE - B5FTIA
BILETE METAARRNEEBININNE
e Eit BFENBRBEETESBABEHEN
ARRE GG TAXBETESRRS (ABT
AE) - Bt mEESHEARIABITERE
ERIEBHBSLIFZIERM - EEBD 2T
ATEMONRFEREITARETE - 75
RE BB IRBEERNATE TETAR
DARATEFE R FENEHNER R
RoBBHBONERMERR169%

REREBER  AEEHARCANICE N RES R
RE—ZMNE - BE-_ETE—XRNEF+-_A=1+—
AIEFEE  AEER _ZE—X"F+—A+HmHAH
BCITNICFT M IEZR i (K R ER B RIER] - &
BIEERED YR—_E—XE+=-A+AA
BCTICFI M BRESH M E &8 K RIEFT e
URFEREHARB(EBTHED - Bt
CMICRED#HEmRSEAERISFAERE =
TE—+E=-A+HWA: kb)BLRESALE
Z£2754150008 T(RIE=_ZT—X<"F+=_A=
+—BM B ERE R AR E R A R ¥246,381,000
TC) - RS M ATl B TR -
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31. BONDS PAYABLE (coNTINUED)

Furthermore, the conversion opfion under the Bonds was removed
under the Amendment Agreement. Accordingly, no embedded
derivative was recognised at 31 December 2016 and af the end
of subsequent accounting periods.

On 21 March 2017, 5 June 2017, 21 September 2017, 23
January 2018 and 15 March 2019, the Company and CITIC
had entered info the second amendment agreement, the third
amendment agreement, the fourth amendment agreement, the fifth
amendment agreement and the sixth amendment agreement.
During 2019, the sixth amendment agreement was in effective
pursuant fo which the maturity dafe of the Bonds was extended to
20 December 2019 such that based on the latest amendment
agreement in effect, the Company needed fo repay the Bonds of
HK$319,483,000 (equivalent to RMB268,045,000) together
with the interest due by 20 December 2019 with interest rate at
an amended rafe of 13% per annum.

The Company had not repaid the abovementioned amounts in full
on 20 December 2019
outstanding, including the accrued interest amounted to
HK$319,483,000 (equivalent to RMB285,890,000). As at 31
December 2019, the tfotal amount outstanding, including the

at which date the total amount

’

accrued inferest rate af 13% per annum amounted to

HK$320,503,000 (equivalent to RMB286,804,000).

During the year ended 31 December 2020, the Group has setiled
approximately HK$3,560,000 (equivalent to RMB3,000,000)
[2019: HK$6,838,000, equivalent to RMB6,030,000) to CITIC.
On 3 December 2020, the Company and CITIC had entered into
the seventh amendment agreement [the “Seventh Amendment
Agreement’) to extend the Original Maturity Date to 31 March
2021. Pursuant fo the Seventh Amendment Agreement, it has been
agreed that, a) the principal amount of the Bonds shall be
amended to HK$319,483,000 (equivalent to
RMB268,045,000); b) the redemption amount of the Bonds shall
be amended to HK$352,447,000 (equivalent to
RMB295,702,000) including the interest accrued at 8% per
annum; and c) if the Company repays CITIC an amount of
HK$98,359,000 on or before 31 March 2021, the Company
shall be deemed to have repaid the Bonds in full. The Company
has repaid HK$98,359,000 to CITIC on 30 March 2021 in
pursuant with the above ferms sef out in the Seventh Amendment
Agreement, such bonds payable have been fully sefiled.

31. BN &% wm)

B i, S D S S e S e D i e

EK

SN BEFONERERBEER HBEBR - Bt
RZE—ARFT+ A=+ —HAREENEH
AR WEHRAXTET ABERER -

RZFE—+F=A=+—H ZFE—tF~A
AR —E—+tHFNAA-_+—H —ZE—)N\F
—A-+=Z=BHEZZ—AFE=A+HB &ARQ
RIECMICET L E =Bl HhaE - E=M1EET1H
ECFENEBIHE FAOEIBEREEAS
DEITHE RZT—NF E NGB H&E
B4 Bt 1$3§<Z§IJHHEIHHEL§if;
—NWE+ZA=-+H BMBREEROEHE
Wik ARAAHREBEAR-_Z-—AEF+=ZAZ= -I—
HEE#319,483000% T (HERARK
268,045,0007T) ER B B F B - A RIZL(E
T EFE 13%5T -

ARARER -_E-—NAFT AT HEHE
BELiie® RZBEAAREENRSR(ER
JEET A B) /319,483,000 T(HE R AR
285,890,0007L) c RZZE—HAhF+ZHR =+
—RA AEELCH(BREEFFNXRI%N A
320,503,000 7t (18 & 1 A K # 286,804,000
)

REBEZE-_E_ZF+-_A=+—BILEE &
&= B 2 ACTICHE & 493,560,000 7T (B E R A
R #3,000,000c)(=ZZF — N F: 6,838 OOO)%
T HERARK6,030,0007T) N-E-T4F
+=A=8" ZIS’AETEECITICETZ%‘HN 71 1%
Z(EEHETmZE])  BRIBBERE=ZF
T F=ZA=Z=t+—"H - BEBEFLMDE B
AAFERBEEFEFNAE A319,483,000
BT (B E R AR #2680450007T) i bjf& &7
&% B & /352,447,000 T (M E R ARK
295,702,0007T) (B E8%UH FEET F 7 B )« K
WARARRR-ZZE-_—&F=ZA=+—HB=H 2R
CITIC{E 98,359,000/ 7T * KA AIZBEHWEAEE
2HEEZESF ARAERZZE=—F=A
=+ B RCITICE 98,359,000 1t e XA Al B
BEELHETHEMR EABERR =2 =—
F=H=+BMmCTCE &98,359,000%& 5t * &
BREMNEFCRHLEE -
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31.
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BONDS PAYABLE (coNTINUED)

The arrangement in relation to (a) and (b) under the Seventh
Amendment Agreement as mentioned above resulted in a
substantial modification of terms of the Bonds, resulting in an
extinguishment of the original Bonds and the recognition of new
Bonds, a modification gain of RMB325,000 is recognised in

profit or loss.

Under the abovementioned agreements entered into by the
Company and CITIC, the Bonds are personally guaranteed by Mr.
Liv and his spouse Ms. Zhou Shuhua ("Ms. Zhou"] who are also
the Directors of the Company, and equity inferesfs in cerfain
subsidiaries of the Company are pledged in favour of CITIC, a
dredger and an industrial premise and a residential property
owned by the Group included in property, plant and equipment
and investment properties with carrying value of
RMB205,005,000 as at 31 December 2020 (2019
RMB245,157,000).

Details of each of the agreements are set out in the announcements
of the Company dated 7 November 2016, 15 November 2016
16 November 2016, 16 December 2016, 22 March 2017, 5
June 2017, 22 September 2017, 1 December 2017, 23 January
2018, 15 March 2019 and 3 December 2020.

Based on the revised agreements, inferest rate are as follows:

FPEIZRRIZEREBRAE

e, W i S e S S iy, iy, iy, iy, W 8

3. ENfEZw

ERELDERTHZEETE Bl RbH = 5
BEREFGRABBEERET  EMEBUEER
BEEhERHES IRBERPERARK
325,000 T BB AT Y &5 ©

RIBEEARRBECMCAT L 2 W% - ZEFA
EEREEBARELT(AL L) (BE
RRARBER)BAER RARRE THE
RAREACTICEZEA BB ANEEHES
Z—HRIEZEM E-RIZEFTR —BEEEY
X UYUR-_E_ZEF+_A=+—HZE@
B AR®20500500T(ZFE—NF: AR
245,1 5700071)5'J)\¢%¥ T B5 Be 2% R DA B %

BEBENFBHENRARRAARR T —KF
+—AtE ZZE—X"F+—A+HH =
—R"FE+—A+RA - ZZ—RFTZA+AX
H —ZZ2—+H=FA=+=H - ZZ—+&<A
£H~:?*t¢hﬂ_+—ﬂ :?*t¢+
AR ZE-NE-AZ+=BKk=
NE= ﬂ+£5&777 F+-A= EZ

*o
RELEFTNEOHE  MERMT :

Interest rate

per annum
Period 2 RS R =
From 22 June 2018 and up to 20 December 2019 —E-NFARA=Zt=-HZE
—h&E+=B=+H 13%
From 21 December 2019 and up to 31 March 2021 —hE+=-_A=1+—H=F
—f#=A=+—H 8%

Note: The above interest shall accrue on a day to day basis and be
calculated on the basis of a 365-day calendar year on the Reduced
Redemption Amount/revised principal amount.

Mt LA Ee B ACENNESBRERESF
3SAREREGR R ARAGEER -
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31. BONDS PAYABLE (CONTINUED) 3. ENEZw
The Bonds recognised in the consolidated statement of financia RFEERBERARNKERZERFTHENOT

position are calculated as follows:

Bonds

payable

BB

Note RMB'000
iogz3 ARBTT

At 1 January 2019 R-—ZE—h&FE—HA—H 254916

Interest 2 32,714

Settlement BT (6,030)

Exchange realignment BEE 5 3 X 5,204

At 31 December 2019 R-_ZE—HhE+-_A=+—8H 286,804

Gain on modification of bonds payable & 5T FE 15 1B %5 1) W o % (325)

Interest ) 2 22,857

Seftlement B (3,000)

Exchange realignment PE X, 35 2 (18,854)

At 31 December 2020 R-E-_ZTF+-_HA=+—H 287,482
The bonds as the end of the reporting periods are represented by: RBEBEREFZ20T

At At

31 December 31 December

2020 2019

R=Z-ZF R-ZE—NF

TZA=+—H [Eeci=l=]

RMB’000 RMB'000

AR¥T ARET T

Bonds payable on demand IREKEMNES - 286,804

Bonds payable within one year —FRNENESR 287,482 -
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32. LEASE LIABILITIES 32HEEE
At At
31 December 31 December
2020 2019
R-EB-ZEF RZZE—NF
==t = - — =1+ —H
RMB’000 RMB'O00
AR%T ARBT T
lease liabilities payable: JERFEEEE:

Within one year —FE R 605 1,263

Within a period of more than one year —FAFETBBRFENHEHER
but not more than two years 1,332 869

Within a period of more than two years MENEETBBAFANHER
but not more than five years 523 =
2,460 2,132

Less: Amount due for setflement with 12 months RSB EE NEARRI2MEA
shown under current liabilities A JE {5 7038 (605) (1,263)

Amount due for settlement after 12 months ERBABETARNI2EAR
shown under non-current liabilities FE 1B 1,855 869
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33. SHARE CAPITAL 33. [ &
RMB
Number of equivalent
shares Amount amount
AR
BOEE -} EEEE
‘000 HK$'000 RMB'000
T i FAT ARBT T
Ordinary Shares of HK$0.10 each BHREEOC. 108 TTH
gl
Authorised EE
Balance at 1 January 2019, R-ZE—hh&E—HF—H8"
31 December 2019 and 2020 - = ﬂi&
—EZZTF+=A
=t+t—HBHN&E# 10,000,000 1,000,000 N/A i
Issued and fully paid ERTRER
Balance at 1 January 2019 RZZE-—hF—A—BH®
&R 1,773,664 177,366 149,577
Exercise of share options (nofe (i) 17156 BE R A8 (M &4 (1)) 8,702 870 788
Balance at 31 December 2019 and R-ZZE—hFE+=-A
1 January 2020 :‘f— El &
—E-_TF—HA—H
) 45 £ 1,782,366 178,236 150,365
Placing of shares (nofe {ii)) e & B 1D (M a2 (i) 191,917 19,192 17,549
Balance at 31 December 2020 =l < = Sl =|
=+t—HH&E% 1,974,283 197,428 167,914
Notes: B et -
(i) On 10 October 2019, the subscription rights attaching fo 8,702,000 (i) R-ZZE—NAF+A+8  K#&S8,702,0001 8 &
share options were exercised at the subscription price of HK$0.131 3 E!'] RS ROI3IBITHREETE (M
per share (Note 44), resuling in the issue of 8,702,000 shares for 44) - BEEE178,702,000 B 1p - LK E

(i)

(i)

a tofal cash consideration, before expenses, of approximately
HK$ 1,140,000 (equivalent to approximately RMB1,032,000).

On 24 April 2020, the share placings of 191,917,000 shares of
the Company at a placing price of HK$0.10 were completed. The
net proceeds from the placing was approximately HK$ 19,200,000
lequivalent fo approximately RMB17,500,000), part of which was
used fo repay the Bonds as set out in Note 31. These new shares
rank pari passu in all respect with the existing shares.

On 5 March 2021,
approved a share consolidation on the basis of every 2 shares info

the shareholders of the Company have

one consolidated share and become effective on @ March 2021.

(i)

(i)

(HIBR P AT) R4 231,140,000 7T (A8 & 7
#ANR#1,032,0007T) °

RZZTZTFMAZ+MA - NAATHK KA
%F‘iﬂxﬂxf 0.10%% 7T B & 191,917,000 B% A&
o B & A FT 15 FIBVF B 4) B 19,200,000 7T
(*E R AR17,500,0007T) * Ao H
REEMREINRMAIES UEFTRESHFE
BEAERNEZEREE -

RZZB-—F=AHB ARAIRREHE—
BERhEH EER/F2ZREOAHR KK
YR T —F=ANBERK-
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34. LEASES 34. HE
The Group as lessee rEBEAEBEA
Minimum lease payments paid e &REHEERER
2020 2019
— —FNF
RMB’000 RMB’'000
ARBT T ARBTT
Minimum lease payments paid under FARBREAHEEZ N
shortferm leases during the year: HIEBERKIE
Office premises /NESYES - 40
Transportation vessels i & i A 470 271
Machinery 2% 115 =
Others Hity 14 -
599 311
The minimum lease payments represented shortterm leases entered BEMEXRBEEAEHITIHNEHAE -
info by the Group.
The Group as lessor AEBEAEHBEA
Rental income from shopping mall and factories eamed during the EFNEEBRIBBERNESWADRAAR
year were RMB2,417,000 and RMB4,483,000 respectively #2 4170007 & A R #4,483,000( =& —
(2019: RMB3,097,000 and RMB4,652,000). The chartered hE: AR¥3,097,0007T B AR 4,652,000
vessels have commitied fenants for the next one to two years. ) FTBEHAMMEEARER —Z=2_FmwH

B o
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35. CAPITAL COMMITMENTS 35. EARAEE

2020 2019
S B ==
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR%Fr NSRS

Capital commitments contracted buf not provided EFTAEI RSB ENTFIA
for relafing fo the following: T2 8 AR E
Acquisition of property, plant and equipment [note fiil) WX BB % - W= K a& 48 (FY 2t (i) 81,012 59,122

Investment in conducting capital financing business WEEITERNSBER (M)

[note (i) 7,122 7,122
Investment in an associate R—EBERRZRE 2,874 -
Notes: B
(i) Pursuant to the investment agreement to sef up a subsidiary which (i) BIEF L+ B ﬁfﬁ AEeREBWERRAR

principally conducts capital finance business, the proposed & fh & - %2 5% =t it & 420,000,000 7T #4 B A
registered capital of US$20 million will be contributed in proportion RFARAIIMEREEREBNREDBILE
to the respective equity holdings of the Company and two other 16,000,000 7T ~ 2,000,000 7T & 2,000,000
investors of US$16 million, US$2 million and US$2 million EL-R_B_ZFR-_ZF-AF+ZA=+
respectively. As at 31 December 2020 and 2019, capital of — B ARFEEA14,900,000% 7T - M55
US$14.9 million was injected by the Group whilst the other two MERAEDER TR EE AP -

investors are sfill in progress in obtaining approval from regulators
for capital injection.

(i) The capital commitments represented the construction of a hotel in (ii) BARFEREPREEZ -—FBEELEEMN
Yancheng, the PRC and construction of Vessel and the Equipment. B B s o
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36.

37.

PLEDGE OF ASSETS

At the end of the reporting period, the following assets of the
Group were pledged fo secure bank borrowings, bonds payable
and credit facilities granted to the Group during the year:

HEFARRIERERA A

36. EEE A

RBERAR AEEEBATEEERFAR
TAEENRITEE EBNEFREERENE
o

2020 2019

—E-%F —TAF

RMB’000 RMB'000

AR¥T T ARBTT

Dredgers included in property, plant and equipment TRt (GIAWE - BERZE) 481,111 613,390
Properties included in property, plant and equipment  #1 % (B A1 % « B M%&) 32,306 34,513
Investment properties "EME 17,207 16,573
530,624 664,476

RETIREMENT BENEFIT PLANS

The employees of the Group's subsidiaries in the PRC are members
of a statfemanaged retirement benefit scheme operated by the
local government in the PRC. The Group is required to confribute a
specified percentage of payroll cost to the refirement benefit
scheme to fund the benefits. The only obligation of the Group with
respect to the scheme is fo make the specified contributions

according fo the state rules.

The Group operates a Mandatory Provident Fund Scheme (the “MPF
Scheme”) under the Mandatory Provident Fund Schemes
Ordinance (Chapter 485 of the laws of Hong Kong] for
employees employed under the jurisdiction of the Hong Kong
Employment Ordinance. The MPF Scheme is a defined contribution
refirement scheme administered by independent trustees. Under the
MPF Scheme, the employer and its employees are each required
fo make confributions fo the scheme at 5% of the employees’
relevant income, subject to a cap of monthly relevant income of
HK$30,000 (2019: HK$30,000). Contributions to the scheme

vest immediafely.

7. B k18 R 5t &

AEEBTHEMBEARANES  ZAHTEMBT K
EENBERERZRARBANFEANKE - XK
B AR 5 & B XA E B ) AR R AR 5 81 it
X REMNEHRES AKEHZFENE—]
TERBEEZFZAELEREEHRRK -

R B QTR S A B GROI(F B AP 5485
B)AKERBARRKIETHNRERE ZER
HEREEFE ((RESE]) - BEEFER
—EARBLERATENREH/FRNKETE -
RERESHE BRILEREEARBRER
HEMARSEABRES A EIHK S ANE
B4 A EBR & 30,000 7T (Z & — 114 - 30,000
BT FtEIHR AR EE -
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38. RELATED PARTY DISCLOSURES

(i

i)

(iii)

Related party transactions

During the year, the Group paid nil rental (2019
RMB40,000) fo certain companies controlled by Mr. Liu in

respect of office premises.

In addition, the Group received other advances from, and
made repayments to Mr. Liu during the years ended 31
December 2020 and 2019. As at 31 December 2020,
the amount due to Mr. Liu was RMB40,900,000 (2019
RMB7,434,000) as disclosed in Note 27.

Pledge of assets and guarantees in
support of the Group’s borrowings

As at 31 December 2020 and 2019, other than pledge of
assets of the Group, the Group's bank borrowings and
bonds payable were also supported by:

[a)  corporate guarantee given by Xiangyu PRC;

[b)  personal guarantees provided by Mr. Liu and Ms.
Zhou; and

[c)  two properties owned by certain non-controlling

shareholders of the Company's subsidiary.

Bank borrowing of the Group of RMB81 million (2019
RMB82 million) was supported by a property owned by a

company in which Mr. Liu has beneficial inferest.

Pledge of assets and guarantees in
support of the Group's construction of
Vessel and Equipment (defined in Note
22(v))

As at 31 December 2020, other than pledge a vessel of
the Group, the Group's construction of Vessel and Equipment
was also supported by personal guarantees provided by
Mr. Liv and Ms. Zhou.

38. AELHE

) BELFTXS
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38. RELATED PARTY DISCLOSURES (coNTINUED)

39

(iv) Related party balances

Details of the balances due to Directors are set out in Note
27 to the consolidated financial statements.
(v) Compensation of key management
personnel

The emoluments of Directors who are also identified as
members of key management of the Group during the
reporting period are set out in Note 14 to the consolidated
financial statements.

CAPITAL RISK MANAGEMENT

The Group manages its capital fo ensure that the group companies
will be able o continue as a going concem while maximising the
refurn fo shareholders through the optimisation of the debt and
equity balances. Having considered the factors and circumstance
set out in Note 2 to the consolidated financial statements, the
Directors are satisfied that the Group will have sufficient liquidity to
meet its cash flows requirements for next twelve months from the
end of reporting period.

The capital structure of the Group consists of amounts due to
directors of the Company, amounts due to non-confrolling
shareholders of a subsidiary, bank borrowings, other borrowings
and bonds payable as disclosed in Notes 27, 28, 29, 30 and
31 to the consolidated financial statements respectively and equity
affributable fo shareholders of the Company, comprising paid up

capital/share capital and reserves.

The Direcfors review the capital structure regularly. As part of this
review, the Directors consider the cost and the risks associated
with each class of the capital. Based on the recommendations of
the Directors, the Group will balance its overall capital structure
through the payment of dividends, new share issues as well as the

issue of new debt or the redemption of existing debt.
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39.

BEEIEE @

liv) BAE 5 &R
ERNEFERFHERRGA M BRERME
27 °

FTREEEAREHMN

R ABS AR EEEEERE

KEMNEZMWE EHNEGEE M RK T
14

(v)

EXxERERE

AEBERREARAGFEEETHARASUFEL
2 FAHABEECEBERATEHERRRER
RAER - REEHIINGA VBRI 20
AERER EEEMAKERERRRARN
HESURNEERESHRESARK @A

MRATRERE -

AEBNEAGBEEDIRGEAMBRERN
272829 -30RIIMENENARRES
K AN — R B F IR AR SRR - R1T
fEE HtEERENES URARARREE
s BREESER WMARGEE -

E=THRNEREE (FARFTN Mo &
EEREARNKARE-BHEAMTORER -
REEENESZ AKSEBEEXNRE - &1
HEEBETHEXELARTES FELAKREN
EEEAREE-



Annual Report 2020 —E_EEER 195

Notes to the Consolidated
Financial Statements (Continued)

R A B RS R AR MY L (80

For the year ended 31 December 2020 HEZE T =ZFTF+ZA=+—HLFE

B i, S D S S e S e D i e

40. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS 40. R T A

(o) €@ T A5

(a) Categories of financial instruments

2020 2019

—E-EF —NF

RMB’000 RMB'000

AR® T ARBT T
Financial assets cTREE

Financial assets at amortised cost RBEKAGTENSRERE 600,215 845,804
Financial liabilities tREE

Amortised cost B8 Ak R 1,184,843 1,076,305

Lease liabilities HEAE 2,460 2,132

(b) Financial risk management objectives b) MEEKEEBZERBE

and policies

The Group's major financial instruments include frade and
other receivables, contract assets, bank balances and cash,
trade and other payables, amounts due fo directors of the
Company, amounts due fo non-controlling shareholders of a

bonds

payable and lease liabilities. Details of these financial

subsidiary, bank borrowings, other borrowings,
instruments are disclosed in the respective notes. The risks
associated with these financial instruments include market,
credit and liquidity risks. The policy on how to mitigate these
risks is set out below. The management manages and
monitors these exposures to ensure appropriate measures

are implemented on a timely and effective manner.

$%E’UIE%%§I& B ¥ R B R e

MmEKNR aHWEE RITEHEEAS
J?éﬁﬁ%%ﬁ&ﬁﬁﬁﬁsiﬁz J,7§H$ AEE

HRIE -~ A — BB R R IE AR AR R R
HRTEE HEMEE BAESFRE

B - ZEeRITANFBERSERH
MEPHRE EZFem TAEBRNER

BREMS FERRDHESER - FH@EW
ARERZERBAOBEHEN T BEEE
EERERZERR  UBRRERERAR
R EXE & R B ©
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40. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (CONTINUED)

(b) Financial risk management objectives
and policies (Continued)

Market risk
(i)  Currency risk

The Group has foreign currency transactions, which

(b)

expose the Group fo foreign currency risk. The
Company will consider the use of foreign currency
forward confracts to mitigate the risk when the need

arise.

At the end of the reporting period, the carrying
amounts of foreign currency denominated monetary
assefs and liabilities that are considered significant by

the management are as follows:

Assets
BE
2020
—E-%F

RMB’000
AR¥T T

US$
HK$

13

BT 785

40. €@ T A @

BERERREERERBEE @

™5 & ks
(i) E¥ERR

AEEGFEINERS  ERAKEA
EFERRE c RABHNAETEE
ZEBANEEHAORBEERR -

RFEHR BEEREBEANMN
INESFENEBEEERBEER S
AR :

Liabilities
afE

2019 2020 2019
“ZE N bl T F
RMB'000 RMB’000 RMB'000
ARBT T ARMT T ARBF T
15 - —
579 294,073 293,581

The following table detfails the Group's sensitivity to a 5%
(2019: 5%) increase and decrease in the functional
currency of the relevant group entities against the
relevant foreign currencies and all other variable were
held constant 5% (2019: 5%)

management's assessment of the reasonably possible

represents

change in foreign exchange rates. The sensitivity
analysis includes only outstanding foreign currency
denominated monetary items and adjusts their
translation at the end of the year for a 5% change in
foreign currency rates. On this basis, there will be a
decrease in posttax loss or an increase in posttox
profit where the functional currency of the relevant
group entities weaken against US$ by 5% or
strengthen against HK$ by 5%, and vice versa.

TRHAMMBEEMAIEHBEETD
BHELT AEEHEREEER
MM EE LEENE LR TR
S%(ZFB—NF: 5%)BREE ~ 5%

TE-NF N REBERINE
ERMAIEA L EBE L TR - 8
REDMABREAIINESENRE
NE¥ER  IRFREIMNEERE
BOorHAEHRBE - ELMEET  E
FRSEEEBNNEERLITR
BE5%3k 5B T ETH5%  Biig B a8
BB RN A IE I RZTRA -
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40. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (coNTINUED)

(b) Financial risk management objectives
and policies (Continued)

Market risk (Continued|

(i)

(ii)

Currency risk (Continued)

40. €@ T A

*
=

E

b) BIFEMREEBERBE @

™ 15 [ Bz (&)

(i)

us$
HK$

E
AT

¥Rk (E)
Decrease
in post-tax profit
Bt 18 2 AR 2

2020 2019
—E-2E —T-hF
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR¥T T ARBET T
(14,664) (14,650)

In the opinion of the Direcfors, the sensitivity analysis
above is unrepresentative of the inherent currency risk
as the year end exposure does not reflect the

exposure during the year.

Interest rate risk

The Group is mainly exposed fo cash flow interest
rafe risk in relation fo variable-tate bank balances for
the year ended 31 December 2020 and 2019 and
a variabletate bank borrowing carrying prevailing
inferest rates at LPR (see Note 29) for the year ended
31 December 2020 and 2019. In addition, the
Group was also exposed fo fair value interest rate risk
in relafion to fixed-rate bank borrowings, other
borrowings, bonds payable, lease liabilities, amounts
due to non-controlling shareholders of a subsidiary,
cerfain frade receivables and pledged bank deposits
as at 31 December 2020 and 2019

The Group currently does not have an interest rate
hedging policy. However, the management monifors
interest rate exposure and  will consider hedging
significant inferest rate exposure should the need

arise.

(ii)

EERRLABRESTL TR
REEERRR REZFRERIL
TR 2 F R

F 2= [ bz
HE_Z-_ZEFR-_ZT-NF+=
A=+—HLEFE " $§%II§7¥K
XEBEZHANRBITEBNIRES R
ENXEREBREE-_ZT_TFR=
T-NF+ZA=+—BLEFEMH
HRITHERE R EEFHF X
BITEE (RMFE29) o ot R=F
—EERZE-NEF+ZA=+—
H  AEBTEZEREEMERIT
BE -HMEE EBMNES HE
& - AT — BB R B JE 5 AR AR 3R 3K
B ETEKERREEFRITER
A FERNEER -

AEERKIEREZHPEREK A
- EREERNERR  AERE
ERZREMEANMNKER -
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40. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (coNTINUED)

(b) Financial risk management objectives

and policies (Continued)

Market risk (Continued)

(ii) Interest rate risk (Continued)
In the opinion of the Directors, the reasonably possible
change in interest rates for bank balances and the
variablerate bank borrowing is insignificant. No

sensifivity analysis is presented.

Credit risk and impairment assessment

Credit risk refers to the risk that the Group's counterparties
default on their contractual obligations resulting in financial
losses to the Group. The Group's credit risk is primarily
aftributable to frade receivables and confract assets.
Management has a credit policy in place and the exposure
fo credit risk is monifored on an ongoing basis. Credit
evaluations are performed on all customers requiring credit
over a cerfain amount. In view of the history of business
dealings with the customers and the collection hisfory of the
receivables due from them, management believes that there
is no material credit risk inherent in the Group's outstanding
receivable balance due from these customers. Management
makes periodic assessment on the recoverability of the frade
receivables and confract assefs based on historical payment
records, the length of the overdue period, the financial
strength of the debtors and whether there is any dispute with
the debtors. In addition, the Group performs impairment
assessment under ECL model upon application of IFRS 9
(2019: incurred loss model) on trade receivables and
confract assets individually or based on provision matrix. In
this regard, the management considers that the Group's

credit risk is significantly reduced.

The Group's concentration of credit risk by geographical
locations is mainly in PRC, which accounted for 100% (31
December 2019: 100%) of the total trade receivables and

contract assets as at 31 December 2020.

The Group has concentration of credit risk as 11% (31
December 2019: 11%) and 38% (31 December 2019:
37%) of the tofal trade receivables was due from the
Group's largest customer and the five largest customers

respectively.

FPEIZRRIZEREBRAE

e, W i S e S S iy, iy, iy, iy, W 8
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40. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (coNTINUED)

(b) Financial risk management objectives

and policies (Continued)

Credit risk and impairment assessment
(Continued)

The largest customer is cafegorised as a creditimpaired
customer, and the remaining four customers of the five

largest customers are categorised as doubtful customers.

The Group's infernal credit risk grading assessment

comprises the following categories:

Internal
credit rating Description

REEEFR B

(b)

40. €@ T B )

BREEREERZERBEE @

1= & & B B Rk B 5F 1 (80

RAEFPHUGRREERERR, MAKX
EFHESANEEFATREATRE
=1
FEENANLEERBRTIRBEATH
K

Trade receivables/contract assets

YR ERNEE

Lifetime ECL — not creditimpaired

Low risk The counterparty has a low risk of default and does not have
any pastdue amounts

15 /2 B HFHEONREBRERE - B3 EEA 8K

Waich list Debitor frequently repays after due dates but usually settle
after due date

z2hzs BEBAREEIHARER EBFSEINHBARER

Doubitful There have been significant increases in credit risk since initial
recognifion through information developed internally or
external resources

] & RIBEREBE K NS E IR B EE E R B 718 5 R AR
PNzl

Loss There is evidence indicating the asset is creditimpaired

g ERBETNEECRLEGERE

Write-off There is evidence indicating that the debtor is in severe financial
difficully and the Group has no realistic prospect of recovery

i BREBRRE f%/\ﬁiﬁijiﬁﬂ“@%ﬁ BEXREEYER

AR B KT

EHEMEEERE - RELEEERE
Lifetime ECL — not creditimpaired
THEHEERE - ABELEEERE

Lifetime ECL — not creditimpaired

2HEHEERE - RELEERE

Lifetime ECL - creditimpaired
2HREMEERE - ZEEERE

Amount is written off

1 55 7K




200 China Dredging Environment Protection Holdings Limited FEFRBRIERAER AT

Notes to the Consolidated
Financial Statements (Continued)

A MR RME®

For the year ended 31 December 2020 HZE T -_TF+ _A=+—HIEFE

W\/W/\/W—/\
s N, N, N, N, N N N i, N min, i, g, i e

40. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (CONTINUED) 40. @ T A )
(b) Financial risk management objectives (b) B EEEEZERBER @
and policies (Continued)
Credit risk and impairment assessment = & & B & B 571 (@)
(Continued)
The following fable provides information about the Group's TRV ASEEBRREKEREERR K
exposure fo credit risk and ECLs for trade receivables: FEHEEEBEENAEBER

Gross Net
Expected carrying Loss carrying
loss rate amount allowance amount

RHEEE RESHAE BiREERE RESHEFE
% RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
2020 —E-TF % ARBTR ARBTRT AR®BT=R

Types of customers EFER

Credit impaired customers =& HEZEF
Past due for more than 180 days #1 HAf8 18 180K

but less than 365 days BAFE| 365K 24.79% 5,598 1,387 4,211
Past due for more than 1 year BERE ] F 66.94% 32,923 22,039 10,884
Past due for more than 2 years 71 HAiB B 24 71.15% 93,187 66,304 26,883
Past due for more than 3 years #2818 3 F 93.24% 720,765 672,066 48,699

852,473 761,796 90,677
Watch list customers BrEF
Neither past due nor impaired B 7 781 8 75 & R (B 0.20% 47,308 94 47,214
Past due for less than 30 days  #EEIFE| 30K 0.20% 19,961 40 19,921
Past due for more than 30 days  # #A#B B 30K

but less than 90 days BEARE|90X 0.29% 8,705 25 8,680
Past due for more than 90 days  #1 HB B 0K

but less than 180 days BRE 180K 0.42% 7,158 30 7,128
Past due for more than 180 days 71 #A i i 180K

but less than 365 days BREIZ65K 0.70% 33,839 237 33,602
Past due for more than 1 year 1 EARIE 1 24.76% 74,834 18,528 56,306

191,805 18,954 172,851
Doubtful customers RERs
Neither past due nor impaired % & 31 B 7R K Ik (E 0.37% 6,034 22 6,012
Past due for less than 30 days  #EEI R E| 30K N/A ~EH - - -
Past due for more than 30 days % #8330k

but less than 90 days BRE90K 0.79% 210 2 208
Past due for more than 90 days i1 #i#B B 90 X

but less than 180 days BAE180K 1.43% 3,566 51 3,515
Past due for more than 180 days i #A i 3B 180K

but less than 365 days BREI365K 2.73% 18,975 519 18,456
Past due for more than 1 year  #1EAiBIB 1 & 8.64% 40,839 3,527 37,312
Past due for more than 2 years 41 BB 4B 2 & 23.87% 137,441 32,812 104,629
Past due for more than 3 years  #1 #3818 3 F 83.38% 381,908 318,417 63,491

588,973 355,350 233,623
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40. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (CONTINUED) 40. =@ T B )
(b) Financial risk management objectives (b) BT EEEEZERBUER @

and policies (Continued)
Credit risk and impairment assessment & & B B & R {8 57 1 (80
(Continued)
The following table provides information about the Group's TREIR_ZE_FTFF+-_A=+—HA
exposure fo credif risk and ECLs for contract assefs as at 31 SEERANEERERBRLBHEER
December 2020: EHAEBER

Gross Net
Expected carrying Loss carrying
loss rate amount allowance amount

RHEBEER RESHEAE BEEE RESHETE
% RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
2020 —E-EF % AR®TRx AR%®TR AR%¥TxR

Doubtful customers AREEF
Neither past due nor impaired  BE < #81 HA 71 KR 5L (B 1.65% 25,466 419 25,047
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40. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (CONTINUED) 40. @ T A )
(b) Financial risk management objectives (b) A EEEE B ZERBE@®m
and policies (Continued)
Credit risk and impairment assessment 1= & B b & R {8 57 1 (80
(Continued)
The following fable provides information about the Group's TRV ASEEREKREREERR K
exposure to credit risk and ECLs for trade receivables: JEHEEERBNERER
Gross Net
Expected carrying Loss carrying
loss rate amount allowance amount
EHEEX REefReE BiERE FEefEE
% RMB’'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
2019 —EB-hE % ARETT ARETRIT AR®TR
Types of customers EEER

Credit impaired customers E&HEEF
Past due for more than 180 days #1 #ii38 180K%

but less than 365 days BARE| 365K 15.20% 18,679 2,838 15,841
Past due for more than 1 year BEARRE F 54.27% 93,187 50,576 42,611
Past due for more than 2 years 71 HAiB B 24 59.56% 99,918 59,515 40,403
Past due for more than 3 years 71 HA iR 8 3 & 81.02% 676,241 547 874 128,367

888,025 660,803 227,222
Watch list customers BEEF
Neither past due nor impaired B & #1 5 78 K R (B 0.10% 41,070 42 41,028
Past due for less than 30 days  # #~ &I 30K 0.13% 46,078 58 46,020
Past due for more than 30 days  # #f#B B 30K

but less than 90 days B E|I90K 0.27% 11,040 30 11,010
Past due for more than 90 days  #1 #i B B 90 X

but less than 180 days BARE180K 0.52% 84,716 445 84,271
Past due for more than 180 days 71 #A i i 180 K

but less than 365 days BRI 365K 0.85% 8,295 71 8,224
Past due for more than 1 year — #ERiBIE 1 & 23.18% 57,619 13,340 44,279

248,818 13,986 234,832
Doubtful customers AREE
Neither past due nor impaired B & #1 5 78 K R (B 1.73% 19,888 343 19,545
Past due for less than 30 days  #EA AR E| 30K 2.49% 4,778 119 4,659
Past due for more than 30 days B B 1@ 30K

but less than 90 days BRE|IQ0K 4.94% 5,225 258 4,967
Past due for more than 90 days 71 HAiB 8O0 &

but less than 180 days BAF180K 6.20% 33,430 2,075 31,355
Past due for more than 180 days 71 A8 i 180K

but less than 365 days BRE|365K 9.30% 29,700 2,761 26,939
Past due for more than 1 year WEHEEF 11.66% 145,152 16,927 128,225
Past due for more than 2 years 1 BB 4B 2 & 42.54% 55,728 23,704 32,024
Past due for more than 3 years 781 HAiB 8 3 79.82% 335,968 268,177 67,791

629,869 314,364 315,505
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40. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (CONTINUED) 40. €@ T A @)

(b) Financial risk management objectives (b)
and policies (Continued)

Credit risk and impairment assessment
(Continued)

The following fable provides information about the Group's
exposure to credit risk and ECLs for confract assets as at 31
December 2019

Expected
loss rate

BREEREERZERBEE @

1= & & B B Rk B 5F 1 (80

TEMIR-F-NE+=-A=+—8%
EEEGRANEECERRRENEER
B ERA R

Gross Net
carrying Loss carrying
amount allowance amount

EHEERX RHREE BREEE HREBFE

% RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB’'0O00
2019 —E-NEF % AR®ETT ARETT ARETTT
Doubtful customers AREF
Neither past due nor impaired B & #1 Hi 75 K R (B 1.51% 11,791 178 11,613

For frade receivables and contract assets, the Group has
applied the simplified approach in HKFRS 9 to measure the
loss allowance at lifeime ECL. Except for debtors with
significant outstanding  balances or creditimpaired, the
Group determines the expected credit losses on these items

by using a provision mairix.

In making the assessment on expected loss rates, the Group
considers both quantitative and qualitative information that is
reasonable and supportable, including hisforical experience
and forward-looking information that is available without
undue cost or effort. Forward-looking information considered
includes the future prospects of the industries in which the
Group's debtors operate, obtained from economic expert
reports, financial analysts, governmental bodies, relevant
thinktanks and other similar organisations, as well as
considerafion of various exfernal sources of actual and
forecast economic information that relate o the Group's core
operations. The grouping is regularly reviewed by
management to ensure relevant information about specific
debitors is updated.

HERUKERRGNEE AEECER
MG HREERFEOTR AN T35 A
EHEBEEBERTEBERERE - RRE
BREBBARKEBRLEEFERENETA
o AEEEERBEREEEEEZSERE
WIRMEEEE -

EETHAHBEXFGLE A5E8EE
EEATNXENEEREMEN  BRE
FNETBENRALEIMASNESL
KE R ATE LB R o 7B R H) BT IE 1E &
BREKEERRS MBI BF
MR MEREE T R H R AR AR AN
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40. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (coNTINUED)

(b) Financial risk management objectives

and policies (Continued)

Credit risk and impairment assessment
(Continued)

Other receivables and prepayments

The Group measures the loss allowance equal fo 12m ECL
for other receivables. For those balances expected fo have
significant increase in credit risk since initial recognition, the
Group apply lifefime ECL based on aging for classes with
difference credit risk characteristics and exposures. As at 31
December 2020, included in other receivables and
prepayments included counter parties who were in financial
difficulties and the management of the Group considers the
probability of default is significant for those balances. For
the remaining non frade nature balances, management of
the Group considers the probability of default by assessing
the counterparties’ financial background and creditability
and accordingly a total of RMB30,955,000 (2019:
RMB28,186,000] impairment was provided as at 31
December 2020.

Bank balances and cash

Credit risk on bank balances is limited because the
counterparties are reputable banks with high credit ratings
assigned by international credit agencies. The Group has

no other significant concentration of credit risk.
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40. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (coNTINUED)

(b) Financial risk management objectives

and policies (Continued)

Credit risk and impairment assessment
(Continued)

Summary

Movement in the loss allowance account in respect of trade
receivables, contract assets and other receivables in lifetime

ECL during the year is as follows:

B i, S D S S e S e D i e

40. €@ T A @)
b) BIFEMREEBERBE @

1= & & B B Rk B 5F 1 (80

%

REE FEXHAREEERNEUE
B B HBE R H A RO 5 1R R TR
mEBHMT

2020 2019
= —E-NF
RMB’000 RMB'000
ARBT T AR T T
Balance af 1 January n— A — H&% 1,017,517 683,832
Impairment loss recognised during the year FAEREREEE
— Trade receivables — EURER = 163,577 308,306
— Contract assets —BHEE 241 178
— Other receivables and prepayments — E fth 8 R R TR R 6,636 28,186
Reversal of provision during the year FRNEFEREE
— Trade receivables — BUAR R (16,630) (112)
— Confract assets —BREE - (2,873)
— Other receivables and prepayments — Hith jE W R R FE AR (3,868) =
Balance at 31 December RT+-_A=1+—Ba&E 1,167,473 1,017,517
Liquidity risk RBETER

The Group's policy is to regularly monitor current and
expected liquidity requirements fo ensure that it maintains
sufficient cash reserves to meet its liquidity requirements in
the short and longer term. Having considered the factors
and circumstances set out in Note 2 fo the consolidated
financial statements, the Directors are satisfied that the
Group will have sufficient liquidity to meet its cash flows
requirements for the next twelve months from the end of the
reporting period.

The following tables detail the Group's contractual maturity
for its financial liabilities. The tables have been drawn up
based on the undiscounted cash flows of financial liabilities
based on the earliest dafes on which the Group can be
required fo pay.

AEEHNBRRASEHRERBERBEHROR
BELHH BRAKELEFTENRSH
BUARNEEHEBRENORDEEFR -
REBEAMBRRMEIABARRIE
NE BEEEMAEEREERARDE
EARMEEBREHRREF AR —EAN
RenEFFK-

TRANASESRABENSOBIHA -
FZRDIRBAEBEANRNRT B HIRR
TRAENARRRARSRER -
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40. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (CONTINUED) 40. @ T A )
(b) Financial risk management objectives b) MHEEREEBZERBE @
and policies (Continued)
Liquidify risk (Continued) REE SR E)
The tables include both inferest and principal cash flows. To ZERBEMNERAEEESRE - EFER
the extent that interest flows are floating rate, the EAFHFEMATRT  KMBEHEIAH
undiscounted amount is derived from prevailing interest rate WEEARMIRITHEEE -

af the end of the reporting date.

Liquidity and interest risk tables REBE S RFRER R

Weighted On
average demand/ Total
effective  less than 3 months 1year undiscounted Carrying
interest rate 3 months  to 1 year to 5 years cash flows  amount

mEFE  RER/ =f@A —F AEBRRE
ERAE SR=A E-F EnfE REAE RESE
RMB'000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
% ARBTR AREMTR AR®T:R ARBTT AR¥TR

At 31 December 2020 RZB-2F
+=g=+-8

Non-derivative financial liabilities FTETBER
Trade payables F& 5 BR 3K - 137,155 - - 137,155 137,155
Other payables Hib R - 168,854 - - 168,854 168,854
Amounts due to directors ENESNE - 44,855 - - 44,855 44,855
Amounts due to non-controlling B —FRHEBR A

interests of a subsidiary R E

— noninterest bearing — T EE - 2,257 - 42,028 44,285 44,285

— interest bearing at fixed rates — RETH XS 12.00 - - 21,683 21,683 19,359
Bank borrowings RITEE

— interests bearing at fixed rates -~ REEMRGE 6.20 126,440 173,184 - 299,624 293,400
Other borrowings Hife &

— noninterest bearing — A - 54,205 - 2,534 56,739 56,739

— interest bearing at fixed rates - REEMEFE  4.01-10.09 - 25,236 116,530 141,766 132,714
Bonds payable (Nofe 31) e &% (B2 31) 772 295,702 295,702 287,482
lease liabilities HERE 2.25-6.33 173 505 1,987 2,665 2,460

829,641 198,925 184,762 1,213,328 1,187,303
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40. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (cONTINUED) 40. €/ T B )
(b) Financial risk management objectives b) BIEEMEEERZERBE @)
and policies (Continued)
Liquidify risk (Continued) REE € R (®)
Liquidity and interest risk tables (Continued) RBESRFERBEK(E)
Weighted On
average demand/ Total
effective less than 3 months 1 year undiscounted Carrying
interest rafe 3 months folyear o2 years cash flows amount
mEFH RER/ =@A —% AURRE
ERFX SR=@A E-f EME nERE HEERE
% RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000

% ARBTT ARKTRT AR¥TT ARBTT ARKTE

At 31 December 2019 R-ZB-1%F
+=ZA=1+-H

Non-derivative financial liabilities HTLELBERE
Trade payables FEfTBR X — 152,140 — - 152,140 152,140
Other payables H {5 3K — 165,460 — - 165,460 165,460
Amounts due to directors ERNEEHE - 11,334 - - 11,334 11,334
Amounts due fo non-controlling T —EME AR

interests of a subsidiary EiRER IR

— noninterest bearing - R E - 3,060 - 42,028 45,088 45,088

— inferest bearing af fixed rates —RETHEEE 12 - - 29,652 29,652 26,474
Bank borrowings RITEE

— inferests bearing at fixed rates —REEMEFS 6.03 88,917 205,653 - 294,570 288,000

— inferests bearing at floating rafe  — RIF B F R 3 & 7.4 - - 9,465 9,465 9,000
Other borrowings Hitfg &

— noninterest bearing - i E — 54,090 - 2,535 56,625 56,625

— inferest bearing af fixed rates —RETHNEEE 11.58 — - 39,626 39,626 35,380
Bonds payable (Note 31) ENESR(HE3]) 12.30 286,804 — - 286,804 286,804
Lease liabilities HEBRE 5.56 338 1,014 887 2,239 2,132

762,143 206,667 124,193 1,093,003 1,078,437
(c) Fair value () DFE

The fair values of financial assets and financial liabilities are SRHEERSHABENATENBEAR
determined in accordance with generally accepted pricing FEERIEZBEOUBERESRES T FH
models based on discounted cash flow analysis using prices BEEITERTEISEREFRIELEZ A
or rates from observable current market fransactions as input. BIEMEBE -
The Directors consider that the carrying amounts of financial EERARBEKASERNESTBRE
assets and financial liabilities measured at amortised costs in HENSREERSRAENERSER
the consolidated financial statements approximate their fair HAFERE-

values.
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41. RECONCILIATION OF LIABILITIES ARISING 41.EmEZEmMELXEENEER
FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES

The table below details changes in the Group's liabiliies arising TRFHT AR &E MEEZHMELANBEESE
from financing activities, including both cash and non-cash B BIERSRIERSESH - BB FHHMEL
changes. liabilities arising from financing activities are those for EEARFESRESY(ABRBREREL NAE
which cash flows were, or future cash flows will be, classified in BHRARenERPEARETEMERE T
the Group's consolidated sfatement of cash flows as cash flows EMZEaE-

from financing activities.

Amounts
due to non-
Amounts  controlling

Bank Other Bonds Lease due to interest of
borrowings borrowings payable liabilities directors a subsidiary Total
FE A3 — R Bt
B4 BRARFEE
RITHE Hitifg & ENES HEEE BEERE REZERR st

RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARBFTT ARBTT ARBTT AR¥TRT ARETI ARBTT AREKT

At 1 January 2019 (restated) RZZE—NF

—A—B(&E57) 324,670 88,781 254,916 3,215 6,933 71,475 749 990
Financing cash flows MEBRERE (27,670) 3,224 (6,030) (1,330) 4,401 (1,209) (28,614)
Interest paid B FI 8 (18,986) (4,794) - — - (2,568) (26,348)
Inferest expenses FERX 18,986 4,794 32,714 153 = 3,864 60,511
New Lease entered (non-cash) BRI HAEGERE) = = - Q4 — — 94
Foreign exchange translation EXAECGERS)
(non-cash) — — 5,204 - — — 5,204
As at 1 January 2020 R-ZT-_ZF—HF—H 297,000 92,005 286,804 2,132 11,334 71,562 760,837
Financing cash flows RERERE [3,600) (15,078) [3,000) (1,203) 33,521 (6,999 3,641
Interest paid BRFIE (18,431) [3,591) = — — (3,315) [25,337)
Inferest expenses FERX 18,431 5,145 22,857 103 — 2,396 48,932
New lease entered (non-cash) BRI VHEEGERS) — — — 2,587 — — 2,587
Termination of a lease (noncash) & L& (EH ) - = = (1,159 = - (1,159)

Payable for construction cost of A AR K 5% 15 O B M K AN
the Vessel and the Equipment FEfT 578

(non-cash) (EE ) — 110,972 — — — — 110,972
Gain on modification of bonds & 5T & 1+ {8 % & Uk 25

payable (non-cash) GEBR &) - - (325) - - - (325)
Foreign exchange franslation ERRE(ERE)

[non-cash) - - (18,854) - - - (18,854)
At 31 December 2020 i

[ 44
|
A
ﬁ

o
[
T
m

293,400 189,453 287,482 2,460 44,855 63,644 881,294
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42. PARTICULARS OF PRINCIPAL
SUBSIDIARIES

Particulars of the Company's principal subsidiaries af the end of
the reporting period are as follows:

2. TENBAAFE

ARFARBERRNEIERBARFBET :

Country of operation Issued and fully
and date of paid ordinary share Attributable equity interest
incorporation/ capital/registered indirectly held
Name of subsidiary establishment capital by the Company Principal activities Form of company
EEEZR BRTR
ERARL/ BREERRE/ AAAHEER
WEAREE RIMBH ERER ML R E TEEH RAKR
2020 2019
SRSRE TR
Jiangsu Jioolong Salvage Harbour Engineering PRC RMB72,754,776 51% 51% Provision of marine hoisfing,  Limited liabilty
Company Limited* 22 July 1977 insallation and other
('fiangsu Jicolong’) engineering services
THEIETERBIRARAR(NTIHERE]) +8 ARB727547767 RESLRE ZERE BRAL
“nttELA=+=H TR
Jiangsu Xingyu Environment Profection Company ~ PRC RMBA514,200,000 100% 100% Provision of dredging services - Limited liability
Limited* 30 June 2015
THEFHARRERAR il AR1514,200,0007 RATRRS AREHE
“F-R¥RA=TH
Jiangsu Xiangyu Environment Protection Equipment  PRC US$75,000,000 100% 100%  Manufaciuring of dredging ~ Wholly-owned Foreign
Company Limited* 19 August 2013 machines enterprise
THEATREARBERAF e 75,000,000% 7t SUED RS NEBALE
“F-Z#)\AThA
Jiangsu Xingyu Holdings Group Limited™* PRC RMB39,315,800 notes ii nofes i Provision of dredging services  Limited liability
("PRC Operational Enfity") (nofes ] 13 July 2007
THETEREEERAR(TAELLEE]) 7H AR%39,315,8007 M & ii Mz RERARY AREE
(Hiiti) “ERLELAT=H
Jiangsu Xiangyu Port Constructing Project PRC US$80,000,000 100% 100% Provision of management  Wholly-owned foreign
Adminisiration Company Limited* 11 June 2010 senvices enterprise
[*Xiangyu PRC")
THEATRRIRERARAR(ATHE) #8 80,000,000% 7T REEERE WEBELE
“Z-Z£XA+-H
Jiangsu Xiangyu Woter Management Company ~ PRC U$$73,000,000 100% 100% Provision of dredgingand ~ Wholly-owned foreign
Limited* 3 August 2011 water management enterprise
services
THEATKBEARAH hE 73,000,000% 7t REMAIKBERRYE HBBELE
“Z——%)\R=H
Power Wealh Engineering Limited Hong Kong HK$100,000 100% 100%  Invesiment holding and Limited iability
3 July 2002 provision of dredging
consuliafion services
NEIRERAR B 100,000% 7t REARRREREAHENA BRAL

“ZT-4tA=H

k%
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42. PARTICULARS OF PRINCIPAL

SUBSIDIARIES (cONTINUED)

42. T EMBE 2 AIF1E @)

Country of operation Issued and fully
and date of paid ordinary share Attributable equity interest
incorporation/ capital/registered indirectly held
Name of subsidiary establishment capital by the Company Principal activities Form of company
LEEARK BRTR
HRAL/ BREBRRE/ ARAHERE
WELR R RIMBH EMEX I RE TEEH RAKA
2020 2019
=
Jiangsu Fengyu Property Development Company ~ PRC RMB66,000,000 100% 100% Property development and  Limited liability
Limited* 4 December 2013 invesiment
THETERERAT mE AR 66,000,000 NEERRRE ARER
“F-=#t_AWA
Yancheng Juranzhijia Home Building Material PRC RMB1,000,000 100% 100%  Property management Limited ficbility
Commercial Management Limited* 15 June 2016
BRENLFRERNBRXEEARAR  $H AE#1,000,0007 NEER ARAE
“EZ-RERATEA
Jiangsu Xingyu Commerce Company Limited* PRC RMB10,000,000 100% 100% Inactive Limited liability
16 Apil 2014
THETHBEARLT il AR #10,000,0007T TEE AREHE
ZZ-mEMATRA
Huaian Shi Xiangyu Technology Microfinance PRC US$20,000,000 80% 80% lending and venture capital  Limited liability
Limited* 11 September 2015 financing business in the
fechnology sector
EZTATHRNBERER AT il 20,000,000% 7 HEATXEERARELR BRER
ZZ-IEAAT-R BEXEH
Jiangsu Xiangyu Environmental Protection Indusiry ~ PRC US$50,000,000 100% 100%  Inactive Limited liability
Development Limited* 27 August 2015
THEATRRERERARAA ME 50,000,000% 7t TER ARER
“F-RENAZT LR
Jiangsu lifv Infrastructure Consfruction Company — PRC US$49,980,000 100% 100% Inactive Limited ficbility
Limited* 25 June 2012
IHNEERERBRAR hE 49,980,000% 1t kB AREE
ZE-ZERAZTHA
Jiangsu longyang Harbour Engineering Company ~ PRC RMB10,000,000 51% N/A Provision of marine hoisting  Limited liability
Limited* 18 May 2020 and installation
THEAMBIRERAR ik AR #10,000,0007T TER REUUBLAERZE  ARER

“Z-TERATNA

The above fable lists the subsidiaries of the Group which, in the

opinion of the Directors, principally affected the results or assets of

the Group. To give defails of other subsidiaries would, in the

opinion of the Direcfors, result in particulars of excessive length.

*

for identification only

LREINEESRAUAKEAXREXNEEFER
FENAEENBRAR -EERA WHIEAM
MEBARMNFEE<REER TR -

* XAl
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42. PARTICULARS OF PRINCIPAL
SUBSIDIARIES (cONTINUED)

Notes:

(i

(i)

None of the subsidiaries had any debt securities outstanding af the
end of the reporting period, or af any time during the year.

Consolidated structured entity

PRC laws and regulations prohibit or restrict foreign investors from
owning more than 50% equity interest in any enterprise which owns
vessels for conducting dredging business.

On 19 April 2011, Xiangyu PRC, the PRC Operational Entity and
its respective equity participants, being Mr. Liu and Ms. Zhou
enfered info a series of agreements (the “Confractual Arangements”).
The PRC Operational Entity is engaged in the provision of dredging
services of the Group.

Key provisions of the Contractual Arrangements are as follows:
Option Agreement

Xiangyu PRC, PRC Operational Entity, Mr. Liv and Ms. Zhou entered
info an exclusive option agreement (“Option Agreement”] whereby
Mr. liv and Ms. Zhou have irrevocably granted Xiangyu PRC an
opfion to acquire, directly or through one or more nominees, the
entire equity interest held by Mr. Lliu and Ms. Zhou in PRC
Operational Entity at a price (“Acquisition Cost”) equivalent to the
fair market value of such equity inferest or, where applicable, the
amount as permitted by the applicable PRC laws. The Acquisition
Cost, when received, will be contributed by Mr. Liv and Ms. Zhou
to Xiangyu PRC as capital surplus. Subject to the compliance with
the PRC laws, Xiangyu PRC may exercise the option af any fime, in
respect of all or part of the equity interest of PRC Operational Entity
and in any manner af its sole discretion.

Pursuant fo the Option Agreement, each of PRC Operational Entity,
M:r. Liu and/or Ms. Zhou has given undertakings that it shall perform
certain acts, or refrain from performing certain other acts unless with
the prior written consent of Xiangyu PRC, including but not limited 1o
the below matters:

(a) that PRC Operational Entity shall not alter its constitutional
documents or ifs registered capital;

[b)  that any of PRC Operational Entity, Mr. Liu and/or Ms. Zhou
shall not incur any indebtedness or guarantee (other than
those incurred in the ordinary course of business and
disclosed to and approved by Xiangyu PRC in advancel;

42. T EMBE 2 AIF1E @)

e
=]

et

(i

(i)

RIRERR - R FRERESRE - HENE QAR
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42. PARTICULARS OF PRINCIPAL
SUBSIDIARIES (cONTINUED)

Notes: (Continued)

(i)

Consolidated structured entity (Continued)

Option Agreement (Continued)

c)

(d)

le)

(f

(g)

(h)

that PRC Operational Enfity shall not provide any loan or
guarantee fo any third parties;

that PRC Operational Entity shall not dispose of or create
encumbrances over any part of its assets, business or revenue
and that Mr. Liu and Ms. Zhou shall not dispose of or create
encumbrances over the equity interest held by them in PRC
Operational Entity, except the security created under the
Equity Pledge Agreement (as defined in (i) below);

that PRC Operational Entity shall not enter into any material
contracts over certain amount other than those in its ordinary
course of business and disclosed fo and approved by
Xiangyu PRC in advance;

that PRC Operational Entity shall not distribute any dividend
(including any undistributed attributable profit payable to the
entity's shareholders prior to the Option Agreement becoming
effective) to its shareholders and that Mr. Liv and Ms. Zhou
undertake that such undistributed profit shall be refained in
PRC Operational Enfity as its capital and/or reserved fund
and shall give up and assign or transfer to Xiangyu PRC any
dividend declared and distributed thereafter and payable to
them by virtue of their holding of the equity interest in PRC
Operational Entity;

that PRC Operational Entity shall not make investment or
engage in any merger or acquisition transactions; and

that at the request of Xiangyu PRC, Mr. Liu and Ms. Zhou
shall appoint such persons nominated by Xiangyu PRC to act
as the Direcfors, supervisors and senior management
members of PRC Operational Entity.

The Option Agreement became effective on 19 April 2011 and will

expire on the date on which all the equity inferests held by Mr. Liu

and Ms. Zhou, being directors of the Company, in PRC Operational

Entity are transferred to Xiangyu PRC and/or its nomineel(s).

FPEIZRRIZEREBRAE

2. T EM B QA AIFE @

et
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le)
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42. PARTICULARS OF PRINCIPAL
SUBSIDIARIES (coNTINUED)

Notes: (Continued)

(i)

Consolidated structured entity (Continued)
Proxy Agreement

Xiangyu PRC, PRC Operational Entity, Mr. Liu and Ms. Zhou entered
info a proxy agreement (“Proxy Agreement’] pursuant to which Mr.
Liv and Ms. Zhou have unconditionally and irrevocably undertaken
to authorise such person(s) as designated by Xiangyu PRC (being
PRC citizens] to exercise the shareholders’ rights in relation to
appointment of proxy and exercise of vofing rights in PRC
Operational Entity under the articles of association of PRC
Operational Entity and the applicable PRC laws. Such shareholders’
rights include but not limited fo (i) calling and attending the
shareholders’ meetings of PRC Operational Entity; (i) exercising the
voting rights on all matters requiring the consideration and approval
of shareholders and those pursuant fo articles of association of PRC
Operational Entity.

Before Xiangyu PRC acquires the entire equity inferests in PRC
Operational Entity contemplated under the Option Agreement,
Xiangyu PRC can exercise the voting rights of shareholders of PRC
Operational Entity.

The term of the Proxy Agreement commenced on 19 April 2011
and will expire on 18 April 2026, and will be renewable at the
election of Xiangyu PRC for successive terms of 10 years each until
termination by Xiangyu PRC with a 30-day prior notice to PRC
Operational Entity.

Composite Services Agreement

Xiangyu PRC and PRC Operational Entity enfered into an exclusive
composite services agreement (“Composite Services Agreement”)
pursuant fo which PRC Operational Entity will exclusively engage
Xiangyu PRC fo provide consultation and other ancillary services in
enterprise management and consuliancy services, dredging project
management and consultancy services.

In consideration of the provision of the aforementioned services by
Xiangyu PRC, PRC Operational Entity agrees to pay to Xiangyu PRC
fees on an annual basis in arrears. Fees payable to Xiangyu PRC by
PRC Operational Entity will be equivalent fo the total audited
revenue less all the related cosfs, expenses, faxes and sfatufory
reserve of PRC Operational Entity. Xiangyu PRC reserves the right fo
identify the ifems of expenses to be included as reloted expenses
when calculating the fees payable by PRC Operational Entity and is
enfifled to adjust the fee payable by PRC Operational Entity anytime
based on the volume of service provided.
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42. PARTICULARS OF PRINCIPAL
SUBSIDIARIES (cONTINUED)

Notes: (Continued)

(i)

Consolidated structured entity (Continued)
Composite Services Agreement (Continued)

Pursuant to the Composite Services Agreement, PRC Operational
Entity shall not without the prior written consent of Xiangyu PRC to
dispose of or pledge its material assefs, operation rights and/or
business; alfer ifs registered capital; alter its scope of business;
declare dividends; and/or remove any of its Directors and senior
management members. Pursuant to the Composite Services
Agreement, Xiangyu PRC is required fo pay to PRC Operational
Entity a surety amount of not less than HK$22,276,000 for the
performance of its services provided to PRC Operational Entity under
the Composite Services Agreement. As a security for the due
payment of the consultation service fees and repayment of the surety
money by PRC Operational Enfity to Xiangyu PRC under the
Composite Services Agreement, PRC Operational Entity has agreed
fo pledge its inferest in the three vessels owned or (as the case may
be) jointly-owned by it to Xiangyu PRC.

The ferm of the Composite Services Agreement commenced from 19
April 2011, and will expire on 18 April 2026, which will be
renewable at the request of Xiangyu PRC for successive ferms of 10
years each until termination by Xiangyu PRC with a 30-day prior
written notice fo PRC Operational Entity.

Equity Pledge Agreement

Xiangyu PRC, PRC Operational Entity, Mr. Liu and Ms. Zhou entered
into an equity pledge agreement (“Equity Pledge Agreement’),
pursuant to which Mr. Liv and Ms. Zhou granted a continuing first
priority security inferests over their respective equity interests in PRC
Operational Entity to Xiangyu PRC for guaranteeing the performance
of the Composite Services Agreement, the Option Agreement and
the Proxy Agreement. Mr. Liu and Ms. Zhou are responsible to
record the pledge of equity into the shareholders’ register on the
effective date of the Equity Pledge Agreement. PRC Operational
Entity, Mr. Lliv and Ms. Zhou are also responsible fo register the
pledge of equity in the State Administration for Industry and
Commerce 10 days affer the effective date of the Equity Pledge
Agreement.
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42. PARTICULARS OF PRINCIPAL
SUBSIDIARIES (coNTINUED)

Notes: (Continued)

(i)

Consolidated structured entity (Continued)
Equity Pledge Agreement (Continued)

Pursuant to the Equity Pledge Agreement, without the prior written
consent of Xiangyu PRC, PRC Operational Entity shall not alter its
current shareholding sfructure and/or its nature or scope of business,
Mr. liv and Ms. Zhou shall not allow PRC Operational Entity to
transfer or dispose of its assets or pledge or transfer their respective
equity interests in PRC Operational Entity in favor of or to other third
parties. Xiangyu PRC is entitled fo receive all dividends derived from
the pledged equity interests. Xiangyu PRC is enfifled to demand
repayment of the secured indebtedness and/or fo exercise ifs rights
to sell the pledged equity interests on occurrence of certain events of
default including but not limited to non-performance or breach of any
of the Composite Services Agreement, the Option Agreement and
the Proxy Agreement; or failure fo repay other debts when due by
PRC Operational Entity, Mr. Liu or Ms. Zhou (as the case may be).

The Equity Pledge Agreement became effective from the date of ifs
execution and shall terminate upon performance of all obligations
under the Composite Services Agreement, the Option Agreement
and the Proxy Agreement in full.

Vessel Pledge Agreements

PRC Operational Entity and Xiangyu PRC have entered into three
vessel pledge agreements ("Vessel Pledge Agreements’) dated 19
April 2011, pursuant fo which PRC Operational Entity has pledged
in favor of Xiangyu PRC (i) ifs entire interest in the dredger “Zhuayang
No. 1017 (ii) its 50% interest in the dredger “Kaijin No. 1" and {iii)
its 50% interest in the dredger “Kaijin No. 3" to Xiangyu PRC, as
security for the due payment of the consultation service fees and
repayment of the surety money (as well as related interest and
expenses, efc.) then owing by PRC Operational Entity fo Xiangyu
PRC under the Composite Services Agreement.

Pursuant to the Vessel Pledge Agreements, without the prior written
consent of Xiangyu PRC, PRC Operational Entity shall not pledge or
dispose of ifs inferests in the pledged vessels or any part thereof.
Xiangyu PRC is enfifled to exercise ifs rights to sell the pledged
vessels on occurrence of certain events of default, including but not
limited to the non-payment of the secured indebtedness or non-
performance of the Composite Services Agreement.
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42. PARTICULARS OF PRINCIPAL
SUBSIDIARIES (cONTINUED)

Notes: (Continued)

(i)

Consolidated structured entity (Continued)
Vessel Pledge Agreements (Continued)

The Vessel Pledge Agreements became effective from the date of its
execution and shall terminate upon payment or repayment of the
consultation service fees, surety money and all other related
expenses under the Composite Services Agreement.

The Group has a contractual commitment to provide financial
assistance fo the PRC Operational Entity. However, due to the
strategic importance of it to the Group, the Directors intended fo
provide financing to the PRC Operational Enfity to support the
working capital requirements. As at 31 December 2020, the bank
borrowings of the PRC Operational Enfity of RMB192,400,000
(2019: RMB 195,000,000 are secured by pledge of assets jointly
owned by the PRC Operational Entity and the Group, corporate
guarantee by the Company and personal guarantees provided by
Mr. Liu and Ms. Zhou, the Directors of the Company. Unutilised
secured bank facilities amounted fo approximately RMB6,000,000
(2019: RMB18,000,000).

For the year ended 31 December 2020, the amount of revenue and
assefs subject to the Contractual Arrangements accounted for 97%
(2019: 98%) and 66.1% (2019: 63.2%) of the Group's fotal
revenue and assefs respectively.

The Directors, are of the view that the terms of the Contractual
Arrangements have in substance enabled Xiangyu PRC to have
power over the PRC Operational Entity, rights o variable refurns
from its involvement with the PRC Operational Entity, and has the
ability to use its power fo affect its returns, despite the absence of
formal legal equity interest held by the Group therein. Accordingly,
PRC Operational Entity is accounted for as a consolidated structured
entity as a subsidiary of the Company.
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42. PARTICULARS OF PRINCIPAL
SUBSIDIARIES (CONTINUED)

Notes: (Continued)
[ij  Consolidated structured entity (Continued)
Vessel Pledge Agreements (Continued)

The following summarised financial information in respect of PRC
Operational Entity represents amounts before intragroup eliminations.
PRC Operational Entity has a material subsidiary — Jiangsu Jiaolong
and the summarised financial information of Jiangsu Jiaolong is sef
out in Nofe 43 and is not included in the financial information
below.

42. T EM B D AIF1E @

et - (&)
i) AtEBEER
A A A 9 1 5 ()

TXEGR P REERBHBENBEE AR
EHBE TRLEERER HEZMNE
RNAE — TERE MR THRENEER
ORI L4330 - B RMAZE T 58 %5 & #
H o

2020 2019

—E-EF “E-hEF

RMB’000 RMB'000

ARBT T AREFT

Current assets RBEE 230,484 30,879
Non-current assets IEREEE 1,168,665 1,447,727
Current liabilities mBAE (853,299) [565,340)
Equity atfributable fo owners of the Company RABHER AEIEER 545,850 913,266
Revenue U z& 58,773 195,157
Expense CEa (422,798) (462,817)
Loss for the year and total expense for the year ERNEBBRREARTEE (364,025) (267,660)

43. SUBSIDIARY WITH MATERIAL NON-
CONTROLLING INTERESTS

The Group held 51% equity inferest in Jiangsu Jiaolong at 31
December 2020 and 2019.

Proportion of ownership interests

Name of Place of establishment and and voting rights held by
subsidiary principal place of business non- controlling interest
WEAREE HERRUBERTIZEXHE FERESKENBAEEERREEMLA
31.12.2020 31.12.2019
it Jud 33 2 NE
tZA=t-H +ZR=1-H
Jiangsu Jicolong ~ PRC 49% 49%
L& R il

PBEEEXRFEREZVHE

NI

AEER-_BE_ZEFE_FT—NAF+=_A=+
—BREAEIHRES I SRR -

(Loss)/profit allocated to Accumulated
non-controlling interest non-controlling interest
FREFERERN (FB)/ER Rt ERER
31.12.2020 31.12.2019 31.12.2020 31.12.2019
—B-%F “E-hF bt Jut 33 “T-hF
UGl T A=1-E RVl +-A=t-H

(10,781)

(4,442) 129,731 146,305
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43. SUBSIDIARY WITH MATERIAL NON- BEEERFERESZNMNE R

CONTROLLING INTERESTS (cONTINUED)

Summarised financial information in respect of Jiangsu Jicolong

which has material non-controlling interest is set out below. The

summarised financial information below represents amounts before

intragroup eliminations:

a) (&)

BAEBRFEREGN TIHRENTBER G
MM e TXMANTBEERN BEEANEH
GIE &I

2020 2019
—R_o%F —T-NF
RMB’000 RMB'000
ARBT T AR T T
Current assets e A E 262,875 297,784
Non-current assets EMBEE 270,312 274,621
Current liabilities wREBEE (166,094) (149,124)
Non-current liabilities FRBAa’E (93,488) (115,852)
Equity attributable to owners of the Company RRNRER ARML#ER 143,874 161,124
Non-controlling interests JEZ R = 129,731 146,305
Revenue W25 254,242 206,848
Expense 53 (288,066) (315,008)
Loss for the year and tofal comprehensive expense for FABEBRFRNEZARSEHE
the year (33,824) (18,160)
loss and fotal comprehensive expense attributable o RAFHEEABRGEERAR
the owners of the Company el (17,250) (?,262)
loss and fotal comprehensive expense attributable o EEREREGERR
the non-controlling inferests gxlEh (16,574) (8,898)
Loss and total comprehensive expense for the year FREEREZERS A% (33,824) (18,160)
Dividend paid to non-controlling interests AT FIEERE R AR E (5,793) (4,4506)
Net cash inflow from operating activities CETEHELENRSRAFRE 48,480 1,717
Net cash outflow from investing activities WEEHESANR S RHE ERA (21,673) (18,367)
Net cash outflow from financing activities MEEHELAWNE SR H FE (26,715) (10,0506]
Net cash outflow RemHFE (5,701) (31,162)
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44. SHARE-BASED PAYMENT TRANSACTION 4. BPXNARF

Pursuant fo the written resolution of the shareholders of the
Company dated 24 May 2011, the share option scheme (the
"Scheme”) was approved and adopted. The Scheme was
established for the purpose of providing incentives or rewards for
the confribution of Directors and eligible persons. The Scheme will
remain in force for a period of ten years from adoption of the
Scheme. The Scheme will expire on 23 May 2021.

Movements of share options outstanding and their weighted
average exercise prices are as follows:

BREAPR T ——FHAA_tTHBENARE
BEREBERZR B S ([FH81)) EiER
Ry RUABEEREETRAEBALINE
BT RRER A ERRNEFTTF
NRERER -FEBER_T=_—FREA=-+=
B & e

RITEHEREREMETHTEBENZES M
T

2020 2019
= —TNF
Weighted average Weighted average
exercise price Number of exercise price Number of
per share share options per share share options
(=1 P hn e
FHTEE BREHE FHITEE BRERAE
HK$ HK$
T BT
Exercisable at beginning ~ F 1 AJ {71 N/A - 0.131 85,560,000
of the year 38 A
Granfed [k qun 0.1 17,000,000 N/A —
&R
Exercised B17fE N/A - 0.131 (8,702,000)
TiE A
Lapsed B R N/A - 0.131 (76,858,000)
TEA
0.1 17,000,000 N/A =
58 R

During the year ended 31 December 2020, 17,000,000 share
options were granfed to employees of the Group on 20 January
2020, nil share option was granted to the Directors. The fair value
of the opfions determined af the date of grant using the Binominal
Valuation Model was HK$331,000 (equivalent to RMB292,000).
During the year ended 31 December 2019, share options were
exercised fo subscribe for 8,702,000 shares at an option price of
HK$0.131, receiving net proceeds of HK$ 1,140,000 (equivalent
to RMB1,032,000).

The Group has no legal or constfructive obligation fo repurchase or

seffle the options in cash.

REBEE-ZF-_FTHF+-_A=Z=+—HLFE"
17,000,000 R ED R T -_TF —H =
THRTAKEEE  HEXER L TAERE
FTEF BREEAFERRLAHMKA—_EAA
MERAEE R331,0008 T(HERARK
292,0007)  HME_ZT—-NFT_A=+—8H
IEFE - BREETEIACI31E T B AR &
B8R 58,702,000/ Iz 1) » 1T AT 1S 5RIBF 88
1,140,000 7T (1HE L AR 1,032,0007T) °

AEBYBLIRIBEEECUNRSBELOREER
FERHE -
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44. SHARE-BASED PAYMENT TRANSACTION
(CONTINUED)

44. B RZ @)

The fair values of options granted determined were as follow:

BEBRSAGENCEHBRENAFENT

20 January 2020

—ETF
—A=—+H

Option value (at grant date) BREEE(R KXY B ) HK$331,000% 7T

Fair value per option (at grant date) BHEREATERRLE RS HK$0.0195% T

Significant inputs info the valuation model: HERANHEZH[AIER :
Exercise price af grant date R BB TTEE HK$0. 13T
Share price at grant date i B HBRE HK$0.0727% 7T
Expected volatility (nofe TEHR 08 (K aE) 108.690%
Riskfree inferest rate 5 | B ) = 1.8%
Life of options RE R 1 1 yearfF
Expected dividend yield TEHARR B X 0%
Valuation model applied A ERR Binomial ZIE =

Note: The expected volatility is measured at the standard deviation of the

expected share price refurn and is based on sfatistical analysis of

daily share prices over 2 years before the respective dates of grant.

Options may be exercised at any time from 20 January 2020 to

19 January 2021. The Group recognised a tfotal expense of
HK$331,000 (equivalent to RMB292,000) for the year ended
31 December 2020 (2019: nil) in relation to share options

granted by the Company.

M BRI RAMREE RO EEEAE X
2 (R i1 B B P 4 0 6 B R (R O 3T 59 77
ES

EREREE T -_EF—A-_F+HE-_Z
—F—At+hBEAEEETE -BEZ=_2=
TE+-_A=+—HALEEE AEERARQA]
% H B8 AR #E RE SR 42 59 2 331,000 7t (F8 &
AR®E202,000T) (ZE—NF: )
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45. STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION A5. K R BRI F AR L R K AR A
AND RESERVES OF THE COMPANY

2020 2019
—EEF —E-hnF
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR®T ARETT

Non-Current Asset kRBEE
Investments in subsidiaries RNETE AT IRE 258,375 259,214
Current Assets REBEE
Amounts due from subsidiaries i NG Ve 4,486 436,964
Bank balances and cash RITEBRLES 119 128
4,605 437,092
Current Liabilities REBAEE
Other payables H At & A 18 7,964 3,709
Amounts due to subsidiaries AN NGIE @] 17,860 —
Amounts due to directors Bt EEHRE 5,903 5,450
Bonds payable EES 287,482 286,804
319,209 295,963
Net Current (Liabilities)/Assets RE(AE) EEFE (314,604) 4129
Total Assets Less Current Liabilities BEERADEG (56,229) 400,343
Capital And Reserves EXREE
Share capital RE AR 167,914 150,365
(Deficient]/reserves (B54L)/ (224,143) 249,978
Total Equity B (56,229) 400,343

The Company's statement of financial position was approved and AAFHPERREER "S- —FWA+ ~BES
authorised for issue by the board of directors on 16 April 2021 EeEREETR YHUTATAEREZ:
and are signed on its behalf by:

Liv Kaijin Zhou Shuhua
ZmE A E
Director Director

EF EF
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45. STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION A5, KRB BRI R R F#EE @
AND RESERVES OF THE COMPANY
(CONTINUED)
Movement in the Company's reserves: NE BT E
Share
Share options Other Accumulated
premium reserve  reserves losses Total
RGEE BRERE HbRE REER #st
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000

ARBTT ARETT AR®BTT ARETT ARBTT

At 1 January 2019 RZE—-—h&E—HA—H 928,198 2,752 165,238 (308,574 787,614
Loss for the year FRNEE — — — (537,880] (537,880
Issue of shares upon 1TE B AR #E 1%

exercise of share options 317 A& 1% 523 (279) = = 244
Share option lapsed B 2K 2 Ik i - (2,473) - 2,473 -

At 31 December 2019 R-ZETE—NF

and 1 January 2020 +ZA=+—HEK
—ZE-FEF—A—H 928,721 = 165,238 (843,981) 249 978
Loss for the year FREE = = = (474,413)  (474,413)
Equitysefiled sharebased  LA#E %5 4% & /9
payments LSRN = 292 — — 292
At 31 December 2020 R_E_FF
+=—RA=+—H 928,721 292 165,238 (1,318,394)  (224,143)
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46. EVENT AFTER THE REPORTING PERIOD 46. HEHEREH

Share placings

On 14 January 2021, the Management has proposed to
implement share consolidation (the “Share Consolidation”) on the
basis that every 2 shares of HK$0.1 each be consolidated into 1
consolidated share of HK$0.2 each. Up to 8 March 2021, the
authorised share capital of the Company is HK$1,000,000,000
divided into 10,000,000,000 shares of HK$0.10 each, of
which 1,991,283,000 shares have been allotted and issued, and
are fully paid or credited as fully paid. Upon the Share
Consolidation becoming effective on @ March 2021, the
authorised share capital of the Company became
HK$1,000,000,000 divided into 5,000,000,000 shares of
HK$0.20 each, of which 995,641,500 consolidated shares was

in issue.

On 14 January 2021, Mr. liu has conditionally agreed to
subscribe for and the Company has conditionally agreed to allot
and issue 508,240,000 new consolidated shares (see Note 15)
at the subscription price of HK$0.20 per subscription share to Mr.
liu, with an aggregate consideration of HK$101,648,000 |(the
"Subscription”). After deducting related professional fees and all
related expenses which will be bomne by the Company in relation
to the Subscription, the nef proceeds of the Subscription will
amount to approximately HK$99,600,000. The net proceeds of
approximately HK$98,400,000 from the Subscription was used
to fully redeem the Bonds (see Note 31) and the remaining
balance of approximately HK$ 1,200,000 was used as general
working capital of the Company. Before the Share Consolidation
and Subscription, Mr. Lliu is deemed to hold 387,159,000
shares, representing 19.44% shareholding of the Company, which
was consolidated into 193,579,500 shares after the Share
Consolidation. After the Subscription and Share Consolidation,
Mr. Liu is deemed to hold 701,819,500 shares, representing
46.67% shareholding of the Company. The Subscription has
constitted @ connecfed fransaction of the Company. On 30
March 2021, the Subscripfion has been completed.

Further details of this transaction are sef out in the Company’s
announcements dated 14 January 2021, 3 February 2021, 5
March 2021 and 30 March 2021.
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Notes to the Consolidated
Financial Statements (Continued)
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46. EVENT AFTER THE REPORTING PERIOD 46. KEHEREE @)
(CONTINUED)

Outbreak of Coronavirus Disease 2019 B E-NWEBRESER

Affer the outbreak of Coronavirus Disease 2019 (“COVID-19 NRIE—_EEFEYEER T - NETRESER
outbreak”] in early 2020, a series of precautionary and control ([COVID-19& 1B 1) » A BEHEER I #HEH 1T — &
measures have been and continued to be implemented across FI [ #52 #5 g o COVID-19%% 15 5 48 12 25 78 HR 15 4
China. The continuous outbreak of COVID-19 is expected to have PR EIBIEERNARAYE EMANKS
a negative impact on the global economic environment, which in EBREFNURZIREN AEFBLEMEER
turn, is likely to affect the Group's revenue and profit. How Y BT 5 e AR R R 0 2 BRASE 18 it X R 1B Y
effective government measures are, in the countries that the Group BHZEPRERENM - 5 A6 H KK HE
operates, and how quickly global economics recover from the EIEFIUFRECVBERERTE - K
negative impact of this pandemic, may have an effect on the SEBZYBIREE BEREIELEY
Group's financial results for the year ending 2021. The Group will e

pay close attenfion on the change of the situation and make timely

response and adjustments in the future.
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